
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28,2013,7:00 P.M. 

1. Approval of the minutes of the October 14,2013 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2. Consideration: Resolution declaring certain Library property surplus and authorize its sale at public 
Internet auction. 

3. Consideration: Resolution authorizing an amendment to the Sain Associates construction, 
engineering, and inspection fees in an amount not to exceed $130,000.00 (formerly 75,302.58 as 
provided in Supplement No. 2, Resolution No. 2013-1 18 dated August 26, 2013) with respect to the 
Mountain Brook Village Walkway System, Phase 6, CMAQ-98-02(921) due to contract delays that 
have extended the construction completion date. 

4. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a 3-year Auxiliary Audit Agreement between 
the City and PRA Government Services, LLC (d/b/a RDS) for tax and license auditing services. 

5. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement between the City and The 
Mercer Group, Inc. with respect to an organizational and staffing study for The Emmet O'Neal 
Library Board. 

6. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the City Planner and City Attorney to draft amendments to any 
article of the Zoning Ordinance to eliminate all self-imposed requirements to publish notices in the 
newspaper. 

7. Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance rezoning a parcel of land in the City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama from Residence-D to Residential Infill District (RID), and the approval of a master 
development plan (re: Calton Hill property located on Montclair Road). 

8. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is Tuesday, November 12,2013, at 7 
p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 
(There will be no meeting of the City Council on Monday, November 1 1,201 3 in observance of 
Veterans' Day.) 

9. Other business. 

10. Comments from residents. 

1 1. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 85 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

OCTOBER 14,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A 106) of City Hall at 6: 15 p.m. on Monday, the 14th day of October, 20 13. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: William S. Pritchard 111 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Alabama League of Municipalities Quality of Life Award application for our new Municipal Complex 
-Dana Hazen and Sam Gaston. (Motion No. 2013-156 was added to the formal agenda.) 

2. Form committee to draft questions for residents' survey - Sam Gaston. 

3. Appoint a member of the governing body to negotiate offer of property donation to the City. (Mayor 
Oden volunteered to contact the prospective donor.) 

4. Fountain design and materials - Nimrod Long of Nimrod Long & Associates. (Council member 
Carter is to present the fountain plans to the donor's representative.) 

5. Discussion about the amending the City's publication requirements for certain public hearings 
(Exhibit 1). 

The members of the City Council expressed general agreement with the modifications to the 
publication requirements. This matter will be considered again at the October 28,2013 meeting. 

After the City Council's review of the formal [7 p.m.] agenda issues, Council President Smith 
adjourned the meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



Minute Book 85 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

OCTOBER 14,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 14th day of October, 2013. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: William S. Pritchard I11 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the September 23,2013 meeting of the City Council. 

2013-146 Authorize the execution (renewal) of a guard service agreement Exhibit 1, 
for the City's Public Works facility. Appendix 1 

2013-147 Authorize the City Manager to offer continuing medical Exhibit 2, 
coverage to eligible employees (namely 20 years of City service Appendix 2 
at any age or 10 years of City service for ages 60 and over) who 
elect to retire between November 1,20 13 and June 1,2014. 

2013-148 Authorize an amendment to the Flexible Benefit (Section 125 Exhibit 3, 
cafeteria) Plan required as a result of the Patient Protection and Appendix 3 
Affordable Health Care Act of 20 10 with respect to the $2,500 
annual maximum limitation of reimbursements from the Health 
Flexible Spending Account. 

2013-149 Set a public hearing for Tuesday, November 12,20 13 to Exhibit 4 
consider the adoption of an ordinance amending Chapter 129 of 
the City Code by adding a new "Vine Street Transitional" 
zoning district and amending the Article XXXI (Village 
Overlay Standards) and Section 129-416 (Advisory Design 
Review Required in the Villages of Mountain Brook). 

2013-150 Authorize the execution of a change order [No. 19 (B&G #6)] Exhibit 5, 
with respect to the municipal complex construction project. Appendix 4 



1040 Minute Book 85 

2013-151 Set a public hearing for Tuesday, November 12,20 13 to 
consider the adoption of an ordinance amending the Cahaba 
Village Master Development Plan (to provide for additional 
surface parking). 

Exhibit 6 

2013-152 Approve the conditional use application submitted by PNC Exhibit 7, 
Bank for a service use in a Local Business District (former Leaf Appendix 5 
& Petal location of Mountain Brook Village). 

2013-153 Authorize the execution of an agreement between the City and Exhibit 8, 
The Mercer Group, Inc. with respect to an organizational and Appendix 6 
staffing study for the City's Parks and Recreation Department. 

2013-154 Accept the professional services proposal submitted by Nimrod Exhibit 9, 
Long & Associates with respect to the Safe Routes to Schools Appendix 7 
(SRTS) sidewalk construction project and authorize the City 
Manager to engage Nimrod Long & Associates for said work 
and to execute such other documents that may be determined 
necessary with respect to said engagement. 

2013-155 Award the (sole) bid for prepared food deliveries for the City Exhibit 10, 
jail inmates (Western Supermarkets, Inc.) Appendix 8 

2013-156 Authorize the Mayor's application to the Alabama League of Appendix 9 
Motion Municipalities for the 2014 Quality of Life Award (municipal 

complex). 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, resolutions, and motion were introduced by Council President 
Smith. and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Carter. The minutes, resolutions, and 
motion were then considered by the City Council. Council member Vogtle seconded the motion to adopt the 
foregoing minutes, resolutions, and motion. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote 
was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Nays : None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes, resolutions, and motion (nos. 2013-146 
through 156) are adopted by a vote of 4 - 4 .  

2. ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next regular meeting of the City Council will be Monday, 
October 28,2013, at 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, 
AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for more information. 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no hrther business to come before the City Council at this time, Council President Smith 
adjourned the meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-157 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL 
OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which 
are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Count 
2 1 
20 
6 
3 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 
1 
1 

Description 
Dell Optiplex 755 
Dell Monitor 
Dell Monitor 
Decorative table 
Dell Optiplex 760 
Dell Optiplex 780 
Toshiba laptop 
Craft table 
IBM Typewriter 
HP Laserjet Printer 
Optoma Projector 
Activity display 

Model 
755 
2007FP 
El 98FPf 
d a  
760 
780 
Satellite A1 05 
d a  
Wheelwriter 5 
CP2025 
n/a 
d a  

Description 
computers 
20" wide flat panel monitors 
19" square flat panel monitors 
Handpainted tables 
computers 
computers 
Laptop computer 
Craft tables for children 
Electric typewriters 
color printer 
Portable projector 
Display with children's activities 

Section 2. That the City Manager, or his designated representative, is hereby authorized and 
directed to sell the above property by way of public Internet auction or to otherwise dispose of such 
property that does not sell at said auction. 

ADOPTED: This 28th day of October, 2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 28th day of October, 2013. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on October 28,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 



From: Sam Gaston [mailto:gastons@mtnbrook.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2013 4: 19 PM 
To: 'virginia smith'; 'Amy Carter'; 'Terry Oden'; 'Billy Pritchard'; 'Vogtle, Jesse'; 'Jack Carl' 
Cc: Steve Boone; 'Whit Colvin' 
Subject: Phase 6 Sidewalks-CE and I 

Virginia and I met today with Sain Associates concerning their CE and I contract for the 
Phase 6 sidewalk project. Sain is requesting an additional $55,000 for CE and 1,80% which 
will be paid by ALDOT and 20% by the City or $1 1,000. Virginia and I recommend we 
approve this at our October 28th Council meeting. 

I know we all are very frustrated with this project and can't wait for it to be completed, but 
we have experienced a perfect storm on this project due to; 

1. The topography and terrain have made this a very difficult and challenging project. 

2.Not to throw Nimrod Long and Associates under the bus, but this was not their best effort 
on designing the plans for this project as ALDOT has required several revisions to the plans, 
after they were initially approved and the project bid, which has significantly delayed the 
project. In the past ALDOT was much more flexible in their review and interpretation of the 
plans. 

3.ALDOT has a new person reviewing the sidewalk plans and supervising the sidewalk 
projects, Genevieve Brown, who goes by the book. As I mentioned earlier, ALDOT has been 
much more flexible in the past in their review and interpretation of the ruleslspecifications 
for compliance, but after the Federal Highway Administration came down on ALDOT for not 
properly enforcing ADA and slope requirements, ALDOT has forced several cities, including 
us, to revise their plans for on-going sidewalk projects resulting in significant delays. 

4. Due to the delays in this project for plansldesign revisions, it has forced the contractor, 
Walker-Patton, to skip around on this project and to miss critical path construction which 
has delayed the completion. Walker-Patton has grounds for filing a claim again ALDOT and 
they know it as well as everyone else involved in this project. As a result, ALDOT is directing 
Sain not to charge Walker-Patton for many days of work on this project towards his contract 
construction days, but at the same time, require Sain to have a CE & I inspector on the job 
site each day. Apparently ALDOT is trying to appease Walker-Patton by extending his 
working days without being charged to his contract. 

So, we, the city, are being forced to pay more $ for CE and I although ALDOT is picking up 
80% of the tab. A CE and I inspector must be on-site each day per ALDOT regulations. 

I ask the Mayor and Council keep this information confidential, but Virginia and I wanted to 
give you some background information in advance of the October 28th Council meeting. 

Sam S.Gaston 
City Manager 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-158 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Council hereby accepts and approves a modification to Supplement No. 2 (re: Resolution No. 2013-1 18 
adopted August 26,2013) with respect to the construction, engineering, and inspection service fees in an 
amount not to exceed $130,000.00 (see Exhibit A attached hereto) with respect to the Mountain Brook Village 
Walkway System, Phase 6, CMAQ-98-02(921) requested due to contract delays that extended the construction 
completion date. 

BE IT FURTHE-R RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of such other documents that may be determined 
necessary with respect to said services all subject to review and approval by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of August, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 26th day of August, 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on August 26,20 13, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Sain Associates Phase 6, Supplement 2 (Amendment) 



a s s o c i a t e s  
consulting engineers 

6; surveyors 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 

Sam Gaston, City of Mountain Brook 

Alicia Bailey, P.E. 
Jim Meads, P.E. 

Mountain Brook Phase 6 Sain's Contract 

Sam, 
Thank you for taking time on Friday to speak with us. Below is the information we discussed. 

There have been numerous design plan changes on this project. These changes have caused for certain areas of 
the project to be on hold pending the redesigns and subsequent reviews and approvals from ALDOT on the revised 
plans. This has resulted in the contractor not being able to work in a continuous path which is why there have 
been so many gaps in his work. 

One of Sain's responsibilities as CE&I consultant is to keep up with the days charged on the construction contract. 
Ideally, every day that the contractor can work for six continuous hours, a day is charged. On this project, we have 
been directed by ALDOT to not charge days against the construction contract when the contractor has not been 
able to work in a continuous path according to his original schedule due to the plan changes. However, even if we 
are not charging those days to the contractor, ALDOT requires Sain to provide a full time inspector onsite to 
monitor the work and track the pay item work. Below is a summary of the days charged on the project: 

Original contract days - 140 days 
Days added due to over-runs of quantities - 26 days 
Days added due to contractor supplements for changes - 34 days 
Days not counted due to redesigns and approvals of plan changes - 106 days 

As of 9/30/13, the plan redesigns and approvals have added 166 working days (approximately 8.5 months) to the 
construction contract. 

If the contractor depletes all the construction days without being done with the work, he will be charged 
liquidated damages. The concern is that by charging the contractor liquidated damages, he will file a claim. A 
claim could put all involved parties at financial exposure. 

In July, Sain prepared supplement #2. At the time, the contractor estimated completing his work in mid- 
September. During September, the contractor was held up on being able to complete his work mainly due to 
delays associated with the sanitary sewer work on Old Leeds Road. As of the date of this memo, the contractor is 
still not complete with the work. It is estimated he will complete his work in November. 

Supplement #2 had only enough money for Sain to provide CE&I services until middeptember and for project 
close-out. Due to construction still being ongoing, Sain has maintained a full time inspector onsite and we have 
depleted the Supplement #2 funds. ALDOT will not approve Supplement #2 unless we change the dates so that 

Two Perimeter Park South, Suite 500 East - Birmingham, Alabama 35243 
p (205) 940-6420 - f (205) 940-6433 

www.sain.com 



SAIN 
a s s o c i a t e s  
consulting engineers 

6; surveyors 

our fee will cover our CE&I services until November. Sain cannot maintain full time inspection until November 
unless we revise Supplement #2 for an increased fee. Below is a summary of Sain's Contract: 

Original Contract - $237,159.00 
o Based on 140 working days (April through November 2012) 
o This fee lasted Sain until January 2013 

Supplement #1- $145,622.00 
o Based on construction ending in June 2013 (projected end date provided by contractor in January 

2013, however all plan revisions had not been approved at that point) 
o This fee lasted Sain until July 2013 

Supplement #2 - $75,302.58 
o Based on construction ending in mid-September 2013 
o This fee lasted Sain until mid-October 2013 

*Please note, ALDOT reimburses the City 80% of Sain's fee. 

Sain requests Supplement #2 be amended to increase the fee from $75,302 to $130,000. This will allow Sain to 
continue providing full time inspection and management of the project until November 2013. 

Two Perimeter Park South, Suite 500 East - Birmingham, Alabama 35243 
p (205) 940-6420 - f (205) 940-6433 

www.sain .corn 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-159 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of a 3-year Auxiliary Audit Agreement between the City and 
PRA Government Services, LLC d/b/a RDS, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such 
minor revisions as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 28th day of October, 2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 28th day of October, 2013. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on October 28,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

RDS Auxiliary Audit Agreement 



Auxiliary Audit Agreement 

This agreement made as of the day of 2013, by and between PRA Government 
Services, LLC d/b/a RDS ("RDS") and City of Mountain Brook, an Alabama CITY ("CITY"). 

A. General Provisions 

1. Audit Services Performed: RDS will perform auxiliary audit services for business license fees, sales 
and use taxes, rentalllease tax, lodging tax and such other taxes as may from time to time be 
designated by the CITY. Such services shall only be performed when specifically requested or 
approved in writing by CITY. 

2. Deposit Process: Deposits are made to the extent that funds have been received, via Automated 
Clearing House of the amounts and to the designated recipients as instructed by the ClTY for each 
type of tax collected, as shown in more detail on Exhibit A. 

3. Information Provided: ClTY represents that it has the right to provide information to RDS necessary 
to perform the services hereunder and such information shall be true, accurate, current and 
complete. 

4. Compliance with laws: Each Party accepts responsibility for its compliance with federal, state, or 
local laws and regulations. 

5 .  Review and Appeal Process: RDS has adopted and will use a review and appeals process which is 
based on the Alabama Taxpayers' Bill of Rights Act and Uniform Revenue Procedures Act codified 
as Title 40, Chapter 2A, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended. 

6. Audit Services: 
i. RDS Audit Services: Audit Services include all preparation for the performance of an audit, 

any research or statistical analysis performed in relation to an audit, in-house audit/collection 
efforts, examination of the books and records of the taxpayer, an assessment of the amount 
due (if any), and all services related to closing an audit. 

ii. RDS Reciprocal Agreement: To the fullest extent allowed by law, ClTY hereby authorizes 
RDS to act as a facilitator with the Alabama Department of Revenue and other applicable 
jurisdictions to share audit findings on its behalf. 

1. RDS Fee: RDS will receive an amount based on an hourly rate of seventy dollars 
($70.00) for audit services. There shall be no contingent fees. Each year on the 
anniversary date of this Agreement the hourly rate will increase by 3%. 

2. If o~ernight travel or travel more than 25 miles beyond origination point is required, RDS 
will pay the auditor and bill the CITY for its portion of travel expenses. ClTY agrees to 
pay the amount of these fees when due, regardless of any recovery. 

3. Billing Increment: Time will be recorded in 15-minute intervals (.25 hours); 
4. Shared Audit Fees: When audits for ClTY overlap with audits for other RDS clients or 

clients of RDS Affiliates, the fees will be shared as follows: 
a. Travel Time: travel time, expenses, and a daily per diem amount for 

each audit is distributed evenly among the clients reviewed for each 
audit. 

b. Interview Time: time billed during the initial interview of each audit is 
distributed evenly amongst the clients reviewed for each audit - during 
this process the auditor determines which clients will actually be 
audited for and billed Audit Time as follows; 

i. Audit Time: Time billed during the actual audit stage of each 
audit is billed according to actual time spent working for each 
client; 

i. No Double Billing: In no event will the overlapping audits 
combined require payment for more than 100% for any one 
RDS representative. 

7. Notification, Reporting to CITY: 

RDS City Contract 2013 



i. RDS will provide ClTY with monthly reports including, but not limited to, payment listings 
showing all taxes received related to net receipts reported, a general ledger distribution that 
corresponds to CITY'S account numbers and all fees paid to RDS. These reports will be 
provided by the 10th of the month following the tax month; 

ii. ClTY AGREES TO EXAMINE THIS REPORT IMMEDIATELY. IF NO ERROR IS REPORTED 
BY THE ClTY TO RDS WITHIN 60 DAYS, THE STATEMENT WILL BE DEEMED 
ACCURATE; 

iii. All items credited will be subject to receipt of payment; and 
iv. RDS will attend Council meetings at such times as may be reasonably requested by CITY. 

Payment: RDS shall submit invoices for all services rendered hereunder. Payment will be made by 
ClTY to RDS within sixty (60) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts which remain unpaid after 
sixty days shall accrue interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month, or the maximum 
amount permitted by law. 

Company Audit: Once a year RDS will have an auditor prepare an Independent Service Auditor's 
Report on Controls Placed in Operation and Tests of Operating Effectiveness. This report is 
commonly called a SOC 1 report and will be made available upon request. 

Term of the Agreement: This Agreement shall be for a term of three (3) years following the date of 
execution or the maximum period allowed by law, whichever is shorter. Either party shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement during such term for any reason by providing thirty (30) days written 
notice to the other party. 

Effect of Termination: Notwithstanding non-renewal or termination of this Agreement, ClTY shall be 
obligated to pay RDS for services performed through the effective date of termination for which RDS 
has not been previously paid. In addition, because the services performed by RDS prior to 
termination or non-renewal of this Agreement may result in the CITY'S receipt of revenue after 
termination which are subject to RDS' fee, the ClTY shall remain obligated after termination or non- 
renewal to provide to RDS such information as is necessary for RDS to calculate compensation due 
as a result of the receipt of revenue by the CITY. The ClTY shall remain obligated to pay RDS' 
invoices therefore in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Indemnity: To the fullest extent allowed by law, RDS hereby agrees to indemnify and hold ClTY 
harmless from any third party claims and against all costs, expenses, damages, claims and liabilities 
based upon or arising out of any negligent act or omission in the performance of duties by it, its 
agents or assigns pursuant to this Agreement. . Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, to 
the full extent allowed by law, ClTY hereby agrees to indemnify and hold RDS harmless from any 
third party claims and against all costs, expenses, damages, claims and liabilities relating in any way 
to sales, use and other taxes of CITY, including, but not limited to, determination of taxes due from 
taxpayers, the collection thereof and any refunding related thereto. 

Limitation of Liability: To the maximum extent permitted by law, in no event shall RDS, its employees, 
contractors, directors, affiliates and/ or agents be liable to the City for any special, incidental or 
consequential damages, such as, but not limited to, delay, lost data, disruption, and loss of 
anticipated profits or revenue arising from or related to the services, whether liability is asserted in 
contract or tort, and whether or not RDS has been advised of the possibility of any such loss or 
damage. In addition, RDS' total liability to the City hereunder, including reasonable attorneys fees 
and costs, shall in no event exceed an amount equal to the fee paid by the ClTY for the affected 
service to which the claim pertains. The foregoing sets forth the CITY'S exclusive remedy for 
claims arising frsm or out of this Agreement. The provisions of this section allocate the risks 
between RDS and the ClTY and RDS' pricing reflects the allocation of risk and limitation of 
liability specified herein. 

Equal Opportunity to Draft: The Parties have participated and had an equal opportunity to 
participate in the drafting of this Agreement. No ambiguity shall be construed against any Party 
upon a claim that that party drafted the ambiguous language. 

Assignment: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their 
successors; representatives and assigns. RDS shall not assign this Agreement, or delegate its 
duties or obligations under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of CITY. 

RDS City Contract 201 3 



Notwithstanding the foregoing, RDS may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the 
consent of ClTY to any corporation or entity into which or with which RDS has merged or 
consolidated; any parent, subsidiary, successor or affiliated corporation of RDS; or any corporation 
or entity which acquires all or substantially all of the assets of RDS. Subject to the foregoing, this 
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors or 
assigns. 

16. Force Majeure: RDS shall not be in default of its obligations hereunder to the extent that its 
performance is delayed or prevented by causes beyond its control, including but not limited to acts of 
God, government, weather, fire, power or telecommunications failures, inability to obtain supplies, 
breakdown of equipment or interruption in vendor services or communications. 

17. Subcontractors: RDS shall have the right to hire assistants as subcontractors or to use employees to 
provide the Services required by this Agreement. RDS, in rendering performance under this 
Agreement shall be deemed an independent contractor and nothing contained herein shall constitute 
this arrangement to be employment, a joint venture, or a partnership. RDS shall be solely 
responsible for and shall hold ClTY harmless from any and all claims for any employee related fees 
and costs including without limitation employee insurance, employment taxes, workman's 
compensation, withholding taxes or income taxes. 

18. Intellectual Property Rights: The entire right, title and interest in and to RDS' database and all 
copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, trade names, and all other intellectual property rights 
associated with any and all ideas, concepts, techniques, inventions, processes, or works of 
authorship including, but not limited to, all materials in written or other tangible form developed or 
created in the course of this Agreement (collectively, the 'Work Product") shall vest exclusively in 
RDS. The foregoing notwithstanding, in no event shall any CITY-owned data provided to RDS be 
deemed included within the Work Product. 

19. Entire Agreement: This Agreement and the Addendum thereto constitute the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto and supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements 
between the Parties respecting the subject matter contained herein. Said Agreement shall not be 
amended, altered, or changed, except by a written Agreement signed by both Parties hereto. 

20. Invalidity: If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability 
shall not affect any other provision thereof, and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained thereof, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

21. Effective Date: The effective date for the performance of services under the terms of this agreement 
shall commence November 1,201 3. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto as of the date first above written have duly executed this 
Agreement. 

PRA GOVERNMENT SERVICES, LLC City of Mountain Brook 
DlBlA RDS 

By: By: 
Its: COO and SVP, Operations Its: 

Proposed pricing contained herein valid for 60 days from date of issuance. Issued 4110113 (SC) 

RDS City Contract 20 13 



EXHIBIT A 
DISTRIBUTION CONFIRMATION 

October 24,201 3 

Steven Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Mr. Boone: 

Funds will be distributed in the following accounts pursuant to this Agreement: 

If at any time there are any discrepancies between the schedule set out above and your Municipality's 
records, please notify us in writing immediately. 

Agency 

Mountain Brook 

IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE NOTICE TO US OF ANY CHANGES IN TAX RATES OR IN 
THE DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS. NOTICE MUST BE IN WRITING AND SENT, VIA CERTIFIED MAIL, TO: 

PRA Government Services, LLC ( d/b/a RDS) 
231 7 Third Avenue North, Suite 200 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
ATT: Kennon Walthall, COO and SVO, Operations 

Routing # 

Check 

Thank you for your assistance. If you have any questions, or if I may be of assistance, please let me know. 

Sincerely Yours, 
Connie Taylor 
Client Relations Manager 
RDS 
20542341 44 direct dial 
2054234097 direct fax 

Account # 

Check 

I have reviewed the above distribution and verify that it is correct. 
By: 

Name: RDS COO and SVP, Operations 
Title: 

Distribution % 

100% 

RDS City Contract 2013 

Tax TypelRate Code 

Audit Taxes; all rates 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

PRA GOVERNMENT SERVICES, LLC (d/b/a RDS) 
DATED OCTOBER 28,2013 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("'the City") and PRA Government Services, LLC (d/b/a RDS) ("the 
Contractor") dated October 28,20 13. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or  under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or  eliminate rights or  remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or supplement of o r  to the principal agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowledged 
or  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or  suspend the operation of the Addendum or  any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

5. Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or Remedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Choice of Law; Choice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Construction ofAddendum Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawhl for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by thz City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 28th day of October, 2013. 

PRA Government Services, LLC (d/b/a RDS) City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Its : Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-160 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of an agreement between the City and The Mercer Group, Inc., 
in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, for their management and organizational study of The Emmet 
07Neal Library Board. 

ADOPTED: This 28th day of October, 2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 28th day of October, 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on October 28,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 



The Mercer Group, Inc. 
-,...+ . . .  

Conralttnts to hiaoagement 

1000 Whitlock Avenue 
Suite 320-129 

Marietta, Georgia 30064 
Phone 770-425-1 775 

Fax 770-425-8561 
www. mercerarouoinc. com 

October 17,2013 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 

Via Email 

Dear Sam: 

As requested, enclosed is The Mercer Group, Inc.'s proposal to perform a Management and 
Organizational Study of City's Library. The proposal presumes a full scope study of library 
operations. We would be glad to revise the proposal if you have a different scope in mind. 

As you already have our ClientsIProjects List and Resumes from the Public Works Study, I only 
am sending the text of the Library proposal. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call me at 770-425-1775 or 
email me at segan @ mercergroupinc.com. 

Very truly yours: 

9- e,, 
THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
Stephen D. Egan, Jr., Senior Vice-President 
Project Manager and Lead Consultant 

Copy: Jim Mercer, President and CEO 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDY 
OF THE 

EMMET O'NEAL LIBRARY 

PROPOSAL 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 

1000 Whitlock Avenue 
Suite 320-129 

Marietta, Georgia 30064 

770-425-1775 Phone 
770-425-8561 Fax 

October 17,2013 



The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Corrrltutr to Management 

1000 Whitlock Avenue, Suite 320-129 
Marietta, Georgia 30064 

Phone 770-425-1 775 
FUX 770-425-8561 

www.mercer~rouuii~c.com 

October 17,2013 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
3928 Montclair Road 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

VIA EMAIL 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

The Mercer Group, Inc. is pleased to present our Proposal to perform a Management and 
Organizational Study of the City's Library. 

Our proposal is based on our recent conversations and is structured like the proposals for our 
recent study of the Public Works Department and upcoming study of the Parks & Recreation 
Department. The proposal includes the following chapters: 

I. UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT 
11. SUMMARY OF OUR APPROACH 
111. WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE 
IV. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING 
V. SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 
VI. COST PROPOSAL 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
October 17,2013 
Page 2 

As you read the proposal, you will note that the Strengths of our Firm are People, Project 
Experience, Consulting Tools and Methods, Commitment to the Public Sector, and 
Independence. 

Specific reasons for choosing our firm for this study are: 

1. We're Different. The Mercer Group team combines a depth and breadth of personal 
work and consulting experience in governmental and public works management and 
operations that even the largest consulting firms cannot match. 

2. What You See Is What You Get. Jim Mercer and Steve Egan will be your primary 
consultants, with the support of Anne Haimes, our Library Specialist. We are here not 
just to sell the project, but to do it as well! 

3. Team Experience. Each of us has over 30 years of public sector experience as 
government officials andor consultants to governments. 

Jim Mercer, the Mercer Group's PresidentICEO and our project director, has 
consulted with the public sector for over 30 years and has completed over 250 
management studies and over 1000 executive recruitment assignments. 

Jim started his career as an Assistant City Manager in Raleigh, North Carolina, 
and has a deep understanding of the workings of local government, including 
library services. 

Steve Egan, our project manager and lead consultant, is a former local 
government budget official, who 'worked extensively with County departments on 
a variety of public policy and management issues, including the operations of the 
Atlanta-Fulton County Library System. 

Steve has conducted over 160 public sector consulting projects over the past thirty 
years, including three studies for Mountain Brook (city-wide, public works, and 
parks & recreation) and ten library studies. 

He also served for almost three years as interim public works and utilities director 
for the City of Highland Park, Michigan, with responsibility for preservation of 
the library building and books after the library was closed for financial reasons. 

Anne Haimes, our library specialist, is the current interim director of the Atlanta- 
Fulton County Library system, having served as a Children's Librarian, Branch 
Manager, and Branch Group Manager for the library system over her 30-year 
career. Anne has a Masters in Library Science from Emory University. 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
October 17,2013 
Page 3 

4. Consulting Track Record. A total of over 2,000 projects across all of our consulting 
specialties in the past thirty years shows we have staying power, the technical skills you 
need for this project, and the ability to satisfy our clients. 

Alabama Clients: In addition to the 2003-2004 Organization and Staffing study 
and the 2012 Public Works study for the City of Mountain Brook, we have 
conducted management, financial, and planning projects for the Alabama GFOA, 
City of Birmingham, City of Huntsville, Jefferson County, Birmingham-Jefferson 
County Transit Authority, and the City of Tuskegee, as well as executive 
recruitment projects for several other communities. 

Southeastern Clients: The Mercer Group andlor its associated consultants have 
conducted strategic planning, organization and staffing, operations improvement, 
human resource management, and executive search projects for over 100 local 
governments in Southeastern states, including Atlanta, Georgia; Athens-Clarke 
County, Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina; the Georgia Municipal Association; 
Greenville, South Carolina; Iberia Parish, Louisiana; Mecklenburg County, North 
Carolina; New Orleans, Louisiana; the North Carolina League of Municipalities; 
Palm Beach County, Florida; and Spartanburg, South Carolina; 

Library Studies: We have conducted over a dozen library studies, including 
Athens-Clarke County, Georgia; Atlanta-Fulton County; Cobb County, Georgia: 
Iberia Parish, Louisiana; Port Arthur, Texas; Two Rivers, Wisconsin; Winona 
County, Minnesota: the State of Iowa; and the New Jersey State Library. 

5. Resources and Time to Do It. We have skilled people available and ready to conduct the 
project. This project will blend in nicely with current consulting assignments. 

6. Commitment to Do It Right. Our references will attest to our ability to exceed their 
expectations. 

7. A Bias for ACTION and IMPLEMENTATION, not for a studv that gathers dust of 
a shelf. Each member of our project team has worked in local government and is 
committed to making the public sector more efficient and effective. 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
October 17,2013 
Page 4 

Finally, we have the tools, commitment, and independence required to provide high-level 
professional consulting services to the City: 

P Tools: We have a set of project-tested analytical methods, surveys, questionnaires, 
interview guides, and other tools to develop recommendations that will provide long-term 
benefit to the City and the Emmet O'Neal Library. 

P Commitment: Our project team is devoted exclusively to improving the management 
and services of state and local governments. As former local government officials, we 
have been studied ourselves and are committed to preparing a report that is fair, practical, 
and implementable, and that offers tangible benefits to the City and the Library. 

P Independence: Our firm is a professional consulting firm that is not connected to any 
Alabama agencies, businesses, computer systems or services vendors, suppliers, or 
contractors. We will provide objective and independent recommendations to the City and 
the Library. 

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on this important project. If you have any questions or 
require additional information regarding our proposal, please call Jim Mercer, project director, at 
(505) 466-9500, or Steve Egan, project manager and lead consultant, at 770-425-1775. 

Very truly yours, 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
James L. Mercer, President and CEO 
Stephen D. Egan, Jr., Senior Vice-President 



I. UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT 
This chapter of the proposal describes our understanding of the current situation and the project's 
purpose, objectives, scope, issues, deliverables, and schedule. 

A. CURRENT SITUATION 

City o f  Mountain Brook 

The City of Mountain Brook is a primarily residential community and a suburb of Birmingham. 
Mountain Brook has a population of about 21,000, with relatively slow, controlled growth. The 
City is noted for the quality of life and the excellence of its school system, parks, and recreation 
programs. The city was incorporated in 1942 and is governed by a Mayor and five-member City 
Council, which appoints a City Manager to run daily operations. 

The City's mission is to be "a professional organization committed to teamwork and excellence 
which promotes full participation in enhancing the quality of life for residents." Key values are 
Integrity, Safety, Education, Community, Stewardship, and Beauty. 

Emmet O'Neal Library 

A five-member Library Board governs the Emmet O'Neal Library, with day-to-day management 
by the Library Director who reports to the Board. 

The library has an annual budget of about $2,600,000 and employs 21 full-time and 22 part- 
timeltemporary staff. The library is open seven days a week for a total of 67 hours per week. 
Library services include adultlreference and children's departments; circulation, technical 
services, information technology, and meeting room rentals. 

The library is supported by the Friends of the Library, including the Young Friends Group, and 
the Mountain Brook Library Foundation. 

The library was built in 2001 and includes 39,000 square feet of space. Circulation ranks third 
among libraries in Jefferson County. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 1 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



B. PROJECT OVERVIEW 

Need, Purpose, and Scope o f  the Project 

Similar to many well-run cities, Mountain Brook's City Council and City Manager are 
concerned about the level of services provided to its citizens and the resources required to 
deliver these services. 

With the growth in Library personnel over the past decade and a proposal to convert some part- 
timeltemporary staff to full-time, the City believes this is a good time for an independent, 
objective review of the management, organization, and operations of the Library. 

Project Issues 

Issues to be studied are a combination of the Fifty Management Issues (see following pages) that 
Mercer reviews in all of our comprehensive Management and Operations studies, as well as 
issues of primary concern to the City of Mountain Brook. 

City Issues: The City Manager identified the following key issues to be reviewed in the study: 

1. Organizational plan including span of control, organizational levels, grouping of 
functions, reporting relationships, and communications. 

2. Staffing levels, particularly related to objective standards of workload and responsibilities 
assigned, and to the mix of full-time and part-time staff. 

3. Operational policies, procedures, and practices, including the impact of the building's 
layout on staffing needs. 

4. Type and number of library programs, including the need for existing programs and for 
new programs to meet community interests and demands. 

5. Role of the library as a community center for the City of Mountain Brook. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Mercer Issues: The following Fifty Management Issues, which are at the core of all of our 
management and operations reviews, will be reviewed and assessed in this study. 

Governance 

1. Legal structurelform of government (role of the Library Board) 
2. Role of governing and advisory boards and committees (Friends and the Foundation) 
3. Staff support to these boards and committees 
4. Policy making and decision making processes 
5. Identification of and compliance with legal, regulatory, and policy requirements 

Service Deliverv Structure 

6. Organizational location of services and activities both in and outside the city 
7. Interdepartmental cooperation among city government departments 
8. Intergovernmental cooperation across the region 
9. Use of alternative service delivery opportunities, such as inter-local agreements, 

contracts, and privatization 
10. Comparison with industry best practices, benchmark communities, and Mercer's national 

experience 

Planning 
' 11. Strategic planning process compared to the Mercer Model 

12. Alignment of vision, mission, strategies, long-term goals, and short-term objectives (as 
they impact services levels, organization, and staffing) 

13. Capital projects planning process, documents, and oversight 
14. Financial planning and budgeting processes, documents, and oversight 
15. Operational planning processes, documents, and oversight 

Management 

16. Senior management organization structure 
17. Internal workings of the management team 
18. Management reporting and communications 
19. Documentation of policies and procedures 
20. Customer and stakeholder relations and communications 
2 1. Organizational culture and values 
22. Management philosophy and employee-management relations 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Operations Management 

23. Work standards and specifications 
24. Work planning and scheduling 
25. Unit organization and staffing 
26. Job classifications, roles, and duties 
27. Adequacy of facilities, equipment, tools, technology, communications, and materials 
28. Unit supervision 
29. Unit operations, work flow, productivity, and cost-effectiveness 
30. Technical support and administrative support operations 
3 1. Activity and performance reporting and analysis 
32. Emergency management plans and processes 

Resource Management 

33. Human resources management policies, practices, and processes 
34. Training and career development program 
35. Safety and risk management program 
36. Employee relations 

37. Financial management and reporting 
38. Financial transactions and processes 
39. Project and activity cost accounting 
40. Rates, fees, charges, and cost recovery practices 
41. Internal service fund operations and charges 

42. Information systems management and support services 
43. Computer and technology applications (hardware and software) 
44. Records management, including library records and documents 

45. Purchasing and materials management 
46. Warehouse and stores operations 

47. Facilities management 
48. Facility and grounds maintenance operations 

49. Fleet and equipment management 
50. Equipment specifications, procurement, and replacement 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Project Schedule 

The Project Schedule will require about four months from project kick-off to delivery of the 
final report. The detailed schedule by task, with time frames and milestones, is presented in 
Chapter I11 after the Work Plan. The schedule provides time for: 

> A Kickoff meeting followed by periodic status meetings and reports. 
> Library staff to complete questionnaires and surveys. 
> On-site interviews, site visits, and observation of work. 
> Data collection, research, and benchmarking. 
> Analysis of information and data collected during the study, development of preliminary 

findings and alternatives, and preparation of a draft report. 
> Review of the draft report by the City Manager, Library Director, and Project Steering 

Committee. 
> Preparation of a final report, followed by a final presentation. 

Proiect Deliverables 

The consultant will be responsible for the following Deliverables: 

> Interim Status Reports: These reports to the project liaison will be delivered at key 
project milestones to be defined at the project kickoff meeting. Typically, we prepare 
these reports monthly during our Fact Finding activities. 

We envision these reports to include a description of work performed to date, major 
management and operational issues and ideas defined by the consultants, a list of any 
obstacles or project management issues, and a list of planned activities for the next 
reporting period. 

> Draft and Final Reports: We will provide electronic copies of the Draft Report to the 
City Manager, Library Director, and Project Steering Committee, as well as an electronic 
report plus six bound copies of the Final Report. The reports will detail our findings, 
recommendations, and an implementation plan (in the final report). 

The Draft Revort will be delivered within about 90 days of the project kickoff 
meeting. We ask that the City Manager, Library Director, and others on the 
Project Steering Committee be prepared to review the draft within two weeks of 
its delivery. 

The Final Report will be delivered within ten to fifteen business days of our 
receipt of the City's and Library's response to the Draft Report. 

> Presentation: We will make a final presentation to the Library Board, Library staff, and 
the City Council at the conclusion of the project. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



11. SUMMARY OF OUR APPROACH 
The key elements of our approach are summarized in this chapter of the proposal. 

A. EXPERIENCED PROJECT TEAM 

We will assign a high-qualified and experienced project team that will include: 

> James L. Mercer, project director, is our firm's President and CEO and a highly 
experienced consultant to state and local governments, including library services. 

> Stephen D. Egan, Jr., project manager and lead consultant, is a Mercer Senior Vice- 
President and a highly experienced consultant to state and local governments, including 
library services. 

> Anne Haimes, library specialist, is the interim director of the Atlanta-Fulton County 
Library System. 

Each member of our project team has over 30 years of work and consulting experience 
with state and local governments. A description of the role and qualifications of each member 
of the team is provided in Section IV. 

B. PARTICIPATIVE APPROACH 

We emphasize a participative approach that involve as wide range of officials, managers, 
employees, stakeholders, and citizens1customers to gain a 360-degree understanding of the 
organization. 

Project management activities include regular status meetings and reviews of preliminary 
deliverables in order to confirm the accuracy of our findings, develop a consensus on 
recommendations, and foster a commitment to implementation. 

We recommend that our clients appoint a Project Steering Committee to monitor the progress 
of our work and review draft deliverables, as well as a Project Liaison to provide logistical 
support. During the project we normally contact or meet with the Project Liaison biweekly and 
the Steering Committee monthly or at key milestones, such as the end of Fact Finding, ten days 
after issuance of the Draft Report; and after delivery of the Final Report. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



C. STRUCTURED WORK PLAN 

The proposed work plan and schedule that follows is based on work plans tested on other 
projects and tailored to the specific needs of each client. The work plan emphasizes: 

> A reasonable project schedule that provides adequate time on site and interaction with 
client staff, with limited intrusion on operations. 

9 Application of tested project tools, such as interview guides, questionnaires, operations 
guidelines, and management principles. 

> Effective use of the varied skills of the project team. 

Project- Tested Methods 

In the course of over 500 management and operations studies for state and local governments, we 
have developed a series of project-tested analytical methods and tools, many of which will be 
applied on this project. 

Our analysis will be based on several models and principles for managing in the public 
sector: 

9 The Strategic Management Process, a general model for managing in the public sector. 

> The Mercer Group's "ORGRIGHT" Process for Organizational Transformation and 
Reengineering. 

9 The Mercer Group's Integrated Management System a process for ensuring that missions 
and plans achieve quality results. 

> A set of thirty Management Principles on which we base our recommendations for 
management and operational improvements. 

> A set of over fifty administrative and resource management Issues for Analysis that 
supplement the Fifty Management Issues identified earlier in the proposal. 

- -- 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Research and Publications 

In addition, the members of our team have written or are writing nationally distributed books or 
articles on managing in the public sector, which represent our philosophies and principles both 
as consultants and managers: 

> Jim Mercer has written over fifty articles and six books on managing in the public 
sector, including books on strategic planning, managing in lean times, and public 
management systems. 

> Steve Egan is developing his ideas, articles, and speeches on the Strategic Management 
Process into articles, training programs, and perhaps a book that pulls together 
recommended approaches to strategic planning, goal-setting, resource allocation, 
administrative and operations management, performance reporting, quality assurance, 
organizational culture, and managing in the public sector. 

Steve is in the process of writing a book with two co-authors on internal discipline and 
control systems in professional services (Managing Professional Service Delivery: 9 
Rulesfor Success) that will be published in 2014. 

Data Collection and Analvtical Tools 

Data collection and analytical tools that will be used on the project include the following: 

> Structured Interview Guides for elected officials, senior managers, employees, and 
customers/stakeholders. 

> Employee Questionnaires and Surveys: In this study, we will ask each employee to 
complete several questionnaires and surveys to communicate their view and opinions of: 

Their experience and future goals 
The vision, values, mission, goals and objectives, and departmental performance 
Job duties, backlogs, and inappropriately assigned work that should be transferred 
to or from other units and employees 
Reporting relationships, and internal and external working relationships 
Time spent on major tasks 
The adequacy of resources (facilities, equipment, personnel, finances, materials) 
Management and operational issues 
Employee relations and morale issues 

The last three items are scored and the results reported by major organizational unit, as 
well as compared to other Mercer clients and our best practice scores. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



The questionnaires and surveys include several important analvtical tools: 

Values Survey, a tool to document if values have been defined and implemented. 

Management Practices Survey, a tool to document employee attitudes toward 
Growth and training, Respect and recognition, Information, Potential tapped, 
Empowerment, and Support. 

Resource Management Survey, a tool to document employee ratings. of 
resources provided and human resource management functions. 

Management Philosophy Profile to assess and modify each manager's and 
supervisor's philosophy towards relationships with subordinates in order to gain 
greater adherence to organizational values and foster accomplishment of the 
mission. 

Job Duty Questionnaire to document work experience, special skills, reporting 
relationships, and job assignments. 

Organizational Climate Survey: Our proprietary tool to measure the cultural 
health of an organization based on sixty key indicators, grouped into the following 
sub-scales: 

Understanding of city and department goals and strategies 
Information and communications 
Management receptivity to change 
Management and supervisory capabilities 
Work group problem solving 
Work group coordination and cooperation 
Employee involvement 
Productivity and service quality 
Quality emphasis 
Working conditions 
Compensation and benefits 
Career opportunities 

The survey results would be compiled by the twelve scales and stratified by major 
organizational sub-units, then compared to survey data from other Mercer Group 
clients. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 9 
Proposal to the C& of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



111. WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE 

This chapter of the proposal describes each task and deliverable in the work plan, and defines a 
schedule for timely completion of all deliverables. 

A. WORK PLAN 

The Work Plan is organized into five tasks and a number of subtasks. A proposed project 
schedule follows the work plan. 

Task 1: Proiect Initiation and Management. The purpose of Task 1 is to start the 
project with full agreement on objectives and scope, Work Plan, schedule, and deliverables; 
collect basic data on the organization; and perform ongoing project administration. Subtasks are: 

P Subtask la: Project Startup. The project team will meet with the Project Steering 
Committee and Liaison to introduce our staff; confirm project objectives, scope, work 
plan, schedule, and deliverables; schedule initial factfinding meetings (if not arranged in 
advance); arrange logistics (e.g. office space, phones); and confirm the content of the 
Employee Questionnaires and Surveys. 

P Subtask lb: General Research. We will collect and analyze previously published 
materials, such as budgets, financial reports and audits, organization charts, job 
description, prior studies, policy and procedure manuals, and management reports that 
relate to the project. Specific information that we will gather at Kickoff includes: 

Descriptions and diagrams of planning processes 
Copies of strategic, operational, capital, and functional plans 
Codes and regulations 
Budgets and financial reports 
Library organization and staffing plans, job descriptions, pay plan 
Library reports, brochures, statistics, flowcharts, and performance measures 
Inventory of facilities, equipment, information systems, and other resources 

P Subtask lc: Questionnaires and Surveys. As appropriate to the scope of the study, we 
will tailor, distribute, collect, and analyze the Employee Questionnaires and Surveys, 
which will be distributed just after the Kickoff Meeting and be the foundation for staff 
interviews in Task 2. 

P Subtask Id: Project Management. The project director and manager will perform 
ongoing project management tasks such as client status meetings, billings, internal 
administration, planning, and quality control. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Task 2: Fact Finding. The purpose of this task is to document current practices and 
resources and to develop data for analysis in Task 3. Subtasks are: 

P Subtask 2a: Assessment Interviews with City and Library Officials and Senior 
Managers. We will interview the Chair of the Library Board, the Library Director, the 
City Manager, the Finance Director, and perhaps other officials and senior staff to 
identify and understand major policy, regulatory, management, organizational, financial, 
and resource management issues affecting the project. 

The PRODUCT of these interviews is initial elements of the SWOT Assessment 
(strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats) and a series of service delivery, 
management, organization and staffing, and operational issues and challenges to analyze. 

P Subtask 2b: Functional Organizational Analysis. We will develop a profile of 
services and service delivery mechanisms, the functional organization plan, and 
department, division, and unit responsibilities through: 

Interviews with the management team to understand DPW's responsibilities and 
services; identify interrelationships with other departments, contractors, and local 
government agencies; and document direct and indirect reporting relationships 

Similar interviews with related departments, contractors, and agencies to confirm 
interrelationships and identify any overlaps or gaps in services 

The PRODUCT of this subtask will be a "Responsibility Map" that identifies service 
gaps and overlaps, duplication of effort, functional fragmentation, misplaced functions, 
communication barriers, and other organizational issues. 

P Subtask 2c: Organization and Staffing Analysis: We will meet with the Library 
Director, department supervisors and employees to document and review: 

Organization plan and reporting relationships 
Staffing plan and work assignments 
Work load and activity statistics 
Employee job descriptions 

The PRODUCTS of this subtask will be two analyses: 

An "Organizational Analysis" that identifies needed improvement in the 
organization plan, reporting relationships, staffing plan, work assignments, and 
staff scheduling and assignments. 

A "Management Practices Analysis" to identify areas of management 
philosophy, practices, and communications that need improvement 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



> Subtask 2d: Operations Review. We will familiarize ourselves with current operations, 
resources, and services through: 

Meetings with managers, supervisors, and employees to review current practices 
Observation of work activities across the library 
Review of policies, procedures, forms, reports, systems, and workflow 
Analysis of operational, workload, and financial data 
Analysis of resources assigned to organizational units 
Comparison of local practices with our national database and experience 
developed during other studies 

The PRODUCTS of this subtask will be a list of operational strengths and weaknesses 
that need to be resolved or analyzed in more detail in Task 3. 

> Subtask 2e: Resource Management Analysis. During our management and 
departmental meetings in Subtasks 2a through 2d, we will collect information and review 
the performance of department and central resource management services, such as 
Facilities, Equipment, Finance, Human Resources/Personnel, Information Technology, 
and PurchasingIMaterials Management. 

The PRODUCT of this subtask will be a list of administrative and financial issues and 
problem areas that need to be analyzed in more detail in Task 3. 

P Subtask 2f: Benchmarking Analysis. We will analyze data on the Library's services, 
service levels, and organization and staffing based on our team's experience and in 
comparison with up to four comparable local library systems in Alabama and across the 
Southeast. 

The data will relate to services provided, service levels and statistics, service delivery 
structure, and the organizational and staffing structure. To facilitate collection of data, 
we ask that the Library Director send a request for information that we will prepare. 

The PRODUCT of this analysis will be a presentation of key data elements and a 
narrative discussion of lessons for the City and the Library. 

> Subtask 2g: Stakeholder Interviews. We will meet with each member of the Library 
Board and representatives of the Friends of the Library and the Mountain Brook Library 
Foundation to explore their role in library services and to assess quality, efficiency, and 
effectiveness of services provided by the Library. 

The PRODUCT of this subtask will be a customer-oriented assessment of the 
performance of the Library, as well as additional input to the SWOT Assessment. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



> Subtask 2h: Status Reports. The purpose of this task is to ensure that Mercer and the 
Steering Committee agree on core facts and issues before we begin Analysis and Draft 
Report preparation in Task 3. 

Based on activities to date, we will provide several written status reports and meet with 
the Project Steering Committee, monthly or at key milestones, to review project activities 
to date and discuss preliminary findings and issues identified during Tasks 1 and 2. 

Task 3: Analysis, Development o f  Findings and Recommendations, 
and Draft Report. The purpose of this task is to analyze Task 1 and 2 data, develop 
findings and preliminary recommendations, and prepare a draft report. During this subtask, our 
team may revisit Mountain Brook to follow-up on open items, collect additional data, or seek 
clarification of information gathered earlier in the project. 

> Subtask 3a: Analysis of Factfinding Information. We will analyze organizational, 
operational, technical, and financial data to support preparation of several task reports: 

Governance: Legal, regulatory, and policy requirements affecting the Library. 

Organizational Culture: Employee and stakeholder issues from interviews and 
questionnaires and the results of Mercer surveys. 

Strategic Direction: Vision, mission, strategies, initiatives, values; goals and 
objectives; and performance measures. 

Functional Organizational Structure: Service/functional alignment across 
Library departments; role of contractors and inter-local agreements; and 
alternative service delivery approaches. 

Organization and Staffing: Management organization plan; staffing levels, 
allocations, roles, duties, skills, and experience; and current and projected 
workload levels. 

Operations: Operational strengths and weaknesses that impact organization and 
staffing; quality and quantity issues relating to work products and services; and 
implementation of the Mercer Model for Managing the Numbers. 

Resource Management: Adequacy of internal and city support services, training 
and employee development program, classification of positions. 

Benchmarking: Practices in benchmarked governments that offer lessons for the 
library. 

Performance Measures: Performance measurement and reporting practices. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



P Subtask 3b: Findings and Preliminary Recommendations. We will compile our 
findings and develop preliminary recommendations. 

> Subtask 3c: Draft Report. Our findings and preliminary recommendations will be 
documented in a written, draft report, which will be sent to the Project Steering 
Committee for review. 

Task 4: Management Review. The purpose of this task is to review the draft report 
with the Project Steering Committee. We expect that the Committee will complete its review 
within ten working days of receipt of the draft report. 

Key members of the project team then will meet with the Committee to walk through the report 
to identify areas needing correction, further explanation, expansion, or modification, to discuss 
alternative recommendations, and to identify implementation issues and timetables. 

We also will meet with the Library Director, department managers, and employees to present 
highlights of the reporting and to review preliminary recommendations. 

Task 5: Final Report. The purpose of this task is to prepare and present our final report. 

P Subtask 5a: Final Report. We will incorporate all required changes identified in Task 4 
and issue the final report to the City and the Library. The final report will include an 
implementation plan. 

P Subtask 5b: Final Presentation. We will present our final report to the Library Board, 
Library Director and staff, City Council, and City Manager. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 14 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



B. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The proposed project schedule is based on the assumptions that City and Library officials and 
employees will be reasonably available for interviews and site visits and that the Steering 
Committee will be able to review and comment on the draft reports within ten (10) days of 
receipt. The proposed four-month project schedule for the project is presented below by task. 

Task and Description Start - Finish 

Pro-iect Management 
la. Kickoff Week 1 Week 1 

Meeting 
lb. Research Week 1 Week 4 
1 c. Questionnaires/Surveys Week 1 Week 4 
1 d. Administration Week 1 Week 17 

Fact Finding 
2a. Assessment Interviews Week 1 Week 4 
2b. Functional Analysis Week 1 Week 7 
2c. OrganizationlStaffing Week 1 Week 7 
2d. Operations Review Week 1 Week 7 
2e. Resources Review Week 1 Week 7 
2f. Benchmarking Week 1 Week 7 
2g. Status Reports Week 4 ,8  Week 4 ,8  Status report 

Analysis 
3a. Analysis Week 9 Week 10 
3 b. Preliminary Findings 

and Recommendations Week 11 Week 11 
3c. Draft Report Week 11 Week 12 Draft Report 

Client Review 
4a. Client Review Week 13 Week 14 
4b. Draft Review Week 15 Week 15 Meeting 

Final Report 
5a. Final Report Week 15 Week 16 Final Report 
5b. Presentation Week 17+ Week 17+ Presentation 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 15 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



ZV. PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND 
STAFFING 

This chapter of the proposal identifies the project team and client responsibilities. 

A. PROJECT TEAM 

The Mercer Group and our project specialists regularly team on management and organizational 
consulting projects. We believe that the combination of Mercer's management consulting skills 
in strategic planning, service delivery alternatives, and management and operations of local 
government departments and our technical staffs work and consulting experience in engineering, 
public works management and operations, administrative and financial services, and performance 
management create a team that "covers all the bases" for a study of this kind. 

The project team includes the project director, project manager, and technical specialists who are 
described below. Note that members of the proposed Mercer team have personally 
conducted the projects listed in Section V and the Attachments. 

Project Director 

James L. Mercer C M C ,  founder and president of the Mercer Group, will direct the project 
and be responsible for the quality of our services. He also will contribute to the review of 
strategic, organizational, and management issues. 

A former local government official, Mr. Mercer has worked on over 250 state and local 
government management consulting projects in a thirty year consulting career. Additionally, he 
has authored over 200 articles and five books, including Public Management Systems, Managing 
Urban Government Services, and Strategic Planning for the Public Sector. 

Project Manager 

Stephen D. Egan, Jr., a Mercer Group senior vice-president, will serve as our project 
manager and lead consultant. He is a former Fulton County, Georgia, Budget official whose 
responsibilities included analysis of department budget requests, internal consulting, and special 
projects for the County Manager and Board of Commissioners. One of Steve's responsibilities 
was budget development and monitoring for the Atlanta-Fulton County Library System. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Steve also served as interim Public Services and Water Director for the City of Highland Park, 
Michigan, under the direction of a state-appointed Emergency Financial Manager. 
Responsibilities included caretaking of the closed library and books, and grounds and facility 
maintenance. 

In thirty years of consulting with state and local governments, he has performed over 160 
management studies, including the 2003-2004 Organization and Staffing study and 2012 Public 
Works study for the City of Mountain Brook, as well as most of the studies referenced in the 
cover letter and the Summary of Qualifications chapter of the proposal. He is about to 
commence a Park & Recreation Management Study for the City of Mountain Brook. 

Steve's library studies include Athens-Clarke County, Georgia; Atlanta-Fulton County; Cobb 
County, Georgia: Iberia Parish, Louisiana; Port Arthur, Texas; Two Rivers, Wisconsin; Winona 
County, Minnesota; the State of Iowa; and the New Jersey State Library. 

Steve is a specialist in strategic planning; service delivery alternativeslshared services; 
organizational development; administrative and financial services; and public works, utilities, 
recreation, and maintenance operations. 

Library Svecialist 

Anne Haimes, our library specialist, is the interim director of the Atlanta-Fulton County 
Library System. In her 30-year career with the library, Anne has served as a Children's 
Librarian, Branch Manager, Branch Group Manager, and Interim Director (twice). 

She holds a Master of Library Science degree from Emory University and a Bachelor of Science 
degree in Journalism from the University of Florida. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 17 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



B. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

We request that client officials and staff support the project in the following three primary roles: 

P Project Liaison: Facilitates the scheduling of interviews and coordinate logistics, as well 
as assists in the collection of benchmarking information from other communities. We 
assume the Library Director will serve in this role. 

9 Project Steering Committee: Attends periodic meetings to review the progress of our 
work and reviews and comments on draft deliverables. We assume the City Manager, 
Chair of the Library Board, Library Director, and Finance Director will serve as the 
Project Steering Committee. 

9 Factfinding Assistance: Generally, City and Library officials and staff need to be 
available for interviews, site visits, and observation of operations, and be able to provide 
financial and operational data. Measurable tasks include: 

Benchmarking: Library staff will distribute letters prepared by Mercer and 
collect data from up to four other cities in the benchmarking survey. We expect 
that this will require no more than 2 hours of staff time. 

Questionnaires and Surveys: Library staff will need about one to two hours to 
complete questionnaires and surveys. 

Except as defined above, we do not expect client personnel to have a significant role in 
conducting and supporting the project. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



V. SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 
This chapter of the proposal provides background information on the Mercer Group, provides 
summary descriptions of recent projects, and lists references. 

A. INTRODUCTION TO THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 

Key Facts About Our Firm 

The Mercer Group, Inc. is a management consulting firm incorporated in the State of Georgia 
and operating nationwide, with strongly established areas of practice in the Southeast and 
Midwest, and a growing Far West practice. Our thirty professional consultants work out of a 
network of eighteen offices across the United States. 

Corporate Address: 

Southeast Regional Offices: 

Contacts Persons: 

PMB 511 
5579-B Chamblee-Dunwoody Road 
Atlanta, Georgia 30338 

Chesapeake, Virginia 
Hollywood, Florida 
MariettaIAtlanta, Georgia 
New Orleans, Louisiana 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
Sarasota, Florida 

James L. Mercer, project director 
President and CEO (Atlanta and Santa Fe Offices) 
(505) 466-9500 Office 
(505) 466- 1274 Fax 
jmercer @ mercergrou~inc.com 

Stephen D. Egan, Jr., project managerhead consultant 
Senior Vice-President (MariettaIAtlanta Office) 
(770) 425-1775 Office 
(770) 335-3245 Cell 
(770) 425-8561 Fax 
segan @ mercergroupinc.com 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Brief History o f  the Firm 

James L. Mercer, a long-term public sector management consultant, started his own firm in 1981 
and in 1984 merged it with another consulting firm, Wolfe and Associates. In 1986, Mr. Mercer 
acquired the Human Resources and Organizational Consulting Practice of Wolfe and Associates, 
using this acquisition as the basis for founding Mercer, Slavin, & Nevins, Inc. (MSN). 

In early 1990, he sold his interest in MSN and founded The Mercer Group, Inc. The Marietta, 
Lansing, Raleigh, Santa Fe, Wiemar, and other area offices were added as our client base, 
practice areas, and staffing grew. 

Business Model 

The Mercer Group, Inc. is a Consortium Model firm, with a core of key staff members 
supplemented by associated independent consultants and specialty firms. The consortium 
members work together regularly and have long personal and professional relationships. This 
business model allows us to: 

> Staff each engagement with precisely the right mix of consulting professionals, who have 
the specific managerial, functional, and technical skills needed to fully satisfy the project 
objectives. 

> Eliminate pressure to assign salaried staff who may be available, but lack the experience 
or capabilities necessary to be effective and efficient in serving our clients. 

> Offer competitive rates for very senior consultants due to our reduced administrative and 
overhead costs. 

Client Base and Specialties 

The Mercer Group, Inc. provides exceptionally high quality consulting services to a wide range 
of public sector clients: 

> State government agencies, 
> Local governments (counties, cities, towns, and villages), 
> Utilities (electric, gas, stormwater, water, and wastewater), 
> Transit Authorities, Health Care agencies, and Special Districts, 
> School Districts, 
> Colleges and Universities, and 
> Some private sector clients. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 20 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



Specialty practice areas of our firm include: 

> Strategic planning and policy studies 
> Service delivery alternatives, including governmental and functional consolidations and 

collaboration, contracting and privatization, and managed competition 
> Management, organizational, operations, and productivity improvement 
> Organization development and training 
> Human resource management, compensation and classification studies, and performance 

management systems 
> Financial and budgetary management 
> Executive recruitment 

Our consultants have conducted successful planning, management, and organizational 
consulting assignments for over 500 public sector organizations and over 1500 executive 
recruitment assignments. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. typically works with strong organizations that recognize the value of 
outside assistance and are prudent enough to solicit it and apply it. Our clients include some of 
the most successful public sector organizations in the United States. 

Code o f  Ethics 

The Mercer Group subscribes to the Codes of Ethics of the International CityICounty 
Management Association (ICMA) and the Institute of Management Consultants. James L. 
Mercer, PresidentICEO, and David Vondle, Senior Vice-President, are Certified Management 
Consultants through the Institute. 

EEO Comvliance 

In its own internal operations and in its consulting practice, The Mercer Group, Inc. is in full 
compliance with E.E.O.C. regulations. Because executive search is a portion of our consulting 
practice, we are very much aware of the regulations for equal employment opportunity, and we 
fully comply with those regulations. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



B. REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

We approach comprehensive organizational and operations studies in an integrated manner based 
on our Fifty Management Issues, as well as project-specific issues identified by our clients. The 
project descriptions that follow document successful projects for public libraries. 

> Athens-Clarke County, Georgia: Steve Egan conducted an information 
technology needs assessment and developed an IT strategic plan for all county services 
with a focus on library, park & recreation, public works, and utility services. 

> Atlanta-Fulton County Library: While employed by the Fulton County Finance 
Department, Steve Egan was responsible for the library system's budget. Later as a 
consultant, Steve and two other consultants assisted the library with board training, a 
board manual, and a rethinking of the budget structure and process. 

> Cobb County, Georgia, and Its Six Cities: Steve Egan conducted a service 
delivery structure project that included library services in the county and coordination of 
the County library system and one city library. 

> Iberia Parish, Louisiana: Steve Egan conducted parish-wide Management and 
Organizational study that included the library system. 

> State of Iowa: Steve Egan served on a team that assessed the organizational structure 
and reporting relationships of state governments, including the organizational placement 
of state library services. 

> State of New Jersey: Steve Egan served on a team reviewing technology application 
at the New Jersey State Library. 

> Port Arthur, Texas: Jim Mercer and Steve Egan conducted a city-wide Management 
and Performance Review that included the public library. 

> Two Rivers, Wisconsin: Steve Egan conducted a Management Assessment of the 
city's public library. 

> Waukesha, Wisconsin: As part of a citywide Organizational Analysis, Steve Egan 
reviewed library services. 

> Winona County, Minnesota: Steve Egan conducted a county-wide Management 
Audit that included library services. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



C. REFERENCES 

References are provided for the following recently completed projects. References for other 
projects can be provided upon request. 

Fulton County, Georgia (Library and Other Studies) 

ROBERT J. REGUS, former County Manager 
City Manager, Alpharetta, Georgia 
678-297-6010 
bregus@alpharetta.ga.us 

Port Arthur, Texas (City-wide Study including the Library) 

JOHN COMEAUX, Assistant City Manager-Operations 
409-983-8189 

ARTHUR THIGPEN, Human Resources Director 
409-983-8218 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 23 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



VZ. COST PROPOSAL 
Based on our understanding of the project's objectives, scope, issues list, work plan, and 
deliverables defined earlier in the proposal, our total fees and expenses for the Management 
and Organizational Study of the Library will be $27,500. 

Expenses for travel, report production, administrative support, and the like are included in the 
above not-to-exceed cost proposal and amount to about 20% of professional fees. 

This quotation is firm for a period of 90 days from the date of this proposal and is based on the 
budgeted hours for the proposed project team at each member's hourly billing rate, plus expenses 
(travel, hotel, meals, administrative support, etc.). 

The budget is developed based on the following hourly billing rates for our professional staff. 
Any supplemental work by the project team would be billed at these hourly rates. 

Project Director 
Project Manager 
Lead Consultant 
Consultants 

We propose to submit bills as follows: 

> Project Initiation: 10% of the total cost at project initiation. 

P Progress Bills: Milestone or Monthly progress bills based on actual fees and expenses for 
a total of an additional 75% of the total project cost. 

P Final Bill: A final bill for the remaining 15% of the project budget upon delivery of the 
final report. 

Based on our prior studies, we expect that we have adequate insurance coverage in place to 
meet City and Library requirements for consultants. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 
Proposal to the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, for a Library Study 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
DATED OCTOBER 28,2013 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and The Mercer Group, Inc. ("the Contractor") dated October 
28,2013. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or  remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or supplement of or  to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged 
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (this) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Payment Charges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

Indemnification; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or Remedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Clroice of Law; Cltoice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto sl~all be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Construction ofAddendum. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a vrovision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 28th day of October, 2013. 

The Mercer Group, Inc. 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-161 

WHEREAS, $ 1 1-52-77 of the Alabama Code sets forth the required procedure for the passage of 
ordinances concerning zoning; and 

WHEREAS, said Code section provides in pertinent part as follows: 

No ordinance shall be passed by any municipal corporation under the 
authority of this article unless and until the proposed ordinance has been 
published . . . at least 15 days in advance of its passage and in a newspaper 
of general circulation published within the municipality, or, if there is no 
such newspaper, then by posting the proposed ordinance in four conspicuous 
places within the municipality . . . 

ALA. CODE $ 1 1-52-77 (1 975); and 

WHEREAS, according to said code section, if there is no newspaper of general circulation published 
within the City of Mountain Brook, the City's statutory notice obligations with regard to zoning ordinances or 
amendments thereto are satisfied by posting the ordinance in four conspicuous places; and 

WHEREAS, the Attorney General has determined as follows with regard to the publication of 
newspapers: 

A newspaper is published at the place where it is entered in the post office 
and where it is first put in circulation and not at the place where it is printed. 
Furthermore, a newspaper is considered to be published at the location 

where it has its principal office and where its form and content are 
determined. 

Whether a newspaper is entered in the post office and first put in circulation 
in that mcnicipality so as to be "a newspaper of general circulation published 
in the municipality" is a question of fact to be determined by the city 
governing body. 

Opinion to Honorable Patrick H. Boone, dated October 2 1,20 10, A.G. No. 201 1-005 (internal citations 
omitted); and 

WHEREAS, the Birmingham News, while a newspaper of general circulation in the City, is not 
published in the City of Mountain Brook, as it is not first placed into circulation in the City, nor is the principal 
office where its form and content are determined located in the City of Mountain Brook; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the Birmingham News is not a "newspaper of 
general circulation published within the municipality," and that there is no other such newspaper that satisfies 
the criteria in ALA. CODE $ 1 1-52-77 (1 975). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that, 
after due consideration, the Birmingham News shall not be considered as a newspaper of general circulation 
published within the municipality as contemplated in ALA. CODE $1 1-52-77 (1 975). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, because there is no such newspaper of general circulation 
published within the municipality, the notice requirements concerning zoning ordinances may be satisfied by 
posting proposed zoning ordinances in four conspicuous places within the City or by other means permitted by 
law. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Planner and City Attorney are authorized and directed 
to review the Zoning Ordinance of the City and to present the Council with proposed changes to any article or 
provision requiring notice by newspaper publication, which said changes shall eliminate any such requirement, 
consistent with the deterniinations set forth in this resolution. 

ADOPTED: The - day of October, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The - day of October, 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to be a 
true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Al'abama at 
its meeting on October - 2013, as same appears in the minutes of the record of said meeting. 

Dated this the - day of October, 20 13. 

City Clerk 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
ORDINANCE NO. 1896 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAMA FROM RESIDENCE-D TO RESIDENTIAL INFILL DISTRICT (RID), AND THE 

APPROVAL OF A MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
follows: 

1. Amendment of Zonin~  Ordinance and Map. The zoning ordinance of the City of Mountain Brook 
and zoning map established under authority of Section 129-17 of the Mountain Brook City Code are hereby 
amended by rezoning the property described hereinbelow from its present "Residence-D" zoning classification 
under Chapter 129, Article V, of said Code to a "Residential Infill District (RID)" zoning classification as 
described in Chapter 129, Article XXVIII, and that the development of the subject property shall be governed 
by the zoning standards set forth in the RID Rezoning Application and Master Development Plan. 

2. Master Development Plan. The Master Development Plan and the materials submitted by the 
applicant, as required by Section 129-497 of the Mountain Brook City Code, are made a part hereof and are 
specifically incorporated herein by reference, said Plan and materials constituting regulatory standards for use 
of the affected Property, subject to modification only as provided for in Article XXVIII, Chapter 129 of the 
Mountain Brook City Code. 

3. Description of Affected Proper@. The property that is the subject of the rezoning approved by this 
ordinance is described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in the Southwest quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 17 South, 
Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, said parcel being a part of Lot 1 of Brown Development L.L.C. 
Addition to Mountain Brook as recorded in Map Book 207, Page 88 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at a found 1 inch solid pipe marking the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of the 
Southwest Quarter of said Section 33; thence run South along the West line of said Section for a distance of 
376.72 feet to a set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING 
of the parcel herein described; thence continue along the last described course for a distance of 3 1.64 feet to a 
set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence leaving said Section line turn an interior angle to the 
right of 52 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance of 426.46 feet to a 
set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle to the right of 307 degrees 3 1 
minutes 38 seconds and run in a Southerly direction for a distance of 332.05 feet to a found 2 inch capped pipe, 
said point lying on the Northerly Right of Way of Montclair Road (80' R.O.W.), said point also lying on a 
non-tangent curve to the I&, said curve having a radius of 3759.82 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 36 
minutes 40 seconds, an interior angle to the right to chord of 57 degrees 33 minutes 20 seconds, and a chord 
distance of 171.32 feet; thence run along the arc of said curve and said Right of Way for a distance of 171.34 
feet to set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence leaving said Right of Way turn an interior angle 
right from chord of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 seconds and run in a Northerly direction for a distance of 
332.79 feet to a set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle right of 96 degrees 
30 minutes 42 seconds and run in a Westerly direction for a distance of 17.16 feet to a set 518 inch capped 
rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle right of 3 18 degrees 09 minutes 08 seconds and run in 
a Northeasterly direction for a distance of 63.3 1 feet to a set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence 
turn an interior angle to the right of 37 degrees 10 minutes 14 seconds and run in a Westerly direction for a 
distance of 48.03 feet to a set 518 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle to the 
right of 140 degrees 32 minutes 19 seconds and run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 592.49 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 



Said parcel contains 65,099 Square Feet or 1.49 Acres more or less. 

4. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly 
repealed. 

5. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this 
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication as provided 
by law. 

ADOPTED: The day of ,2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The day of ,2013. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to be a 
true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
its meeting held on , 2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting, and 
published by posting copies thereof on ,2013, at the following public places, which 
copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



Recommended by Planning Commission for Approval on October 7,2013. 

Petition Summary 
Consider a request to rezone the Morningside property (on Montclair Road) from Res-D 
to Residential Infill District (RID), and the approval of a master development plan. 

Background 
In 2002, the City Council approved a request to rezone the subject property from Res-D 
to RID, and the approval of a master development plan. In conjunction with said 
approval the majority of the infrastructure and perimeter walls were installed on the site. 
The remainder of the development did not transpire and the property has been in an 
undeveloped state for several years. 

The current property owner purchased the property with the intention of developing it as 
previously approved (fourteen (14) detached single family dwellings). Ten (1 0) of these 
SFR's were thought to be in the City of Mountain Brook and four (4) in the City of 
Birmingham. Covenants and restrictions concerning the minimum square footage of the 
homes, and the minimum price points for the homes (among other items) were 
incorporated into the zoning approval and made a part of the master development plan. 

Since the purchase of this property at least two major findings have occurred. The first is 
that the property along what is referred to as the southern border of the "ax head," which 
was to contain the northerly five (5) lots in Mountain Brook has been determined to 
actually be in the City of Birmingham. The second is that the legal description that was 
submitted with the 2002 rezoning request was incorrect, so the 1 1 -year-old RID zoning is 
not valid; hence the current application to re-rezone the property from Res-D to RID. 

Analysis 
The proposal for the subdivision now includes the construction of four (4) detached 
single family dwellings on the Mountain Brook portion of the site (mainly the "ax 
handle" fronting on Montclair Road), and to construct sixteen (1 6) townhomes on the 
Birmingham portion. The proposed covenants for the project are largely the same as 
previously approved, with the minimum square footage of the SDR's at 3,000 and the 
minimum price point at $41 0,000. Specific landscape, lighting and other details are 
proposed to be the same as previously approved. 

Please see: 
Tab 1 for conceptual architectural renderings; 
Tab 2 for title binder; 
Tab 3 for proposed covenants; 
Tab 4 for proposed articles of incorporation for the Association; 
Tab 5 for landscaping; 
Tab 6 for traffic information; 



Tab 7 for previously -approved development plan 

Affected Regulation 
Section 129-433 (zoning amendments) and Section 129-497 (RID master development 
plan requirements). 

Appends 
LOCATION: 391 6 Montclair Road 

ZONING DISTRICT: Res-D 

OWNER: NJK, LLC - Charles Kessler, Jr. 

AGENT: David Averyt 

ACREAGE: 
1.49 MIL Mountain Brook 
2.03 M/L Birmingham 
3.52 M'L entire property 





~ o ~ n i ,  AL. map vm ,-- .,. 



PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION,

RECORDING

PURPOSES OR

IMPLEMENTATION

No. 27887
PROFESSIONAL



PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION,

RECORDING

PURPOSES OR

IMPLEMENTATION

No. 27887
PROFESSIONAL



at Mountain Brook 

REZONING APPLICATION 



at Mountain Brook 

September 13,2013 

City of Mountain Brook, Planning Commission 
Attn: Ms. Dana Hazen, City Planner 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Re: Rezoning Application (per § 129-432) 
Calton Hill Master Development Plan 

Dear Ms. Hazen: 

.- iqn ,422 and 

Ao NJK, LLC Dcvelopman t 
3505 Bent ltivcr 1Zcl 

Birmiilgham, Nd 35 2 16 
(205) 985-7 17 1 

Please accept our application for rezoning of Calton Hill at Mountain Brook, our master planned 
development located on Montclah Road. What follows are our responses to the r e  I . --  - -  

1-49' - f Mountain Brook's Code. 

1. Owner. NJI< LLC 
Charles G. ICessler, Jr., Manager 
3505 Bent River Rd. 
Birmingham, AL 3521 6 
(205) 985-7171 

2. Applicant. David N. Averyt (attorney-in-fact for NJI< LLC) 
3505 Bent River Rd. 
Birmingham, AL 35216 
(205) 218-3176 

3. Zoning. Despite efforts to rezone the parcel over ten years ago, it is currently zoned Residence D (R- 
D).* We propose rezoning it to Residential Infd District (RID). 

4. Location. The property is located at 3916 Montclah Road. The entire site contains approximately 3.52 
acres, 1.49 acres of which is under the jurisdiction of Mountain Brook and the other 2.03 acres under the 
jurisdiction of Birmingham. 

5. Tax Parcel Tax IDS. 23-00-33-3-001-004.000 and 23-00-33-3-001-006.000 

6. Legal Descriptions. 

Entire site: 
A parcel of land situated in the Southwest quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, said parcel being all 
of Lot 1 of Brown Development L.L.C. Addition to Mountain Brook as recorded in 
Map Book 207, Page 88 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, and an Acreage parcel and being more particularly described as follows: 

* The Council adopted Ord. No. 1546, which purportedly rezoned Jim Brown's Morningside English Villas development 
from R-D to the newly adopted (at the time) RID, on August 26,2002. Unfortunately, the legal description contained in 
the adopted ordinance described property in Birmingham, not Mountain Brook. Ordinance No. 1546, together with Mr. 
Brown's application, is attached at Tab 7. 



Commence at the Northwest Corner of thc Northwest Quarter of thc Southweel 
Quarter of said Section 33; thence run in a Southerly direction along the Wetlt liilc of 
said Section for a distance of 1314.90 feet to a found 1 inch solid pipe marlcing the 
Northwest comer of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said Sccriotl 
and being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel herein described; thence leaving 
said Section line deflect left 88 degrees 19 minutes 54 seconds and run in an Entlterly 
direction along the North line of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter for a 
distance of 516.43 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence 
leaving said North Quarter-Quarter line deflect right 142 degrees 49 minutes 46 scconds 
and run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 63.31 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped 
rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an exterior angle to the right of 41 degrees 50 
minutes 52 seconds and run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 17.16 feet to a set 
5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle to the left of 96 
degrees 30 minutes 42 seconds and run in a Southerly ditection for a distance of 332.79 
feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS, said point also lying on the 
Northerly Right of Way of Montclair Road (80' R.O.W.), and also lying on a non- 
tangent curve to the right, said curve having a radius of said curve having a radius of 
3759.82 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 36 minutes 40 seconds, an interior angle to 
the left to chord of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 seconds, and a chord distance of 171.32 
feet; thence run in a Southwesterly direction along the arc of said curve and said right of 
way for a distance of 171.34 feet to a found 2 inch capped pipe; thence leaving said 
Right of Way turn an interior angle to the left from chord of 57 degrees 33 minutes 20 
seconds and run in Northerly direction for a distance of 332.05 feet to a set 5/8 inch 
capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an exterior angle to the right of 52 
degrees 28 minutes 22 seconds and run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 
426.46 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS, said point also lying on 
the Western line of said Section 33; thence deflect right 127 degrees 47 minutes 35 
seconds and run in a Northerly direction along said Western line for a distance of 408.36 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 153,290 Square Feet or 3.52 
Acres More or Less. 

i~otcntain - Brook P a d  
A parcel of land situated in the Southwest quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, said parcel being a 

part of Lot 1 of Brown Development L.L.C. Addition to Mountain Brook as recorded in 
Map Book 207, Page 88 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at a found 1 inch solid pipe marking the Northwest comer of the Southwest 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 33; thence run South along the West 
line of said Section for a distance of 376.72 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped 
CA-560LS, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the parcel herein 
described; thence continue along the last described course for a distance of 31.64 feet to 
a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence leaving said Section line turn an 
interior angle to the right of 52 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds and run in a 
Northeasterly direction for a distance of 426.46 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar 



stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle LO the right of 307 degrce~ 31 minutce 
38 seconds and run in a Southerly direction for a distance of 332.05 feet to a found 2 
inch capped pipe, said point lying on the Northerly IQht of Wny of Montclnir Road (80' 
R.O.W.), said point also lying on a non-tangent curve to thc left, said curve having n 
radius of 3759#82 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 36 minutce 40 seconds, an interior 
angle to the right to chord of 57 degrees 33 minutes 20 seconds, and a chord distance of 
171.32 feet; thence run along the arc of said curve and said Right of Way for a distancc 
of 171.34 feet to set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence leaving said 
Right of Way turn an interior angle right from chord of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 
seconds and run in a Northerly direction for a distance of 332.79 feet to a set 5/8 inch 
capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle right of 96 degrees 30 
minutes 42 seconds and run in a Westerly direction for a distance of 17.16 feet to a set 
5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior angle right of 318 
degrees 09 minutes 08 seconds and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance of 
63.31 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence turn an interior 
angle to the right of 37 degrees 10 minutes 14 seconds and run in a Westerly direction 
for a distance of 48.03 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped CA-560LS; thence 
turn an interior angle to the right of 140 degrees 32 minutes 19 seconds and run in a . . Soud ster' 'irectior: * : of '^7.49 ' OF BEGINNING. 

>posed Use. Calton Hill is an upscale, gated residential community designed for mature couples who 
typically have no children at home and desire a carefree lifestyle enhanced by a conveniently located, modern 
home. Proximity to Crestline Village is crucial to Calton Hill's attractiveness to residents. The portion of 

located in Mountain Brook features four single family detached homes with a minimum of 3,000 s q . q  
between the City and Mt. Brown ten years ago: -he portion located in Birmingham features ' 

slxteen large, high-end townhomes. The entire development will be designed with an old-world English R 
aesthetic. Cop--- -'-2tches of Calton Hill as well as p:---res of similar developments that we have built are 
attached a& 

8. Covenants and Restrictions. Attached at! copy of the property's title exceptions as well as 
zopies ( ovenants and restrictions ted i n i t i t l e  binder.  ena ants that the owner 
intends to unpose on the property is attached ovenants, r---ate streets, 
'~uffers, planted areas, light poles, and other owned and maintained 
lomeowner's association established for that purpose, the financing for which will be provided D 
assessments against the homeowners. A -.'- '-- - f Incorporation and Bylaws are attached 1 ao 4 .  0 
9. Neighbor Concerns. We have met personally with many contiguous landowners. Only one neighbor, 
the neighbor to the east, is under Mountain Brook jurisdiction. All others are under Birmingham's 
jurisdiction. The neighbors to the east and southwest are commercial properties. Existing, recorded covenants 
specify the agreements, primarily regarding privacy walls and landscape buffers, reached between Mr. Brown 
and those neighbors. To the northwest is an assisted living facility whose nearest structure is located more 
than 300 feet from our northwest comer. The neighbors to the north, one a small apartment complex and the 
other unimproved land, have expressed their mutual desire to preserve the dedicated 3rd Street right-of-way, 
but our development plan does not currently include that dedicated property. 



10. Impact Mitigation. Since Calton I-Iill is located on a four lane thoroughfnrc between colnmercinl 
properties and across from a multiplex condominium development, the impact of k~creaecd deneity will bc 
minimal. Nonetheless, privacy amenities are planned for the benefit of both commercial workers and Calton 
Hill residents. These amenities include front gates to secure the entrance to the privnte development; n 
privacy wall, part of which currently stands on the property; attractive landscaping for eight and noise 
b-~i and streetscaping, including light posts. tndscape plan and diagrams of other details arc ,,,..,.. 

11. Traffic Study. Attached 
w 

12. Preliminary Site Plan. Enclosed in the pocket. 

If you have any further questions, please call. 

Sincerely, 

David N. Averyt 



-- ............ . . .  

,, I- 

,_. - * . I* 

Montclak Road Development 
concept study 

mw! n-n ., ,, , , , _ - - 







. - ~. ~ I., .? :I:. I 
. -. 

' *  * i s a  
. . 

. 2'- - :  !.,-.?\ :-.- L. , kr "'liA4L' ' 



CHRISTOPIiER 8 ASSOCIATES 
Ih~s nlalenal IS copyrrghl pmiecled ano mag no1 be dupI*~?lod andlor IeF 

rv~lnoul l l ~ e  expressed wrlllen corrceril 0: Chlslopner 8 Assooale 



' a ~ r a l ~ ~ o n d  .~inlxls ZI V O I D ~ ~ O U ~ ~ X  YO ~01~ ld311dr .a  
S4lVI:)OSSV UNV UIkIJOJiMH3 4 0  11I1.10UJ '1llflH JII I O N  O l 4 h  3 V I I I I C I V I I  S l S I l I V  n 





* -  
. Owner's Poliw of Title Insurance - Schedule A 

r Issued by Commonwealth Land ntle Insurance Company 

Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company 

FIle No.: S13-1318 
Address Reference: 

Amount of Insurance: 
Date of Policy: July 8,2013 at 01:52 PM 

Pollcy No.: 81306.09283895 

Premlum: 

1. Name of Insured: 
NJK, LLC 

2. The estate or Interest In the Land that Is insured by thls pollcy is: 
Fee Simple 

3. Titie is vested in: 
NJK, LLC 

4. The Land referred to in this policy is described as follows: 
SEE EXHIBlT A ATTACHED HERETO 

Jefkmm T i e  Carporation Ucense #0188714 
Robert S. Caliento Ucense #lo655920 

A - -  - 
s 

JEFFERSON TITLE CORPORATION, AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY 

ALTA Owner's P o ~ c ~  
Schedule A (Rev 6/06) 
Fonn 1190-l34C 



EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

3 A parcel of land located In the Southwest 1h of the Southwest 1h of Section 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, more 
particularly described as follows: 

Begln at the Northwest corner of the Southwest lh of the Southwest 1h of SectJon 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West 
and run in a Eanerly dlrectlon along the Northern boundary llne of said 112 - H section for a dlstance of 516.43 feet 0 (1 

polnt; thence turn a deflection angle to the rlght of 142 degrees 49 mlnute 46 seconds and run In a Southwesterly . -% dlrectlon for a dlstance of 63.31 feet to a polnt and also a polnt on a curve to the left, sald w e  having a radius of 
3744.83 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 17 mlnutes 27 seconds, a chord dlstance of 149,72 feet and an lnterlor chord 

% angle from tangent of 181 degrees 08 mlnutes 43 seconds; thence run In a Southwesterly direction along the arc of rald 

F; curve for a distance of 149.73 feet; thence turn an lnterlor angle from chord of 181 degrees 08 mlnutes 44 seconds ard 
run in a Southwesterly direction and parallel to the centerllne of the Old L & N Rallroad (abandoned) for a dlstance of 
436.01 feet; thence turn a deflection angle to the rlght of 127 degrees 47 mlnutes 35 seaxis and run In a Northerly . dlrection along West boundary of sald SectJon 33 for a dlstance of 408.36 feet and the Polnt of Beglnnlng, 

'a 
Together with Lot 1, Brown Development, L.L.C. AddlUon to Mountaln Brook, as recorded In Plat Book 207, Page 8 8  of 
the public records of Jefferson County, Alabama; 

The aforesaid property belng collectively described as follows: 
\ 

A portion of the Southwest Quarter of t t ~  Southwest Quarter of Sectlon 33, Townshlp 17 WUI, Range 2 West, Jefferson @ County, Aabama, being more pa,cularly dcr ibed as follows: 

Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of sald Section 33; thence run 
Southerly along the West line of sald Sectlon 33, for a dlstance of 408.36 feet; thence turn an lnterlor angle to the rlght of 
52 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds for a distance of 426.46 feet; thence turn an angle to the leff of 52 degrees 28 
mlnutes 22 seconds for a dlstance of 332.05 feet to a point on a Northerly right of way llne of Monklair Road (80' right of 
way) and a point on a curve belng concave Northwesterly having a radius of 3759.82 feet; thence turn an Interior angle 
to the right Of 57 degrees 33 mlnutes 20 seconds along the chord of sald curve for a chord length of 171.32 feet 
(Delta=02 degrees 36 rnlnutes 40 seconds, Arc Length = 171.34 feet); thence departing sald rlght of way line turn an 
interlor angle of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 seconds from chord of said curve for a distance of 332.79 feet; thence turn 
an Interior angle to the right of 96 degrees 30 minutes 42 seconds and run Northwesterly for a distance of 17.16 feet; 
thence turn an exterior angle b the left of 41 degrees 50 mlnutes 52 seconds for a distance of 63.31 feet; thence turn an 
interior angle to the rlght of 37 degrees 10 minutes 14 seconds and run Westerly for a distance of 516.43 feet to the polnt 
of beginning. 

ALTA Owners 
ExhibltA 



SCHEDULE B 
EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 

Policy No.: 8 1306-89283895 FileNo.: 513-1316 

This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fa08 or expanses) 
which arise by reason of: 

1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levfea 
taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may rwult 
in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by 
the Public Records. 

2. Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the Public records. 

3. Easements or claims of easements, any lien, or right to a Ilen, for services, labor, or materlal hereto or haeaflar 
furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records. 

4. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, and any facts which a correct survey 
and inspection of the premises would disclose and which are not shown by the public records. 

5. Any mineral or mineral rights leased, granted or retained by current or prior owners. 

6. Taxes and assessments for the year 2013 and subsequent years and not yet due and payable. 

5. Easements and building lines as shown on recorded map(s), including but not limited to any notes, conditions, and 
restrictions. 

6. Easement to Alabama Gas Corporation as recorded in Instrument No. 200404/2836. 
i 
4 
\- 7. Right of Way granted to Alabama Power Company by instrument(s) recorded in Instrument No. 2003 1814287 and 

Real Volume 724, Page 590. 

8. Restrictions appearing ,of record in Instrument No. 200408/2187; Instrument ~ 0 . ' 2 0 0  107/8860 (rerecorded in 
Instrument No. 20,000318636) ; Instrument No, 22)040812188 and Instrument No. 200004/322I,but deleting any 
restrictions based on race, color, creed or national origin. 

9. Right of way granted to the Water Works and Sewer Board of the City of Birmingham as recorded in Instrument 
No. 20031 118060 and Instrument No. 20010719786. 

10. Easements for s a n i w  sewer as recorded in Instrument No. 20000312609; lnstrument No. 200003/2606 and 
Instrument No. 200301/5406, 

1 1. Restrictions appearing of record in Real~Volume.1044, Page'874., but deleting any restrictions based on race, color, 
creed or national origin. 

12. Title to all minerals within and underlying the property, together with all mining rights and other rights, privileges, 
immunities and release of damages relating thereto, as recorded in Volume 299, Page 574; Volume 6606, Page 833; 
Real Volume 120, Page 167; Volume 129, Page 599 and Volume 119, Page 427, and any damages relating to the 
exercise of such rights or the extraction of such minerals. 

13. Less and except any part of subject property lying within the right of way of a public road. 

14. Easement as recorded in Real %lume 2234, Page 129. 

15. Rights of utilities, if any, in and to that property vacated by Real Volume 1041, Page 249. 

Exceptions 1-2 are hereby deleted from said Owner's Policy. 

ALTA Own- 
Schedule B 



Wlrumrraanpnpadk 
Bonmnlaurraltw. 
H O I ~  NV m r a  W U U ~ ~ P ~  
UP 
100 OJlork Ptnvy., lldb600 

DE-TION OF COVENANTS AGREE 

cd on Exhibit A attaahed 
hereto and made a part hcrcof (the 

attached hereto and 

by Brow on tho Brown Property of a 

s agreements as heminafter set forth, to quit-cfaim to Brown 
Roadway adjnoenl to the RCOl Property to oflow the 
n Brown, conditioned upon Brown's complying with the 

1. The recital of ficts set P o d  above sre hereby incorporated as if hGninaftcr Mly 
set forth. 

2. Brown shall construct, et its sale cost and expense and within Ule lams to occur of 
@two (2) years after the date of this Agreement, or (fi) one hundred twenty (120) 
days &r final judicial appmval of the abandonment ofsaid3" Street, onthe 
Abaudoned Roadway near rhe boundary l i e  separating the Abandoned Roadway 
and the RCGI Property as shown on mibit C attached hereto and made apart 
here05 a stucco wall with brick columns and brick roll lock top (the "Wall") 
having a hcight of twelve (12) feet, plus or minus, at the Montclait Road end of 



the Wall and stepping down to a height of not less thnn eight ht Brown shaU be 
responsible for and shnll mAintAin the Wall at its sole cost and expcnac. The 
quality and design of the Wall shaU be cornistent with the portions of a wall 
a M y  completed by Brown on the Brown Prop* 
side of the Brown Proparty atxi along the side of the 
side o f  the Brown Pmm. 

ball be developed and used only as n 
sale, with no mox thaa Live buildings or 
on the Abdoaed Roadway, provided that 

d number of the buildings shown on Exhibit C may change, 
event consist of mom than five buildings m portioas of five 
(ii) ia p e w  shall be used for construction by Brown of the 

Properly shall have a period of ten (10) days after receipt o f  such notice to cm 
mob fiiilurc, provided that in the event sucb fiiilure cannot be cwed within ten 
(10) days, the owner of the Brown Property shall have such additionnl h e  as is 
necessary to cure such failure so long as the owner ofthe Brown Property 
commences to cure and diligently prosecutes Ihe cure to compleli011. In the event 
the owmr of the Brown Propcrty fails to complete such cure within such time 
period, the owner of the RCGI Property may correct such fhilure, advancing the 
costs thedbre, and the owna of the Bmwvn Property Wl reimbluse the owner of 
the RCCSI Property for such costs W i n  twenty (20) days afler written demand 
therefbre (including reasonable d m t a t i o n  of the costs and expmes). In the 
event the owner ofthc Brown Properly fails to reimburse the owner of lhe RCGI 

-2- 
I M W - I ~ ~  I ~ - ~ . ~ I U R W ~ / C S M  



Prapcxty W i n  such twenty (20) days, the ownor of tho RCQI Property shall have 
the right to place a Urn against tha B m  and the Abandoned Froprly 
and.8hall have such othw and War rights and remedia as are allowad by law 
and equity. n 

7. Concmmtly with the execution dlhin Agraamant, RCCI.1 
delivered to Brawn a qdt-olaim deed conveying to &own 
to be Abau&ned Roadway adjacent to the RWI Propea. 

the generality ofthe fbtr:going, 
of its obligations hereunder 

cntitied to pay or perform, or causa to be paid or perbrmed 
d Brown shall reimburse the bdcmnitecs on &d made by 

successors-in-title to the Bmwn Property and (he Abandoned Randmy, md 
successors-in-title, assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of lhe lademnitees and 
their respective heits, successors and assigns. 

9. In the event Brown fails to perform its ob1igations under this Agreement, RCGI 
shall have all rights and remedies available tn it in law or in equity. 

10. A11 ~otices, corrseslts and other conrmunications repaind or permitted to be given 
pumaat to this Apemant shan be sufficient if hand-delivered or if mailed by 
U W  Stat- Mail, postage prepaid, d ~ e d  or ngiskrcd snail, relum raoeipt 
requested, or sent by cdmmercial overnight courier, charges pre-paid, to the other 
party hereto at its address below stated or such other address as either of them 
may ddgaak fiom time to time by notice to the other in the manner berein set 



forth. Any notim or consent or othor cammunication mqu(tcd or pcnnitbd to be 
given prusuaut to lbfs Agreemeat sent in ac~rdanct with the firogohg partion of 
this Paragraph 10 shall be deemed &en (i) on tho day such ia a o W y  noeived 

I 

The address of RCGI k 

Wape Morse, Jr. 
CIark, Dolen, Mocie, Oncale &Hi&, P.C. 
800 Shades Creek Pmkway, Suite 850 
Birmingham, A b a  35209 

11. The covenants contained in this Agreement shall mn with end bind the Brown 
Propew and the Abandoned Roadway, shall inure to the benefit of and be 
enforceable by RCGl and/or its successors, assigns or successors in title, a d  shnll 
remain in effect h r  a period ~Ptwenly (20) years born the date of this Agreemeni 

12. This Agreement shall be governed by aad construed in accordance wit. the laws 
ofthe State of Alabama. Any provisions in tbis Agreement which shall prove to 



be Invalid, void or illegal, shall h no way d t b t ,  imp& or invalidate any other 
pr0~iSion8 hereof. 

13. Time is of the essance of this Agreement and eaoh and avmy provision hemof. 
This Agrecmcnt may be excoutcd in any number of oounteqarts, of wNoh 
tihall b c a n a ~ g i d a d d I o f w h i c h ~  c o n s t i t u t a o ~ a n d ~ ~ ~ ~ t .  

Agtwnmt la executed 
her& em not assignabIc 
s~sors-in-t it le  to the 

Dl WITNIBS WHEREOF, the s Agreement to be signed, 
sealed and delivered as ofthe day sad 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 



STATE OF OEOROIA ) 

FULTON C O W  
1 
1 

I, the undersigned Nolary Pubiic in and for said Collilty. In said State, 
Albcrt Q. Schmerge. JJI, whose name, 8s Rwidant of  resow^^ 
Member of RCOI Montalair I, LU: is signed to tbe fbregoiog 
me, acksowledged before me on this day, that being Wonned 
Mshe executed the same voluntarily and with authority on the 

Given under my hand and official seal 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

aid County, in aaid State, hereby outifj' that 
firegoing conveyance, and who 18 known to 

informed of tbe contents of  the conveyance 
authority on the day the same bears date. 

~ i v a % < @ ~ l l  seal this A day of k h  ,2004. 



2lucLk 

A patcd of land located in the Southwest 114 of tba Soutbwwt 114 
Sou& Rmge 2 West, mom pnrtjculerly dacribcd as follows: 

Township 17 South, Rnngt 2 West, and run in an 
line of said % - '/r seotion for a distanae of 516.43 

feet and an interior 

LLC. Addition to Mombin Bmok, a8 d e d  
of Jcfftrson County, Alabma; 

ely described as follows: 

r of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Towmhip I7 South. 
unty. Alnbama, being more particularly described as follows: Lyv en run rthwest Southcrty comer along of the the Southwest West line of Quarter said Scation of the Southwest 33, for a distance Quarler of of 408,36 

t; thence an interior angle to the right of 52 degrees 12 minutes 25 seconds br a distance 
.46 t; thence turn an angle to the IcA of 52 degrees 28 minutes 22 scconds for a distanae 

t to a point on the Northuly rightsf-way line of Montalair Road (80' right-of-way) 
and a point on a m e  being coacwe Northwesterly having a d u s  of 3759.82 feet; thencc turn 
an interior angle lo the right of 57 degrees 33 minutes 20 seconds along the chord 01 said curve 
fir a chord Iength of 171.32 fieet (delta = 02 degrees 36 minutes 40 seconds, arc length = 17134 
feet); thence deputing said right-of-way tine turn an interior angle of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 
seconds fiom ohord of said o w e  Br a distance of 332.79 feet; thence turn an interior nngle to 
the right of 96 degxees 30 minutes 42 seconds and nm Northwesterly ibr a distance of 17.16 fix@ 
thence turn an exterior angle lo the left of 41 degrees 50 minutes 52 seconds for a distance of 
63.31 kt; thencc hun ao interior angle to the right of 37 degrees 10 minutes 14 seconds pnd mn 
Westerly fw a d i c e  of51 6.43 fcot to the point of beginning. 



All being situated in Jefferson County, Alabama 7 







STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

JEfFUSoNCWNIY I 

I. J a m  N. Br9wn. tl) 

m w l e a p a r t h e m o f ~ ~ .  ~~~k 

2 'fhsPropeYtyIstocstedin 

n cinwmts, which awnants 
are a n i b e n s R t 0 t ; t h e ~  

N o ~ l o r o t k M ~ ~ 1 ~ ~ u & . ~ w d f t W l r d u ~ ( ( P P h C M t a i n I n ~ z  
twodwening onW, (indKdwUy, Thwe11lng UrtW and odlecttvely, 'Dwelling UnI6") nray be 
corrPtruded on tb PmplNy* 

2. Ail elght Pnrelllng Units must be completely consbucbed, and cerWicales of 
aotupancy lssrred the*, by August 1,ZOW. 

3. k@ as provided hereinafter, dl Dwelling Units &all be presold, that is, 
Owner must haw entered into a con- form ~ c t l o n  and sate afthe Qwelflng Unlt 

- . I),. .. - "I"' "'- ..- - - . . .  * 3 . -  - 



behm the amtwtian af the Dwelling Unit may bs c m m d ,  a d  no DwelIInfl Unit mqy 
be krftt m a Sperr" or- WWhndl d h e ~ t  (1) at any tlme aRer 
tImammd +- % ~unlt  in b duplex, ttm-n 
d c h e ~ = U I ~ ~ k m ~ , ~ o t l a s p l s r u W u s b U w  a ~ d D B n . o l W q n y d M f b A q ~ ~ M l r b l & h . M P a  

c a m m m d o n a ~ b ~ ~ b 9 h . ~ 1 . 2 ~  ,m4ybetrulttona 

4. rnarameaf~g 

5- 4 d the ei@t Dwelling Units shall have an 

undetsigned hm N. Bmwrt, 111, by hls duly authottaed 
t t d s d n s t r u W m t h e & ~ d ~  .2oc]0. 

Wilthm Robert 8mm. 
as-watt 
for James N. Bnown, I11 



auknow!-*-* 
h g ~ n h b ~ e a o o r ; h ~ n ~ , ~ ~  
same beass d a b  

BMR under my hand t h b , d d B Y d  

A' 





- ' - . -  I . . .  . .,".F-'...- . .. . " -... - - .  - .  
'4 " - . - ... 



sent BY: JAMES N BROWN ISI; I eoa en eerrr: ,lan.lO=W 4t14PM; pago at4 
.--A- w w &- IN : p a w  

XUlr PTAIahebllma - JdCemn l!ocm(y 
I rrr(uy thlr Im-unl nbd om 

2001 JUN 20 P.M. 12:58 



This teatromant wru prepawl by: 

SantbFdK. ZateofPl Eq. 
Holt N 9  Zataoff & Ws~serman, LLP 
100 Gallaia Pkwy, Sdte 600 
AUanta. C3mrgia 30339 

STATE OF GEORGIA ) 

'MESE PRESENTS 

RCGIkk,~ccEri, UC. 
n G e q b  limited liability company 

as "Grantor") does hereby remise, nlcnso and quiiclnlm unto 

JAMES N. BROWN, M, 
an individual resident oftha State of Alabama 

( h d u a f l s  ~ c i k m c l  to as nGtdlltse") all of its interest in thE following dtscnied real estate situated in 
Jeffasan Carudy, Alabama -wit: 

The eastern halfof3rd Strwt located in Jefferson County, Ahbarnu, dcsmied as fbllows: 

A parcel of Land located in the sout?~wcsl aacqunrta of fhe southwest oncquarta ofSeutim 33, 
Township 17 South, Rango 2 West, more pruticufar£y desco'bcd as fi,Ilows: 

Cornmenee at theNorthwc9; caau of the Southwest Qluvtcr of the Southweft Quartcr of Section 33, 
Towmbip 17 Sou& Raagc 2 Wesf d run in a Southcas~crly direction along the Northern boundary lioe 
of said Section 33 far a distance of 51 6.43 f5xt to the post of beginning; thaoe continue along last 



darcrlbed course fbr a discnce of 5.4 1 k t  to a point at tho Eoslcrn right of way lho of3" 8hOG thmw 

Thia Quitclaim Deed k ommtcd conaurmnt 
of e m  data herewith between Grantor sad Oranter; 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto Grantet, hislh 

IN WITNESS -OF, the underti 
2004. 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 



j 
FULTON COUNTY ) 

I 

Given under my hand end affk?hl seal thia 1 doy 



Th& bununnt p~cpanl by: 
IhslbdkZrssdl.W. rg N ~ c a U l h  wuumuq 

DECLARATION OF COYENANT8 AGRE 

A 
THIS DECLARATI 

and entad into this 1' duy 
individual nsident ofthc S 
Georgia limited liability company ("RC 

described on pxhlbit A attached 

described on mibit B attached hereto and 

by Brown on the Bmwn Property of a 
ide English Villas" Brown has obtained 
to abandon 3"' Street {the "Abandoned 
RCGI Properly; and 

welopmcnt of tho Brown Proparty, RCGI has 
hereinafter set forth, to quit-claim to Bmwn 
ent to the RCOI Property to aIIow the 

to vest fuly in Brown, conditioned upon Brown's complying with the 

NO , THEREFORE, fbr and in consideration of the sum ofTen and Nof100 Dollars 
1 hand paid, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of whicl~ arc hmby aJcnowledged w 

by the parties hereto, the parliev hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby promise, declare 
and agree as follows: 

I.  'Ihc recital of Facts set forth above are hereby incorporated as if hereinafter fully 
set forth. 

2. Brown shall construct, at its sole cost and expense and within tb latter to occur of 
(i) two (2) yeats titter the date of this Agreement, or (iii one hundred twenty (120) 
days after frnal judicial approval of the abandonment of said 3' Street, on Ihe 
Abandoned Roadway neat the boundary line separating the Abandoned Roadway 
and lhe RCGI Property as shown on @hibit C atiached hereto and made apmt 



hmuof, a stucco wall witb bIok colunrna and brlok mU look top (tho Wall3 
having a Eight of twelve (12) lkt, plus or minus, at the Montolair Road and of 
the Wall and s t q q h g  down Lo ahaight of not 10s than eight kt. Brown eball be 
ragronaibIcSbrdaballmRtntAintha WaIlatitssabcmst 

Property, md as to a 

bed in item 2 above, 

the owner of fht Brown Property of such EiiIure and the owner of the Brown 
Prom shall bave a period of ten (1 0) days after receipt of su~h notice to cure 
such hilure, provided that in tbe event such Mure cannot be cured within ten 
(1 0) days, thc owner of the Brown hjmy shall hove such additional time ES is 
neoessay to nae such Mure so long as the owner of the Brown Property 
cornme- to cure and diligently prosecutes the cure to camplctioa In the event 
the owner of the Brown Property S l s  to complete such cure within such time 
period, the owner ofthe RCGI P m m  may correct such Mum, advancing the 
costs thedbre, and the owner of the Brown Properly shall reimburse the owner of 
the RCGl Property for such corn drhb twenty (20) days after written demand 



tbmlkre (including reasonable dooumentation of the corn Md axpamu). In the 
emat the owax of the Brown Prop- f;itile to rchbme the ownst of the RCOI 
Property within mob twenty (20) days, the owner of the RCOI PtoparQ abell have 

7. C o w  with ths execution 

dis- d ofconsuhanh and advisors. Brown's o b ~ n s  under 
this paragraph 8 shall be biDding upon its legal ~ e p d i v e s ,  successors, 
mcaesso~in- f i  to tbe Brown Ropmty and the Abandoned Roodway, and 
successof6-in-titIe, assigns, and shall inm to the b e f i t  of the lndemnitets and 
~ r t s p e c t i v e  b e i i  suocessors and assigns 

9. In the event Bmwn fitils to perfbrm its obligations under this AEpeement, RCGI 
shall have all rigb snd remedies aWaMa to it in law or in equity. 

10. All mtices, consents and other communicatim required or permitted to be given 
pursuant to this Agreemeat shtll be suEcienl if iund-&livered or if mailed by 
United States Mail, postage prepaid, d e d  or re&ted mail, rehtrn receipt 
reqmsted, or sent by commercial ovanight courier, charges pre-paid, to the other 



party hatato at fts addnss below stasad or suoh other addmu, sl, atthar of them 
may Mgnata h m  t h e  to tima by notiCa to the athar in tha manaer hemin eat 

Tbc addrc5s of RCGI is: 

Birmingham, Alabama 35213 

V wrth a copy lo: 

Wayne Morse, Jr. 
Clark, D o h ,  Morse, Oncab & Hair, P.C. 
800 Shadea Creek Farbay, Suit0 850 
Bamtrgham, Alabama 35209 

1 I. Tho oave~nts oontaintd in this Agreement shaIi run with and bind the Brown 
Property and the Abandoned Roadway, shall inure to the benefit of end be 
d m a b l e  by RCGJ andtor its rmcoess04 ass ip  or successors in titlet, and sW 
remain in e m  fbr a period of twenty (20) yem h the date of this Agreemant. 



12. This Agreament shall be govcrncd by and construed in wxmrdanaa dch the laws 
of tha St&e of Alabame, Any pmviabna in this Agreement which shall prove to 
be invalid, void or illegal, shell i no way afRxf imp& or invalidate any other 
pmvisions hemoE A 

13. Tm is of tho asmce ofthis Agmamant and cach 
ThisAgrcbmantrnay beexecutedinanynrrmbcro 
d d  be an original and d1 of which abd codtutc . 

14. It is the intent that each of the cmomnts, 
righls and obligations sat dnrcb herein 
party hereto and their reapactive sucuessors, 

15. ent 
ir 

IN WITNESS WHERE0 caused thii Agreement to be signed, 
sealed and delivered as ofthe 

"RCGIn: 

RCGI MONTCLAIR I, UC, a aeorgia limited 
liability compaoy 

By: Rcsourcc Capital Group, Inc, a 
Delaware corporation, it sole member 

By: 
Albert G. Sohmerge, l l I ,  Pmldent 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

James N. Brown, 1 1  



STATE OF GEORGIA ) 

1, the undorsOrs@ed Notary Public in and fir said County, in said 

Oim under my hand and offioial seal this - 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

said County, in said State, hemby cettifj' tbat 
regoing conveyance, and who is known to 
informed of the conteats of !he conveyance 
rity on ttrt doy the same bears date. 

official seal this - day of ,2004. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 



EXHlBIT A 
to DecIaradon of Covenants Agmmcnt 

TRACT 1 ; 

A parcel of land located in the Southwc~t 1N of tho Southtwit 114 of 
South, Range 2 West, more particularly desdbed as follow: 

Begin at the NortfiWeSf c 
Township 17 So- Range 2 West, and rn in an 
line of said '/J - % scction for a distance of 51 6.43 
the right of 142 degrees 

w e  h a w  a radius 
distance of 149.72 

TOGEi'MR with 7fivcni L.L.C. Addition to Mountaia Bmok, as mrdd 
in Plat Book 207, pa 8 o e b cords of Jefferson County, Alabama; 

The afonsaid ing col des~nied as follows: 

A pottion ofthe \% S ofthe Southwest Qwtw of Sation To~vnship 1 7 South, 
R a n g w e f f e  County, Alabama, being mom particularly described as blhws: 

rthwt comer ofthe Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of 
along the West Sic  ofsaid Section 33, f ir  a distance of 408.36 
to the right of 52 degrees 12 minutes 25 s~10nds  tbr a distance 
le to the left of 52 degrees 28 minutes 22 seconds fir a distance 

to a point on the Northerly right-of-way line of Montchir Road (80' right-of-way) 
a curve being conaaveNorthwesterly having a radius of 3759.82 feet; thence turn 

an interior angle to the of 57 degrees 33 minutes 20 seconds along the chord of said c w e  
for a chord Iength of 171.32 feet (delta = 02 degrees 36 minutea 40 seconds, arc length = 17134 
feet); thence departing said right~f-y line turn an interior angle of 122 degrees 32 minutes 38 
scconds h m  chord of said curve for a disiance of 332.79 feel; thence turn an interior angle to 
the right of 96 degrees 30 minutes 42 seconds and m Northwesterly fbr a distance of 17.16 feet; 
thence turn an exterior angle to the leR of41 degrees 50 minutes 52 seconds for a distance of 
6331 feet; thence turn an interior angle to the right of 37 -es 10 minutes 14 seconds and run 
Westerly for a distance of 5 I 6.43 feet to the point of beghhg. . 



k t  2, according to the Map of MontalIL D e m e n t  o m  Survey, Sooond Addition, as 
recorded in Map Book 102, page 106, in the Pmbab 0&cc of Jefiman Coun~Alubema. 

All  h,.;mm L.:4..m+...¶ :- T-E.-~ - . . / \  A 



EXIIIBIT B 

"RCGK PROPERTY" 







STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

INDEX: Grantor: James N. Bmwn, II[ 
Gnu~t~e: C!mstbrook Plaza Parbani w 

DECLARATION OF 

@erei.aftcr"Crestbmak"), 
with othtr good and valuab 
of which is hereby ackno 

A p-1 a ( f h $ O U t h w c s t  IN of the southwest V4 of aection 33. 
TmmsJip South, R e West, mom particahaIy described ns fallows: 

er of tht6outhwcst 114 of the southwest 1 M ofscction 33, 
2 West and run a Southeasterly direction along the 

e of 516.43 fctt lo apoint; thence 
or 49 minutes 46 seconds and run 
feet to n point and also a point on 

of 3744.83 feet, a central angle of  02 
a cord distance of 149.72 feet and an interior cord 

08 minutes for b e e  seconds; thence running in 
arc of said curve fbr a dfstancc of 149.73 feet; 

thence turn an interior angle Grrm cord of 181 degrees 08 mmutes 44 seconds aadnm 
in a southwesterIy d i d o n  and parallel to the c m t d i o  ofthe old L & N Railroad 
(abandoned) for a distance of436.01 feet; thence turn a deflection angle to the right 
of 127 degrees 47 minutes 35 secoads and run in a northerly direction along West 
boundary of said section 33 for a distance of408.36 fat and the point of beginning. 
Said pm8l contains 1 03,561 square feet for 238 m, (more or less). , 

[description prepared by Gonzalez, Webb & Strength] 

Page 1 of 2 Pages. 



Thc above described Property docs not consrttutc the homestead of Qrantor or hla 
spouse. 

TEE PURPOSE OF TBIS INSTRUMENT is to make and set coven ts on the Propmiy 
in Zavor of Cmsbrook Plaza Partners ad the ailjacant osbta aFCmstbroo am Pertn 
c o v ~ b r n r i u h s U m d b e b ~ ~ m d ~ - ~ m b i 1 1 t a r ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

NOW THEREFORE, tho undersigned doas hcnby ndop 
covenants and limitatiw set fortb in the w e n t  
in its entirety to tbose portions of tbe Properly re 
included aa apart of the considedon in tranafdng 
part of thc PrupMty. 

DECLARANTDOE 
assigns, wlrfi Crestbrook, its 
presents, lawfuly seized in 
the restrictive covenants s 

ay of January, 2000, Jamcs N. Brown, 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expii: /.( s v a  a aa r 

Page 2 of 2 Pages. 



STATE OF AL.ABAMA 1 
1 

o,.d n4.a w ! - *  ALL. . . IU(R 
OWI1714w 

AGREEMENT 
A 

THIS AGREEMENT, (hwinaAcr "Agrtemcntl') is medc Pad axocutcd 
Marcoh. 2000, by and between Cmtbmok Plaza Partncre, nn Alabm p 
bustnw in Jeff' County, Alabama (h#eino&r "C~bmok") and 
Alabama Limited Liability Compaay having its primipal placa of business 
WllinmR Brown and James N. Bmwn, IfI (herrinafier COII~O 

WHERE%& Davolopar haa w h t d m  to develop a& 
adjaoent to the propaty owned by Creetbtook 

WEEREAS, a dispute has arisen concerning the zonin~ 
restrictions related to Developer's 

Dcvclopcr making catain 
t to not otherwise conten 

I. Definttlons. 

m m  the concrete curb of the parking lot owned or coutrolled by 
llel to the Southenst Boundnry. 

' shall mean the property owned by Crcstbrbcrk, located adjaocnt to the 
addnss of 3918 Montclair Road; Birmingham, A .  35213 which ismorc 

, UC., James N. Bmwn, III and William R Bronn. 
ing without limitation, any condominium associadon or 
uItimntcly responsible for the common areas of he 

UXlcvelopmcnt" sb1f mean the development proposed by Dcvelopa in thc request for v&ce filed 
with the City of Birmingham, and dockatcd as variances request 99-141. This being one and the same 
devclopmcnt as that devtlopmcnt madc thc subject matter of the request fot site plan appm~nl filcduirh the 
City of Birmingham end docketed as Rcqucst 2-45-99. All of the forgoing affecting that land desmid as 
follows: 

Aparccl ofland locoled in JcffmonCounty, Alabama, in the soulh~vcst 114 oFthe southwcsl 
I/4 ofsection 33,Township 17 South, Range2 West, more particularly dcsmWas followvs: 

Page I of B Pages. 



Begin at tfic northwest comer of the routhwtst 1/4 of  thc ~~uthwest 1/4 of 
section 33, Township 17 South, Rpase 2 We*, and nm a Goulhenstcrly 
direction along tho nrrrthccn boundnry line of mid section far a dirmce of 
516.43 feet to a point thsaoa tum a deflection angle to tbe right of 142 

or Icss). 

Usad" did1 mennpsti 
used for tbc general landscapin 

tern p m p q  linc scpanrthg thc Development (and 
thc Crestbrook Pmptrly. 

by Developer to be conmucad dong or ncac 
mber 16, 1999 City Of BLmlxlghDm application for 

Boundary 
feet ofthc 
following 

R 
eonstruetion. Thc Wall shalt be conslnrckd in such a manuer os to be fPcd by 8" by 8' 
by 16" "split focc" concrete block of a color md texture wbstmtially identical ta the 
Keystone "sepentcd" wallscunrntly existing on the Crestbrook-. Developer has 
provided Crestbrook with an aemplat of said block. 

B. Locntioa. The Wall shall be constructed at h t  bur (4) kl back ( t o d  the 
Development) f m  the Crestbrook Curb, measured as a hizontd  distance and 
p~pcndiwlar to thc line of the Crcabmok Curb. The Wall's "set back" shall disregard any 
footing thereof which ki below Ihc ground and covered by Sod 

Rior m construction ofthe \Val1 described above, (a) Developer shall have a land suneyor 
licmscd to practice in the StatcofAlaboma confirm and physically mark the location of the 
Walt on the property through use of stakes or flap, such markings to "locutc" rhc 

Page 2 of 8 Pages. 



Crrstbrook side of the Wall, (b) Developer shall present the results of add muy md to 
Crcstbmok and (c) CtC6tbrook shall pregpptove the boarion of tfic Wall, which suoh 
nppmval &dl not bc mrc~soasbly withheld 

D. Vegetation. Thc Wall shall be vegetated with '%cneping 
vcgatotian smeningthat is ta be prc-appmvcd by Crcstbrook, w 
be u~pwnably  w i W d .  

Brook Zoning Ordinnnce No. 1 

3. Landscaping. DevcIopcr molt side of the Wall and 
situated between the Wall and the following specificati(~~: 

states; as follows: 

bclt, a planted a strip of  land at leust iiftecn 
composed of living deciduous orevagrantrcts 

actual location and density of the bzes and shrubs shall bc prc-approvalby Crcstbrook 
such approval shnll not be unrcasmably withheld 

Developer shall have the right but not the obligetion to erect a "privacy wll*' m "smcn" 
(hcrciaafter "Privacy Wall") within Ihe Buffix provided that thc following restrictions arc 
met: 

( 1) Thc Privacy WalI shalI not bc more than six feet in height. 

(2) Crcstbmok shall prc-approve the aesthetics of the Privacy Wall facing the 
CmtbrookPmpvty and such approval shall not bc u m d l y  \nthhcld. 

Page 3 of 8 Pages. 



(3) The inclusion of the Privacy Wall ehnU not in my way rebtw the 
requircrnd of tiu density of trees and shrubs in the Buffer M act forth 
above. Thnt portion of the Buffkr on the Cmtbmok mi& of the Priaay 
Wall shall include a! least one row of the trus rrnd one tow of fb shrubs 
raquind in the Dbove provision [City of Momrain Brook Ordinanca No. 
1356. S c ~ t i a  19-18-6.11. 

4. Bulldlng Set-Bnck. The "footprintsw of the houses conswetc 
shall hc b subslantid oonf-ty with the locations dcpictuf on the 
Devclopato the City OfBimu'nghm on or about November 16,1999 in 

Dtvelopa shan not alter the general lo 
the wknt thnt Developer may vary the 

back" oftha strusturea shall dcd that suoh supports 
shall not be more than one 

Slafc of Alabama 

's obligations under this w p h S  arecondngcnt upon the following 

t Execution by the ncord owner of the ~mpcrty  made thc basis of the 
or placiaa a mbictivc covcnaat on the property embraced by tht 
rth thercquirewts of this Agnclnmt in sucb a manner as to make 

binding on all sumsson in interest lo the lnnd 

R Utigntion. Move the court f6r leave w dismiss with prqiudice its Petition For Iudicial 
161td in the-t C w t  for Scffcnon County, Alabama and theredackttcd 
If thc cwrt docs not grant leave to dismiss the case, then Crestbrook shall 

the action Pnd will -t a judgment to be entered egeinst it. 

C Municipal Approvnl. Not further contest any application by Developer for zoning, pumitb 
and approvals (including varianccrs) horn Jeffusou County, the City of Binnkrghilm and the 
City of Mountain Bmk in Anthunncc of the DevcIapmcnt to the extent that (a) such 
applications requests and activities af Developer we coadstmt with thc fcrms of  this 

Page 4 of 8 Pages. 



Apcmont and ths B~nmPrcl£1nlnsrySftcPlanAppmIrl2-45-99 and (b) Dcvelopar , 
fir not then tn bmaoh of my tam or condidon of this AgrcQncat. 

A. Crestbrook's Warranties. 

(i) Organltntion and QupUflcatlon. Cmttrrook is a 
validly deting, and in good sfanding under rbt laws of the State o 

(11) Aathorlzntion oJ'TrausPct5on. Crcrrtb 
Dnddclivcr this Agreemunt and to perform Its obligati 

(Lil) Title. (?restbroo signs, hereby covmanrs that 
~ r c s t b ~ ~ ~ k  PIIUII ~ ~ r t n ~  is, at ~ ~ i z t d  ia at simple of the 
f h s t b m o k p r ~ .  

tbrook for the "approvals" 

ure. Scithcr chis Agreement nor any other 

ht or omitr lo atate aay material fact ncccaary to 
nt or therein not f h k  or misleading. 

&atlonand QuaUUcatlon. BmnmDevtfopmtn~ L.L.C. is o limited liability 
zed, validly existing, md ia good standing under the laws of rhe Smte of 

d authority to execute 
t and this Agreement 

been duly txtcutcd and delivered by Devcloptr. This Ageanent comtitutcs the valid and 
legally binding obligation of Dcvclapcr, d o m d c  in accordance sirh its icrrns and conditioar 
Developer need not give any mtiu lo, milkc any filing with, or obtnin my aulhcaizarion, consat. 
or approval of any G o v u a m ~ l  Body i n d r  to consummate the transactianscontcmplated by ~s 
Agrcyncnt. 

(lii) Title. James N. Brown, 111, far himselt, bis successors, heirs and assigns, hucby 
'covenants that (a) JamcsN. Brown, III is. at the time of t E w c p m 4  lowfully scizcd in fa simple 
ofthe propcrtydcsrrihcdhaein as tht UDcvcloprncn~" @) that JamesN.Bmvm, nI has a good right 

Page 5 of 8 Pages. 



to create the easement contempletcd herein and (c) that hc will warrant and defend Ms dtle to the 
premises andthe contents and substance of said casement and the xighte thmof u, meld Clrstbroak 

{iv) Complete and Accurate DLrclozurc. Ncithct this Agracmmt nor my other 
statement or document d c l i v d  by Davelopsr to Cnstbmok in canneation w th thia Agrtcmcnr 
conrains any statement which, at the time artd unda the dm~murteoocs und 1 hioh it b made. is  
filsc or m i ~ ~ B  with raspc& to my matcriol fiat or omits to state my o t n e ~ ~  to 
make the sbmmcnk contained in this Agrccanenl or therein not Bhc or ms!& 

7. Remedies. 

A. Injauctio~~~ mud TROs. I h c  parties 
to wmpcnsak the @cved party, 

ccxpcases of~llry SUCCC~S~UI appeals) aspart of 

Any action to enforce this Apement s h a l l b d m q h h k  Circuir 
uaty. Alabnma (Birmmgbam Division) or the United States District 
District ofAlabamaunless subject matter jurisdiction i s  lacking. The 

the pemmal jurisdiction of such tmrk 

& No Rclesse. This Agreement doesnot carrsti~tic n waiver,cansent orrclc~se 
aspect dtheDcvcloper's activities at the Devclopmcnt or an assumption 

to the engineering, coostructiou, w o ~ h i p  or any othcr spcct of the 

1-al md equitable rights a p h t  each other, hir conenfve agents, rannts, contra~lors md 
ofnliatcs nnd my othcr third parties arr d c c t c d  by drip Agmmcnt except to tht -tent expressly waived 
herein. 

A Dm~vings. T%c parties to this Agrecmcnl did not conduct a survey for the specific purpose 
of setting the tcnns of this Agramcnt. Consequently, the intcnts ofthe parties arc to be 
determined in a mannu consistent with thc lams of this Agreement nowitbtandii my 

Pnge 6 of 8 Pages. 



matter depicted in a drawing or oulny described in the dcfidtion of Dcwlopment wbioh is  
fnconsistcnt with this Agrcomcnt. 

8. Entlre Agrecltrent This document, togethcr with rcfcaocd exhibits and b-u. 
constitutes the entire agrcanent between the partics re 
Agr#mcnt and supcaedcs all prior disc- n 
parties, whether oral or written. No party, nor 
understanding, agncmat, pmist, amaadmat 
matter of Ws Agreement, cxprcsscd or Implied no 

in irs name and on Ita behalf d l  by lu duly authorized general 
of  Marcb, 2000. 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON C0LnvI-Y 

NOTARY PUBLIC .- 
My Commission Expires: 15 NOV 2002 

Bmwn Development. L.L.C. has caused !his instrument to be 
all by irs duly authorized president [manager], \.MUvn R. Brotvn 

BROWN DEVELOPMENT. L.L.C. 

By William R. Brown; its prcsiden~ [manager] 
STATE OF ALABAMA 1 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 1 

I, thc undersigned, a Norary Public in and for said Counry, in said State, hereby certify that 
\!'illlam R Brown, whose name as preskielu [manager] of Crestbrook Plaza Piutners. is signed u, rhr? 

Page 7 of R Pages. 

'1 - " 4 .  . - - . .  - u.. 

1- ' 



foregoing iammtnt, and who Is known to me. acknowIedged besom me on Ults day chat, bbfpe Wonnod 
of the cantents of said iastnuncnt, he, as ruch offIetr and wlth full authorlpr, w ~ ~ u t a d  the r ~ m a  vduntaxily 
h r  and 8s thc act of said pimaumh4) on the date set fonh abovo. 

GIVEN under my hand and officinl seal this UIC ~7 day 

lNWITNESSWBEREOF,onthisthc 2 7 dayo 
set his band and sea1 b c k  a notary publlo. 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

said instrument, he cxccutcd 

day of March, 2000, James N. Brown, has 

otnry ~ublicinand far saidcotmtyl bercbycertifl that 
James N. Brown, m, whose name! is sfgncd to the foregoing fnsmnncnf and wlm is known to me, 
ackurw1edgcd bcfbrc mc on this day that being Wormed of the contcDts of the said instrununt, he cxmffed 
the same voluntarily as her individual act oa the day and yet sa far& above. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND, this the r 7 day oPMen;h, 2000. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
2000 M4R -31 P.M. 12159 

R d d S  w m  
* .ndS 27.00 ~s - Page 8 of 8 Pages. 

C K O R O E & P g P X O t o s , ~ d ~  
I 

200004/3231 



.. 
, .---- 

lend Tax Notfoe T o t  

ORRBCTION DBED 

Correotion Warranty Deed and Correc t ion  Qu i t c l a im Deed) made on 
Apr i l  25, 1991, of:  

. 1. That  c e r t a i n  Cor rec t ion  Deed dated Deco.nber I d ,  1978,  
executed by Edward J. Peterson  and wife ,  Margaret A. Pe te r son ,  

3. That c e r t a i n  Warranty Deed da t ed  December 27,  1976, 
executed by Edward J. Peterson  and wife ,  Margaret A. Peterson, 
and recoxded i n  Real Proper ty  Volume 138.5 a t  Pages 439-440 i n  
t h e . O f f i c e  of t h e  Judge of Probate,  Jef fexeon county, Alabama; I 

THIS CORRECTION DEED BEING FOR the purpose OP conveying,  i n  i t 8  
e n t i r e t y ,  L o t  Two ( 2 )  Mountain Brook Pro,rerties, Inc. as 

CORRECTION WARRANTY DEED 



and ' mining r i g h t s  excepted.~ 

There is hereby e x p r e s s l y  reserved  u n t o  grntrtor, h i s  h e i r s ,  
executors ,  a d m i n i s t r a t o r s ,  successo r s ,  and ass i .gns ,  an easement 
and right-of-way f o r  t h e  purpose of  i n g r e s s  and e g r e s s  and 
u t i l i t i e s  upon and a c r o s s  tht? proper ty  con\ ?vs:ci  by t h i s  deod, 
The l o c a t i o n  o f  . t h e  resorved  easement a r ight-of-way is 

C descr ibed  as fo l lows  r Commence a t  t h e  Sout.1 : t:c.?rlyrnost c o r n e r  
of L o t  2 o f  Map o f  a Subdiv is ion  o f  Mountai 8 rook P r o p e r t i e s ,  
Inc ,  as reco rded  i n  Map Dook 65, Page 95 i n  i.he o f f i c e  of t h e  
Probate  Judge ,  J e f f e r s o n  - County, Alabama, and run  i n  a 
Nor theas t e r ly  d i r e o t i o n  a long t h e  Sou theas t  I. iltn of  s a i d  Lo t  2,  
said l i n e  a l s o  be ing  t h e  Northwesterly r J  !I!--of-way l i n e  o f  
Montclair  Rotid \ o l d  Bankhead Highway') a d i s  ;i. .:r: of  86.18 f e e t  
to  the POINT OF BEGINNING o f  t h e  h e r e i n  descri.1 * 11 p a r c e l ;  t h e n c e  
d e f l e c t  5Sa 13'00" to  t h e  l e f t  and run i n  a ' -r.therJ.y 8i r f :c t ion  
and p a r a l l e l  to t h e  Eas t  l i n e  o f  Lot 9 t h a t  i: ccnmon w i t h  L o t  1 
of  s a i d  s u b d i v i s i o n  a d i s t a o c e  o f  251.66 'feet 

TP HAVE .AND TO HOLD t o  t h e  said i ran tee t r ,  1 I . - .  s u c c e s s o r s  and 
, a s s i g n s  . forever .  

! 



a d m i n l ~ t r a t o r s  covenant w i t h  the  said g r a n t  
and ass igns ,  t h a t  we aze  lawfully auized A 
premises; t h a t  they a r e  f r e e  fxdnt' a l l  e 
otherwise noted above; t h a t  w e  have a gooi 
conOey t h e  same a s  ' a fgreeaid;  t h a t  , we w 1 

executors and, adrninistcakore s h a l l  warrant  . t o  t h e  s a i d  g ran tees ,  t h e i r  euccersors  3 - - aga ins t  t h e  lawful  claims of a l l  pereone. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereuntc 
aeAls, t h i s  day o f  Apri l ,  1991. 

AGREED TO AND ACC~PTED 
, t h i s  J& day of Apr i l ,  19918 . 

&+EX& 

(LPG *&&id,,- 
Mar a r e t  Ann M l ler  Peterson,  
a e  k r u s t e e  of t h e  "E.J.P. Trust1' 
L &+t,-;, a+rtx~ 
Betty a r i e  Morrow, 
as trustee of  the. 'E.J.P. 'l'rustn 

(Acknowledgments B e l o w )  

CORRECTION QUITCLAIM DEEI': 

. , KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE 'PRESENTS, 
cokeidera t ion of t h e  sum o f  One Vollar  ($1 .  
t h e  undersigned g ~ a n t o r ,  the 1;aceipt 
acknowledqed, t h e  undersigr.ed g r a n t o r  EdwL 
wife, Margaret A. Peterson,  hereby remise,, 
g ran t ,  sell., and convey t o  Margaret Ann 

. Betty Marie Morrow, as t r u s t e e s  of t h e  " L  
eucceesora and a s s i g n s ,  ( h e r e i n a f t e r  c a l l e d  
r i g h t ,  t i t le ,  i n t e r e s t  and claim i n  or 
d e ~ c r i b e d  r e a l  estate;-"Bf'tuated i n  Jef feraon 
w i t :  

Q .  

That ' p a r t  o f  Lot  2 according t o  a sur. 
8ub$ivf s i o n  of Mountain Brook :Proper t ies ,  
Map Bobk 65, Page ' 9 5  i n  .the Office of 

- .  ' ~e f fa~@bJ I  Copnty, Alabama; . whfch l ies w ' 
. _ _ .  way of t h e  abandoned B. -8 N.. (Bfrrninghar~l 

. being more p a r t i c u l a r l y  ' deearibed a-s fa1 : 
-Northeheasterlymo#t,..cornsic of  said Lot 2 adcc . . .  

?!:::r!!\d t h e  Bame 
; :i ! , 1s." f o r e v e r  , 

. ' 
hands and 

C 

, . ;ru ,+ (.Seal ) 

.Y 

_ ( S e a l )  I 

.e of i a i d  

i.3 e e l 1  apd 
our h e i r s  , 

. . 
p .F 

r and i n  
.rid paid t o  
j s hereby 
I erson  and 
quitclaim, 

> t e r s o n  and 
l s t U ~  their 

a l l  t h e i r  
fo l lowing 

ilabama, to- 

. -7 te Judge.' 
r iyht -of-  

- I tai lroad).  
, ~ l i n  vat t h e -  ! 

: t surv.ey .of 



J .  
. . 

L 

i n  a Sou$hweeterly d i r e c t i o n  alor,cl said 
of-way a Bie t ance  of  3 4 3 . 4 4  f e e t  t-r. a ~ l n i  
s a i d  L o t  2 ;  t h e n c e  t u r c  an  i n t e r i o r  , .~ng+e 
t h e  r i g h t  i n  a Nor the r ly  d i r e c t i o n  alon$j c. 
Lot 2 a d i s t a n c e  of 56.04 f e e t  to  a point 
s a i d  abandoned r a i l r o a l ;  thence t u r n  .pn .; I: 
51' atid run  t o  t h e  r i g h t  ir a N o r t h e a s t e r l y  
c e n t e r l i n e  4 d i s t a n c e  o f  343.44 feet to  : . t b  

of t h e  h a r e i n  g e s c r i h e d  parcel. 

There i e  hereby e x p r e s s l y  . r e s e r *  ~ r . *  
execu to r s ,  adminlmtratorm, success  I I  1 .- 1 

and right-of-way for t h e  purpose of i r r  
u t i l i t i e s  upon and ' a c r o s s  t h e  .propcrt.y cn. 
The l o c a t i o n  o f  t h e  r e se rved  easement 
d e s c r i b e d  a s  fo l lows:  Commence a t  che Sod 
of Lo t  2 of Hap of  a Subd iv i s ioh  oi Moun 
Inc.  as r eco rded  i n  Map Book 65, rsilge 9. 
Proba te  Judge, J e f f e r s o n  County, A l a l  
N o r t h e a s t e r l y  d i r e c t i o n  a long  t h c  * 11 i 11. 

s a i d  l i n e  also being  t h e  Northuqq. . l r r  

Montc la i r  Road (Old Bankhead Highwir ' il t 
t o  a p o i q t  i t hence  d e f l e c t  58" 13 ' 0' " to 
Northwester ly  d i r e c t i o n  and p a r a l l e l  to t.! 
Lot 2, a d i s t d n c e  o f  251.66 f e e t  rT2 t h c  
t h e  h e r e i n  described p a r c e l ,  ! i t ~ d  

' s o u t h e a s t e r l y  r ight-of-way of an .thani . 
c o n t i n u e  a long  t h e  last  desc r ibed  CQUr 
d i r e c t i o n  a d i s t a n c e  of 54.07 feel. -o I 

.of  said Lot 2; t h e n c e  t u r n  an i n t e  .i i' ,.I 

l e a s ,  and run  to t h e  r i g h t  i n  a '1 . -12%:  

s a i d  North l i n e  a d i s t a n c e  of 5 4 . 0 "  fcr,t 
p d n t r  said. p i n t  be ing  t h e  p o i n t  c i t ~ i - e  

line. w i t h  t h e  e x t e n s i o n  of t h e  cola .st1 : i a  
and 2 if extended to  t h e  Norttl l j n t  c ~ f  k~ 

an  i n t e r i o f :  a n g l e e o f  670 37 ' ,  more o: I ~ S .  
i n - . a  s o u t h e r l y  d i r e c t i o n  a diecil,,stt;?. 
Northwest c o r n e r  o f  s a i d  Lo t  l i  t t t ~ n c e  :.b , 
l ' l . r i  23' and r u n  t o  t h e  r i g h t  i n  a 5 .,: . 

>.>* . t! . i o u t h g a s t e r l y  r i g h t - o f  -way a ' a 

d i t , .  lice of 54-08 t e b t ,  more o r  J:- i , t+ 
c o n t a i n i n g  approx ima te ly  0.05 acres. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD ' to  s a i d  g1.A~ *eta 
, 

, Ine .  a8 
:l:e Proba te  
111 the Eas t  
v c t i o n  33, 
l i n e  o f  a n  

a long  t h e  
.,r p o i n t  an 

r a i l r o a d  r 
., th.1 r i g h t  
Ly r i g h t -  
t l i n e '  of  

r:nd run  to  
, IWI of maid 
:c :e r l ine  of 
:11e o f  116' 
itlong s a i d  

B E G I N N I N G  

i s h e i r s ,  
easement 

- q r e s s  and 
h i s  deed. 
>f -way i s  

. I .  s t  c o r n e r  
. o p e r t i e s ,  
. ce o f  t h e  
un i n  a 
id L o t  2 ,  

l i n e  o f  
6.18 f e e t  
run  i n  a 
: o f  s a i d  
[ N N I N G  o f  

on t h e  
; t h e n c e  
hwestelcly 
n r t h  l i n e  

more or 
roar a l o n g  
-ss, to  a .  
:l.id North f 
id L o t s  1 
a n c e  t u r n  
t h e  r i g h t  
:. to t h e  

31' a n g l e  of 
i o n  a long  
l r o a d r  a 

I l E G I N N I N G  

sors and 



irlrnds and 

SEAL) 

: l..n a :,d for 
2d\*idrd J. 
ire signed 

1 .omporied of 
' : ced ) ,  and 
jay, t h a t ,  

:!. jr. executed 

2% .I zr .- - day of 







1 STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

DECLARATION OF PROTECTIVE COVENANTS 
AND AGREEMENTS OF 

CALTON HILL AT MOUNTAIN BROOK 

A, This Declaration of Protective Covenants and Agreements ("this Declaration") is entered 
into by NJK, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company'("Dec1arant"). 

/ 
W I T N E S S - E T  

,I \ 
WHEREAS, Declarant is the owner of certain real property located partially in the City of 

Mountain Brook and partially in the City of Birmingham ("the ~ ro~e~ '~ ) , s i tua ted  in Jefferson 
County, Alabama (the Property will be more particularly described below); and, 

/ *  \ 
WHEREAS, Declarant filed,~subdivision plat of that portion of the Declarant's Property 

which is located within the City of M o ~ n ~ B r o o k ,  pursuant to which the property was resurveyed 
into five (5) lots referred to as Calton Hill at ~'Ountain Brook, Sector 1, as recorded in Map Book 

n at Page - in the Office of the Judgepf Probatcof Jefferson County, Alabama (hereinafter 

w 
"The Mountain Brook Subdivision"); and ), 

\ \% 

\ -", 
WHEREAS, ~eclarant filed a subdivisib6 plat of that portion of the Declarant's Property 

which is located within the City of Birmingham, pursuant to which the property was resurveyed 
into ( ) lots referred td'as Calton-Hill at Mountain Brook, Sector 2, as recorded in Map Book 

/-- at p g e  - iiithe ~ffice'of the ~ u d ~ k  of Probate,of Jefferson County, Alabama (hereinafter 
"The Birmingham ~ubdivision"); and 

'\ WIGREAS, The Mountain ~ \ o o k  Subdivision and The Birmingham Subdivision are 
adjacent to one-another and are jointly referred to herein as the "Subdivisions" or "Calton Hill at 
Mountain Brook";.and 

\ 
WHEREAS, Cdlton Hill at Mountain Brook consists of ( ) subdivided building lots 

(hereinafter referred to coll~ctively as "Lots"); and 

WHEREAS, Declarant desires to subject the Subdivisions to the protective covenants, 
agreements, and easements set forth in this Declaration; 

NOW THEREFORE, Declarant hereby declares, covenants, and agrees that the 
Subdivisions and each of the Lots included in the Subdivisions shall be subject to the covenants, 
conditions, restrictions, uses, limitations, and affirmative obligations set forth in this Declaration, 
all of which are declared to be in furtherance of a plan for the improvement of the Subdivisions in 
a desirable and uniform manner suitable in architectural design, and all of which shall run with the 

( land and shall be binding on all parties having or acquiring any right, title, or interest in the 
Subdivisions or any part hereof, and shall be for the benefit of the owners of the Lots or any interest 



therein, and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon each successor in interest to the f 
owners thereof. 

ARTICLE I 
LAND USE AND BUILDING TYPE 

Land Use and Building Tvve. Each Lot will be used for residential purposes only, and no 
trade or business purposes, including all types of home industry, will be permitted. No building or 
structure other than one (1) single family dwelling house shall be erected on any Lot within the 
Subdivisions except any pool house or green house which is approved by the ARC (hereinafter 
defined) or as otherwise permitted herein. 

ARTICLE I1 
BUILDING RESTRICTIONS AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 Desim Criteria. The objective of the Association (as hereinafter defined) shall be 
to present a traditional architectural environment for the Subdivisions and to provide for 
maintenance and upkeep thereof. Improvements upon the Property shall be installed in accordance 
with this Declaration and plans and specifications which are approved by the ARC or its designee 
pursuant to the provisions of ARTICLE VII of this Declaration. 

2.2 Temvorarv Structures. No trailer, tent, shack, barn, servant house, garage, or other 
outbuilding shall be erected on any Lot within the Subdivisions with the exception of Declarant's 
temporary construction office and sales trailer and Declarant's materials storage trailer. 

2.3 Fences and Walls. No fences or walls shall be constructed on the Subdivisions 
unless first approved by the ARC. Declarant intends to construct a wall (the "Perimeter Wall") 
along the outside perimeter of a portion of the Subdivisions. The Association shall maintain the 
structure and exterior surface of the Perimeter Wall, and the owners of those of the Lots which are 
adjacent to the Perimeter Wall, shall maintain the interior surface (the surface facing the Lot) of 
the portion of the Perimeter Wall which is adjacent to each of their respective Lots. 

2.4 Utilities, Wiring and Antennae. 

(a) No external or outside antennae of any kind shall be maintained on any Lot. 
Satellite dishes may be maintained on a Lot provided that prior written approval of the size and 
location of same is obtained by the owner of the Lot from the ARC. 

(b) Each Lot shall be connected to utility service lines (including, but not 
limited to, gas, water, sewer, cable television, and electricity) at the points designated by Declarant. 

2.5 Mailboxes and L a m  Posts. All mailboxes, lamp posts, street lighting, and posts 
must be constructed and located according to Declarant's specifications. 

2.6 Failure to Maintain or Obtain Avvroval. All structures and improvements shall be 
properly maintained in good condition and repair, and shall be used and occupied in full 
compliance with the provisions of this Declaration and otherwise in compliance with plans and 
specifications approved pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration. Any structure or 



improvement on any Lot which is altered, erected, placed, maintained, used, or occupied upon any 
Lot in violation of the provisions of this Declaration, shall be removed, re-altered, or repaired, and 
any such use shall be terminated, so as to extinguish such violation, at the expense of the owners 
and occupants of any such Lot. Until the sale of all of the Lots by Declarant, the approval by 
Declarant shall be necessary to invoke the provisions of this paragraph. Subsequent to the sale of 
all of the Lots by Declarant, approval by the Board of Directors of the Association shall be 
necessary to invoke the provisions of this paragraph. 

2.7 Drainage and Detention System. Declarant shall construct, at its sole expense, a 
storm water control, drainage, and detention system ("the Detention System"). The Detention 
System shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, 
conditions, standards, and requirements applicable thereto. The Detention System shall be for the 
benefit of all of the Lots in the Subdivisions. Upon the completion of the installation of the 
Detention System by Declarant and the establishment of the Association, the maintenance of the 
Detention System shall be by and at the expense of the Association. At a minimum, Detention 
System maintenance shall include the following: 

(a) Regular inspection, repair, clearance, and maintenance of control structures 
and other inlets to the Detention System and removal of sediment deposits and other debris that 
may accumulate in the control structure and other inlets; 

(b) Control, stabilization, or correction of erosion that may occur at the inlet or 
exit point for discharges to and fiom the Detention System; and 

(c) Repair, replacement, or restoration of deteriorated, defective, worn, non- 
operative, or non-functioning components, elements, or features of the Detention System. 

nll 

2.9 Minimum Square Footage. The minimum square footage of a home on a Lot in The - -- - 
Mountain Brook Subdivision is 3,000 square feet. 

2.10 Landsca~ing;. All landscaping on any Lots within the Subdivisions shall be subject 
to approval by the ARC, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

2.11 Window Screens. Except as provided hereinbelow, screens shall not be allowed on 
the windows or doors of any dwelling unless they are approved by the ARC. If screens are 
approved by the ARC, then the design, materials, colors, locations, and other specifications with 
respect to any such screens shall also be subject to approval by the ARC. 

2.12 Lvulllllurrl I E. r IIG U G G I U ~ I L  srrzul IISL lor sale any dwelling constructed on a Lot 
Mountain Brook UUbdivision for a minimum of $410,000 and any dwelling in The 

Birmingham Subdivision for a minimum of $2 10,000. 

2.13 Violations. If the owner of any Lot upon which any violation of the provisions of 
this Declaration exists shall not have taken reasonable steps toward the removal or repair of the 
same within thirty (30) days after written notice from the Association of such violation (or within 



such additional period of time as is reasonably necessary to cure said failure, provided that the cure 
has commenced within said period of 30 days and is being diligently pursued), the Association 
shall have the right to enter upon such Lot and to take steps as may be necessary to extinguish any 
such violation, and the cost thereof shall be a binding, personal obligation of such owner as well 
as a lien (enforceable in the same manner as a mortgage) upon the Lot in question. The lien 
provided in this paragraph 2.14 shall not be valid as against a bona fide purchaser (or bona fide 
mortgagee) of the Lot in question unless a suit to enforce said lien shall have been filed in a court 
of competent jurisdiction in Jefferson County and a lis pendens recorded in the Ofice of the Judge 
of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, prior to the recordation in said Probate Office of the 
deed (or mortgage) conveying the Lot in question to such purchaser (or subjecting the same to 
such mortgage). 

ARTICLE I11 
USE OF THE PROPERTY / EASEMENTS 

3.1 Sims. No sign of any kind shall be displayed on any Lot to the public view except 
signs of not more than five (5) square feet to advertise a home for sale; provided, however, that 
the Declarant or its duly authorized agents may erect and maintain structures, improvements, or 
signs necessary or convenient to the development, sale, operation, or other disposition of the Lots. 

3.2 Animals. No animals, birds, livestock or insects shall be kept, maintained, or bred 
on any of the Subdivisions except that not more than two (2) dogs, two (2) cats, and two (2) birds 
may be kept on each Lot as domestic pets, provided that such domestic pets are confined to the -, 
Lot of the owner of such pets. '.-, 

3.3 Garbage and Refuse. No lumber, metals, or bulk material shall be kept, stored, or 
allowed to accumulate on any Lot within the Subdivisions, except building materials during the 
course of construction of any approved structure or improvement. No refuse or trash shall be kept, 
stored, or allowed to accumulate except between scheduled pick-ups and in accordance with the 
provisions hereof. If trash or other refuse is to be disposed of by being picked up and carried away 
on a regular or recurring basis, such trash or refuse may be placed in sanitary containers. Such 
sanitary containers maybe placed in the open, on any day that a pick-up is to be made, at such 
place on the Lot as to provide access to the persons making such pick-up. All other times such 
containers shall be stored in such manner so that they cannot be seen fiom adjacent surrounding 
property. 

3.4 Outside Burning. Burning of trash, refuse or other materials on any Lot within the 
Subdivisions shall be prohibited. 

3.5 Pipes. No water pipe, gas pipe, sewer pipe, or drainage pipe shall be installed or 
maintained above the surface of the ground of any Lot within the Subdivisions, except for garden 
hoses. 

3.6 Oil and Mining. No Lot within the Subdivisions shall be used for the purpose of 
boring, mining, quarrying, exploring for, or removing oil or other hydrocarbons, minerals, gravel 
or earth. 



3.7 Nuisance. No obnoxious, offensive or illegal activity shall be carried on upon any 
Lot within the Subdivisions nor shall anything be done on any Lot within the Subdivisions which 
may become a nuisance to the owners or occupants of other Lots within the Subdivisions. 

3.8 Storage of Boats and Trailers. Storage of boats, boat trailers, house trailers, 
campers, recreational vehicles, or similar equipment or vehicles in the open on any Lot shall not 
be permitted. 

3.9 Air Conditioning Units. No window or thru-the-wall air conditioning units will be 
permitted on the Subdivisions. 

3.10 Clothes Lines. No clothes lines of any kind will be permitted on the Subdivisions. 

3.11 Window Treatments. No colored drapes or curtains may be visible in front or side 
windows. All such window treatments must be beige or neutral in color or else lined in beige or 
neutral color. 

3.12 Access and Utility Easements. Easements across each Lot for the installation and 
maintenance of utilities and drainage facilities and for ingress and aggress are reserved as shown 
on the record maps for the Subdivisions. Declarant does hereby grant to each owner of the Lots or 
any interest therein, their successors and assigns, a non-exclusive easement for ingress, egress, and 
utilities over, under, upon and across that certain "Private Drive" as shown on the map and survey 
of The Mountain Brook Subdivision and The Birmingham Subdivision ("Calton Hill Lane"). The 
easements herein granted shall be permanent and perpetual, non-exclusive, and appurtenant to, and 
shall pass and run with title to, each Lot. 

3.13 1 Hill Lane shall be for use as permanent ingress and egress for 
all Lot owners and 6 the Additional Property (if any), and no owner shall block said road or 
impede the use thereof by any other Lot owner or other party to whom Declarant has granted a 
right of ingress and egress. Calton Hill Lane shall remain a private road and shall be permanently 
maintained by the Association. 

3.14 Additional Property. Declarant reserves the right to add such additional property to 
the development as the Declarant shall determine ("the Additional Property"). The Additional 
Property and any lots and common areas created within the Additional Property may be added to 
the Subdivisions and to the provisions of this Declaration by the execution and recordation of an 
amendment to this ~eclaration, executed only by ~eclaranti in which the lots and common areas 
to be added as Additional Property are identified and are subjected to the terms and provisions of 
this Declaration, provided that Declarant, at the time of such amendment, owns at least one Lot in 
the Subdivisions. Upon the addition of the Additional Property by Declarant, the lots within the 
Additional Property shall be deemed to be Lots, and the common areas within the Additional 
Property shall be deemed part of the Common Areas, as defined in this Declaration. In the event 
of the submission of the Additional Property to the provisions of this Declaration by Declarant, 
then the lots within the Additional Property shall be subject to (a) the terms and provisions of this 
Declaration, (b) the payment of assessments pursuant to ARTICLE V of this Declaration, and 
(c) the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association, in the same 
manner as the ( Lots originally subject to this Declaration. Any residential dwellings 



constructed upon the Additional Property shall be of an architectural style which is similar to that 
of dwellings on the original Lots and shall be subject to approval by the ARC. Declarant also 
reserves the right to access such Additional Property through Calton Hill Lane and to grant unto 
the owners and occupants of the Additional Property a non-exclusive easement for ingress, egress 
and utilities over, under, upon and across Calton Hill Lane. 

3.15 ,,,-,, -,ement. -,iere is hereby granted to the Association an easement for the 
planting and maintenance of a buffer, ( ) feet in width, along the rear property line of all 
Lots within The Mountain Brook Subdivision and The Birmingham Subdivision (the "Buffer 
Easement"). Said landscaping shall be maintained by and at the expense of the Association. Lot 
owners and occupants shall not add, remove, cut, disturb, or destroy any trees, plants, landscaping 
material, or vegetation in the Buffer Easement. The Association will be entitled to charge and 
assess any owner who violates the provisions of this paragraph 3.17 for the cost of replanting said 
landscaping and shall have the right to place a lien against the Lot owned by such owner if 
necessary, which lien may be foreclosed in the same manner as the foreclosure of a mortgage, as 
described in paragraph 2.17 above. 

3.16 mon Areas and Common Expenses. The following are hereby designated 
Common Areas and will be permanently maintained by and at the expense of the Association: 

the Buffer Easement; 

) all curbs, gutters, and paving within Calton Hill Lane; 

the Detention System including all surface water detention facilities; 

the entrance features and fencing located at the entry to the Subdivisions, 
including any landscaping, lighting and irrigation installed as a part thereof, and the common 
grounds (including the gazebo, any water feature, and other such improvements, if any); and 

Portions of the Perimeter Wall as described in paragraph 2.3. 

The Association will also be responsible for the mowing, blowing, and edging of all front and side 
yards on all of the Lots twice per month or every other week and trimming the shrubs in the fiont 
and side yards twice per year 

. 
:et lighting will also be permanently maintained by and at 

expense of the Associaaon, ana me City of Mountain Brook shall have no responsibility or 
dollgation for any cost or expense associated with the maintenance of or operation thereof. The 
owner of each Lot shall contribute to a reserve h d  (the "Reserve Fund") in an amount to be 
determined by the Association for deferred maintenance of the Detention System and such other 
of the Common Areas as are determined by the Association. The owner of each Lot shall also 
contribute to a reserve fund (the "Road Reserve Fund") in an amount to be determined by the 
Association for deferred maintenance of Calton Hill Lane. Expenses of maintaining the Common 
Areas and as otherwise described in this paragraph 8 shall be deemed to be, and are hereby defined 
as, "Common Expenses." 

3.17 Trees; Removal of Scrub Vegetation. No tree shall be moved from or added to any 
Lot without the express written authorization of the Association. No trees shall be removed from 
the Buffer Easement or fiom the Entry Common Area; however, Declarant or the Association may 



remove weeds, brush, scrub vegetation, and any dead or diseased trees therefiom as necessary and 
appropriate to maintain the health and aesthetic quality of landscaping and vegetation within said 
areas. 

3.18 Conveyance of Common Areas. Declarant shall have the right to convey such right, 
title, and interest as Declarant owns in and to Calton Hill Lane and any of the other Common Areas 
to the Association, subject to the restrictions, reservations, covenants, and conditions set forth in 
this Declaration. 

ARTICLE IV 
GENERAL 

4.1 Effects of Violation on Mortgage Liens. No violation of any of the provisions of 
this Declaration shall defeat or render invalid the lien of any mortgage made in good faith and for 
value upon any portion of the Subdivisions; provided, however, that any mortgagee in actual 
possession, or any purchaser at any mortgagees' or foreclosure sale shall be bound by and subject 
to this Declaration as fully as any other owner of any portion of the Subdivisions. 

4.2 No Reverter. No restriction herein is intended to be or shall be construed as a 
condition subsequent or as creating a possibility of reverter. 

4.3 Duration and Amendment. The restrictions and covenants contained in this 
Declaration shall run with and bind the Subdivisions, shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 
enforceable by Declarant (so long as Declarant owns at least one Lot), the Association, the owner 
of any Lot included in the Subdivisions, the City of Mountain Brook, and their respective legal 
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns for a period of twenty-five (25) years, after which 
time said restrictions shall be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10) years; 
provided, however, that all easements granted herein shall be perpetual. This Declaration may not 
be amended in any respect except by the execution of an instrument signed by the owners of not 
less than 51% of the Lots and, with respect to the provisions of paragraph 3.14, pertaining to the 
Buffer Easement, approval by the owners of real properties (the "Adjacent Properties") which are 
outside of the Subdivisions and which are adjacent to the Buffer Easement, which instrument shall 
be recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, or in such other 
place of recording as may be appropriate at the time of the execution of such instrument. 

4.4 Enforcement. In the event of a violation or breach of any of these restrictions or 
any amendments thereto by any owner of a Lot, or employee, agent, or lessee of such owner, then 
the owners of any one or more of the Lots, Declarant, the Association, or their respective heirs, 
successors and assigns, or any party to whose benefit these restrictions inure, including the City of 
Mountain Brook, and, with respect to the Buffer Easement, including the owners of the Adjacent 
Properties, shall have the right to proceed at law or in equity to compel compliance with the terms 
and conditions hereof, to prevent the violation or breach of said restrictions, to sue for and recover 
damages, or take all such courses of action at the same time, or such other legal remedy as they 
may deem appropriate. No delay or failure on the part of an aggrieved party to initiate an available 
remedy set forth herein shall be held to be a waiver by that party of the right to object to any 
continuation of said violation or the occurrence of a different violation. 



4.5 Damages. Damages shall not be deemed adequate compensation for any breach or 
violation of any provision hereof, but any person or entity entitled to enforce any provision hereof 
shall be entitled specifically to relief by way of injunction as well as any other available relief 
either at law of in equity. 

4.6 Attorneys' Fees. The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforce a restriction or 
to enjoin the violation of a restriction against a Lot owner may be awarded a reasonable attorney's 
fee against the non-prevailing party. 

4.7 No Waiver. The failure to enforce any of the restrictions herein contained shall in 
no event be considered a waiver of the right to do so thereafter, as to the same violation or breach 
occurring prior or subsequent thereto; provided, however, that approval of plans pursuant to 
ARTICLE VII shall be binding on any and all parties as a conclusive determination that such plans 
are in conformity with these restrictions. 

4.8 Notices. Notices provided for in this Declaration or the Articles or Bylaws of the 
Association shall be in writing and shall be addressed to any owner at the address of the Lot and 
to Declarant or the Association at the address of their respective registered agent in the State of 
Alabama. Any owner may designate a different address for notices to such owner by giving written 
notice to the Association. Notices addressed as above shall be deemed delivered three (3) business 
days after mailing by United States Registered or Certified Mail, postpaid, or upon delivery when 
delivered in person, including delivery by Federal Express or other reputable courier service. 

ARTICLE V 
ASSOCIATION 

5.1 Establishment and Definition. "Association" shall mean and refer to Calton Hill 
Homeowners' Association, Inc. its successors and assigns. 

5.2 Membership and Voting Rights. Subject to the terms of the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Association and the Bylaws of the Association, every owner of a Lot which 
is subject to assessment as hereinafter provided shall be a member of the Association. Membership 
shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from the ownership which is subject to 
assessment. Subject to the provisions of ARTICLE VI of this Declaration, there shall be one (1) 
vote for each Lot as provided in the Articles of Incorporation, and Declarant shall retain one (1) 
vote for each Lot still unsold. 

5.3 Assessments. 

(a) Declarant with respect to each Lot it owns within the Subdivisions, hereby 
covenants and agrees, and each owner of any Lot, by acceptance of the deed therefor, whether or 
not it shall be so expressed in such deed, is deemed to covenant and agree, to pay to the 
Association: (1) annual assessments of charges, (2) assessments for the Reserve Fund and the Road 
Reserve Fund, and (3) special assessments for capital improvements, such as assessments to be 
established and collected as hereinafter provided. The assessments, together with interest, costs 
and reasonable attorney's fees, shall be (i) personal obligations of the owners of such Lots at the 
time such assessments were made; said personal obligations for delinquent assessments shall not \* 

become the personal obligations of the successors in title of any Lot owners unless expressly 



assumed by such successors; and (ii) secured by a lien upon each Lot, which lien is hereby declared 
and imposed, and, except as otherwise provided in this Declaration, shall be binding upon all 
successors in title and interest in and to each Lot. 

(b) The assessments levied by the Association shall be used exclusively to 
promote the recreation, health, safety and welfare of the Lot owners and for the purposes of the 
Association as set out in the Articles of Incorporation, and shall include the Common Expenses. 

(c) The amount of annual assessments shall be fixed and determined by the 
Association in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association. 

(d) In addition to the annual assessments authorized herein, the Association 
may impose in any assessment year a special assessment applicable to that year, for the purpose 
of defraying, in whole or in part, the costs of any construction, reconstruction, repair, or 
replacement of a capital improvement upon any Common Areas, provided that any such 
assessment shall first have been approved and assented to by a majority of the votes of the 
membership which are present and entitled to vote at the time, in person or by proxy, at any regular 
meeting or special meeting called for the purpose of voting on such assent and approval, in 
accordance with the terms of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association and the Bylaws 
thereof. 

(e) Except as provided in subparagraph ( f )  below, both annual and special 
assessments must be fixed at a uniform rate for all Lots and must be collected on a monthly basis. 

( f )  The assessments provided for herein shall commence as to each Lot within 
the Property on the day on which the Lot is conveyed to a person other than Declarant. Assessments 
shall be fixed at one-half of such assessments until such time as (i) Declarant determines that the 
improvements on a Lot are substantially complete, or (ii) within twelve (12) months after the date 
of the commencement of construction of improvements on a Lot, whichever shall first occur, at 
which time the Lot shall be subject to the full assessments. The Board of Directors of the 
Association shall fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days 
in advance of each annual assessment. Written notice of the annual assessment shall be sent to 
every one subject thereto, and the due dates thereof shall be established by the Board of Directors. 
The Association shall, upon demand for a reasonable fee or charge, furnish a certificate signed by 
an officer of the Association, setting forth whether the assessments on a specified Lot have been 
paid or the amount due thereon at any given time. Any such certificate, when properly executed 
by an officer of the Association as to the status of or amounts of the assessments on a Lot, shall be 
binding upon the Association as of the date of the issuance of such certificate. 

(g) Any assessment not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date shall bear 
interest from the due date at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per m u m .  The Association may 
bring an action at law against any owner personally obligated to pay the same or may foreclose 
such lien by the commencement of a civil action. No Lot owner may waive or otherwise avoid or 
escape liability for the assessment provided herein by non-use of the Common Areas or 
abandonment of such owner's Lot. 



(h) The lien of the assessments provided for herein shall be subordinate to the 
lien of any first mortgage. Any conveyance, whether voluntarily, involuntarily, or by operation of 
law, shall not affect the lien of the assessments; provided, however, the sale or transfer of any Lot 
pursuant to mortgage foreclosure or any judicial proceeding in lieu thereof shall extinguish the lien 
of such assessments as to any assessment or part thereof which became due prior to such sale or 
transfer. 

(i) In any event, no sale or transfer will relieve any Lot owner from personal 
liability or for any assessments becoming due prior to such sale or transfer. 

5.4 Amendments. There shall be no amendment to the Bylaws or Articles of 
Incorporation of the Association which would detrimentally affect the Participating Lots without 
the prior written consent of the owners of the Participating Lots, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. The provisions of this paragraph 5.4 shall terminate with respect 
to each Participating Lot upon the conveyance of the Participating Lot by the current Participating 
Owner to any party other than the other Participating Owner. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONTROL BY DECLARANT 

6.1 Other provisions in the Declaration to the contrary notwithstanding, Declarant shall 
retain control of the Association as provided for in the Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation 
(including the right to appoint, remove and replace the Officers and Directors) and shall not be 
liable for payment of any assessments against Lots owned by Declarant until such time as 
Declarant relinquishes control of the Association. Declarant shall relinquish control of the 
Association upon the earlier of (i) the sale of seventy-five percent (75%) of the Lots to any party 
other than a successor Declarant, or (ii) five (5) years from the date of this Declaration. Until such 
time as (i) Declarant relinquishes control of the Association, or (ii) Declarant waives its right of 
exemption from payment of assessments as to Lots owned by Declarant, Declarant agrees to fund 
any amount by which the costs incurred by the Association for the maintenance of the Common 
Areas exceeds the amounts of assessments payable by the owners of Lots other than Declarant (the 
"Shortfall"). Upon the termination of Declarant's control of the Association, Declarant shall no 
longer be responsible for the Shortfall, and Declarant shall pay the assessments applicable to Lots 
owned by Declarant, except that the amount of the assessments shall be reduced by % (which 
is presently determined to approximate the percentage of the assessments applicable to the costs 
of maintenance of the front and side yards and the shrubs on the Lots), with respect to all of 
Declarant's Lots which are vacant. Declarant may assign its rights as Declarant under this 
ARTICLE VI and all other rights reserved by or granted to Declarant in this Declaration, to such 
entity as Declarant shall determine, who shall agree to assume the obligations of Declarant, by an 
instrument which specifically designates that said rights are intended to be assigned by Declarant 
and assumed by such entity. 

ARTICLE VII 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE; ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL 

7.1 Architectural Review Committee. The Architectural Review Committee (the 
"ARC") shall be composed of three individuals designated and redesignated from time to time by 



the Board of Directors of the Association. Provided, until such time as Declarant no longer owns 
or has the right to acquire any portion of the Subdivisions, the ARC shall be composed of three (3) 
members who shall be appointed and who may be replaced by Declarant. 

7.2 Avvrovd Required. Except as provided in paragraph 2.1 of ARTICLE I1 with 
respect to the Participating Lots, before commencing the placement, construction, or alteration of 
any improvements upon any Lot or any other portion of the Subdivisions, including but not limited 
to dwellings, garages, outbuildings, parking areas, fencing, landscaping, antennas, or satellite 
dishes, (a) plans and specifications for any such improvements showing all exterior materials and 
colors thereof and including, when applicable, all exterior elevations, schedule of proposed 
materials, landscaping, and such other detail and information as the ARC might require, and (b) the 
builder or contractor selected to perform such construction or alteration must first be submitted to 
and approved by the ARC. 

THE SCOPE OF REVIEW BY THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE IS 
LIMITED TO APPEARANCE ONLY AND DOES NOT INCLUDE ANY RESPONSIBILITY 
OR AUTHORITY TO REVIEW FOR STRUCTURAL SOUNDNESS, COMPLIANCE WITH 
BUILDING OR ZONING CODES OR STANDARDS, OR ANY OTHER SIMILAR OR 
DISSIMILAR FACTORS. 

7.3 Avvlication Process. 

A. Except as provided in paragraph 2.1 of ARTICLE I1 with respect to the 
Participating Lots, no improvements shall be erected, placed, altered, maintained, or permitted on 
the Subdivisions until plans and specifications showing plot layout and all exterior elevations, with 
exterior materials and colors therefor, signs, and landscaping, irrigation, and drainage plans shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by both the ARC and the Declarant. Such plans 
and specifications shall be submitted in writing over the signature of the owner of any Lot or its 
authorized agent and shall specify for which part of such plans and specifications approval is 
sought. 

B. In any case in which the ARC shall disapprove any plans and specifications 
or shall approve same only as modified or upon specified conditions, such disapproval or qualified 
approval shall be accompanied by a statement of the grounds upon which such action is based. In 
any such event, the ARC shall, if requested, make reasonable efforts to assist and advise the 
applicant in order that an acceptable proposal can be prepared and submitted for approval. Upon 
approval by the ARC of any plans and specifications submitted hereunder, a copy of such plans 
and specifications, as approved, shall be deposited for permanent record with the ARC. 

C. If the ARC fails either to approve or to disapprove such plans and 
specifications within thirty (30) business days after the same have been submitted in writing to it 
or fails to include in any disapproval the statement required in subparagraph B above by written 
notice to the applicant, it shall be conclusively presumed that the ARC has approved said plans 
and specifications, subject, however, to the covenants contained herein. 

/- D. In considering the requests for approval of the plans and specifications and 
i. ' 

related items described herein, the ARC shall be entitled to the use of its absolute discretion. 



7.4 Inspection Rinhts. Any agent of the Declarant, the Association, or the ARC may at 
any reasonable time or times enter upon and inspect any Lot and any improvements thereon for 
the purpose of ascertaining whether the maintenance of such Lot and the maintenance, 
construction, or alteration of structures thereon are in compliance with the provisions hereof; and 
the Declarant, the Association, the ARC, or any such agent shall not be deemed to have committed 
a trespass or other wrongful act by reason of such entry or inspection. Any such inspection shall 
be for the sole purpose of determining compliance with this Declaration, and neither the making 
of any such inspection nor the failure to make any such inspection shall be relied upon by the 
owner of a Lot or any third persons or entities for any purpose whatsoever nor shall any such 
inspection obligate the Declarant, the Association, or the ARC to take any particular action based 
on the inspection. 

7.5 Waiver of Liabilitv. Neither the ARC nor any architect nor agent thereof, nor the 
Association, nor the Declarant, nor any agent or employee of the foregoing, shall be responsible 
in any way for any failure of structures to comply with requirements of this Declaration, although 
a certificate of compliance has been issued, nor for any defects in any plans and specifications 
submitted, revised or approved in accordance with the foregoing provisions, nor for any structural 
or other defects in any work done according to such plans and specifications, and all persons 
relying thereon or benefitting therefrom agree not to sue or claim against the entities and persons 
referred to in this section for any cause arising out of the matters referred to in this section and 
further agree to and do hereby release said entities and persons from any and every such cause. 

7.6 Delegation by Architectural Review Committee. The rights, duties and functions of 
the ARC may be delegated to the Association at any time by the written consent and declaration 
of all three of the members of the ARC. Upon such delegation, the rights, duties and functions of 
the ARC shall become those of, and shall be enforceable by, the Association. 

7.7 Additional Pro~ertv. Other provisions herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any 
Additional Property which is submitted to this Declaration shall be exempt from any approvals by 
the ARC and may be improved in accordance with such plans and specifications as are approved 
by Declarant. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

8.1 Termination of Liability. In the event any owner of a Lot shall convey, transfer, 
assign or otherwise dispose of all of its interest in any portion of such Lot to a transferee who shall 
assume such owner's obligations and liabilities thereafter occurring, such owner shall thereupon 
be released and discharged from any and all obligations and liabilities thereafter occurring with 
respect to such portion of the Lot (except those accruing prior to such conveyance, transfer, 
assignment or other disposition), and such liabilities and obligations shall thereafter be binding 
upon the successor in title to such owner. 

8.2 Interpretation. This Declaration shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Alabama. 

[Signatures appear on the following page.] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Declaration to be executed 
for and on its behalf as of the day of ,2013. 

. NJK, LLC 

BY 
Charles G. Kessler, Jr. 
Its Managing Member 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that 
Charles G. Kessler, Jr., whose name as Managing Member of NJK, LLC, an Alabama limited 

f 
liability company is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me, acknowledged 

x. , 
before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such member 
and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said company. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this day of 2013. 

[NOTARIAL SEAL] 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 





ARTICLES 

CALTBN,HILL 
\ /?'- v 

HOMEO- ., ' ASSOCIATION, INC. 
. . \ ', 

' \I ( 1 

,(awe-orporat~on iw prdit) 
/<* 

-. +?\L .,\ hLb T3 

This instrument prepared by: 

David N. Averyt 
David N. Averyt, LLC 

2024 2nd Ave N, Ste 1002 
Birmingham, AL 35203 



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION i 

CALTON HILL HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. 

(a corporation not for profit) 

This is to certify that, for the purpose of fo ion pursuant to the provisions 
of the Alabama Nonprofit Corporation Act, Section labama (1 975), the 
undersigned do hereby make and file the following 

The name of the corporation shall be ~ a l t & ~ i l l ~ ~ e o w n e r s '  Asdo \ iation, Inc. The 
corporation is sometimes referred &rejn as the ' ' ~ ~ h & t i o n "  or the ''~ssociati2n." 

' :a 
\ \  

C 

ARTIC EJI 1 

DEEINITIQ~~S I \ 

Inc., its successors and 
assigns. 1 2 

so.qiation L U .  may at any time hereafter be owned 
f o h o  long 8s thereof may be the owner thereof. 

Z \ \ Board. The B 8 p d  of Directors of the Association. 

'*'\\ws. 2.4 The dii&macte&laws of the Association. 
\, \ 

2.5 ~cin&lo,n Areas. h o s e  portions of the Property which are conveyed to the 
Association or othenvis\dewed or designated as Common Areas pursuant to the provisions of 
the Declaration or by nolath4 on any record map or plat of the Property. 

2.6 Declaration. The Declaration of Protective Covenants and Agreements of Calton 
Hill at Mountain Brook, recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, in Book LR 3 Page , as the same may from time to time be 
supplemented or amended in the manner described herein. 

2.7 Deed. Any deed, court decree, or other instrument conveying fee title into any part 
of the property subjected to the Declaration. 

t, 



2.8 Declarant, NJK, LLC and any successor thereof and any purchaser Erom NJK, LLC 
of any portion of the Property to which NJK, LLC also conveys and assigns its rights hereunder 
as Declarant. 

2.9 Lot. Any unit, lot, part, or parcel of the Property designed for a residence and 
platted of record, regardless of whether a dwelling has or has not been constructed thereon. 

2.10 Lot Owner. The owner or owners of record title to any Lot. 

2.11 Member. A person or other entity who is a record owner of fee simple title to any 
portion of the Property. 

2.12 Property. The lands included within the survey of Calton Hill, as recorded in Map 
Book , Page , in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama and 
any other real property which may be subjected to this Declaration by separate instrument executed 
by Declarant. 

2.13 Resident. Any person or persons occupying a Lot. 

ARTICLE I11 
PRINCIPAL OFFICE AND AGENT 

The initial registered office of the Association shall be 
The registered agent of the Association shall be . . 

ARTICLE IV 
OBJECTS, PURPOSES AND POWERS 

4.1 Not for Profit. This Association shall be a corporation not for profit organized for 
non-profitable purposes and activities, and no part of its net earnings shall inure to the benefit of 
any private shareholder or member of the Association. 

4.2 Objects and Purposes. The objects and purposes for which this Corporation is 
organized are as follows: 

A. To establish, maintain, operate, and provide such community services as the 
Association shall deem appropriate with respect to the Property and any other property which shall 
be made subject to the jurisdiction of the Association by the Declaration or any amendment thereof, 
supplemental declaration thereto, or other declaration, deed, or instrument. 

B. To own, acquire, build, operate, and maintain the Common Areas; fix 
assessments to be levied against the Lots and the owners of such Lots; enforce any and all 
covenants, restrictions, and agreements applicable to the Property or any or any portion thereof; 
enforce architectural restrictions and perform architectural reviews as provided in the Declaration 
at such time as such duties are delegated to the Association by Declarant; and pay utility bills and 



taxes, if any, on the Common Areas; and, insofar as permitted by law, to do any other thing that, 
in the opinion of the Board, will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the Members. 

C. To own, operate, and manage the Common Areas located in the Property, 
to perform and carry out the acts and duties incident to the administration, operation, and 
management of the Common Areas in accordance with the terms, provisions, and conditions 
contained in the Declaration and these Articles of Incorporation, and to own, operate, lease, sell, 
mortgage, trade, and otherwise deal with such property, whether real or personal, as may be 
necessary or convenient to the objectives and purposes of the Association. 

D. To perform and carry out the functions and obligations of the Association 
as described in the Declaration. 

E. To do such other things as may be necessary and proper for the carrying out 
and accomplishment of the above objects and purposes and of such other objects and purposes as 
are deemed necessary and proper by its Directors. The objects and purposes expressed herein relate 
to services, benefits, and expenditures pertaining to, derived fiom, or in connection with the 
Property or areas thereof intended for and available for the common use and enjoyment or need of 
the Members. 

4.3 Powers. In furtherance of the aforesaid objects, purposes, and powers, the 
Association shall have and exercise all of the powers of a Corporation Not for Profit organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of Alabama and all the powers reasonably necessary to 
implement the powers of the Association, which powers shall include but are not limited to the 
power: 

A. To make, levy, and collect assessments and annual, monthly, or quarterly 
maintenance charges fiom its Members and to expend the proceeds of such assessments and 
charges for the benefit of its Members. 

B. To contract with others, including Declarant or any other entities with which 
it or its members might be associated, to provide the services, benefits, and advantages deemed 
appropriate by the Association. 

C. To enforce by legal action suits on behalf of the Association. 

D. To make, establish, and enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing 
the use of the Common Areas. 

E. To maintain, repair, replace, and operate those portions of the Property that 
the Association has the duty or right to maintain, repair, replace, and operate under the Declaration, 
these Articles, and the Bylaws of the Association. 

F. To contract for the management of the Common Areas and the other 
portions of the Property to be maintained by the Association and to delegate to such contractors, 
including NJK, LLC or any other entities with which it or its members might be associated, all or 
a part of the powers and duties of the Association. 



G. To employ personnel to perform the services required or authorized by these 
Articles, the Declaration, and the Bylaws of the Association. 

H. To purchase liability and casualty insurance, if appropriate, with respect to 
the Common Areas for the protection of the Association and its Members. 

I. To reconstruct improvements to be maintained by the Association after 
casualty, deterioration, or other loss. 

J. To make additional improvements on and to the Common Areas or other 
areas to be maintained by the Association. 

K. To acquire and enter into agreements whereby it acquires leaseholds, 
memberships, or other possessory or use interests in lands or facilities, including but not limited 
to recreational facilities, whether or not contiguous. 

L. To enforce by legal action the provisions of these Articles, the Bylaws, and 
the Declaration. 

ARTICLE V 
MEMBERS 

5.2 Members. The Members of this Association shall consist of all record owners of 
Lots, but shall not include mortgagees or other holders of security interests only. The members of 
the first Board of Directors named in these Articles of Incorporation and other Directors selected 
by Class B members, regardless of whether they are the owners of Lots, shall also be Members of 
the Association until there are no longer any Class B Members or until all the then Class B 
members so designate in a writing delivered to the Association, whichever shall first occur. Fees, 
dues, assessments, and charges required of Members shall be set in the manner prescribed by the 
Bylaws of the Association and in the Declaration. 

5.3 No Assignment of Membership. Membership in this Association cannot be 
assigned, hypothecated, or transferred in any manner except as may be provided in the Bylaws. 

5.4 Classes of Membership. The Association shall have two classes of voting 
memberships: Class A and Class B. 

Class A members shall be all persons owning one or more Lots excepting those 
persons (or other entities) who are Class B members. 

Class B members shall be the Declarant and the initial members of the Board of 
Directors. The Class B membership shall terminate at such time as (a) all the then Class B members 
so designate in a writing delivered to the Association, or (b) at such time as the Declarant no longer 
owns title to or any interest in any portion of the Property. Declarant may remove and replace any 
Class B member at any time in the sole discretion of Declarant. 



When entitled to vote, each Member shall have one (1) vote for each Lot owned by 
such Member; provided, in no event shall there be more than one (1) vote per Lot. 

Until such time as the Class B membership shall terminate as provided herein, the 
Class B members shall be vested with the sole voting rights in the Association, except on such 
matters as to which the Declaration, these Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws specifically 
require a vote of each and every class of membership, or except as required by law. 

ARTICLE VI 
TERM 

This Corporation shall exist perpetually. 

ARTICLE VII 
SUBSCRIBERS 

The names and residences of the three (3) incorporators of the Corporation are as 
follows. 

Name Address 

Charles G. Kessler, Jr. 3505 Bent River Road 
Birmingham, Alabama 3 52 1 6 

[insert names and addresses] 

ARTICLE VIII 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The business and affbirs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors 
consisting of not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) Directors. The first Board of Directors 
shall consist of three (3) Members. Change in the maximum number of Directors shall be permitted 
by amendment to the Bylaws of the Association or by amendment to the Articles of Incorporation. 
The Board of Directors shall be elected by the Members of the Association entitled to vote. The 
names and addresses of the first Board of Directors who shall hold office until Class A Members 
shall become entitled to full voting privileges, or until all the then Class B members so designate 
in a writing delivered to the Association, whichever shall first occur, and thereafter until their 
successors are elected and have qualified, are as follows: 



Name Address 

Charles G. Kessler, Jr. 3505 Bent River Road 
Birmingham, Alabama 3 52 16 

[insert names and addresses] 

Until the termination of Class B membership, Declarant may remove and replace the 
Directors at any time in the sole discretion of Declarant. 

The Directors of the Association shall be elected at the time and in the manner provided 
for in the Bylaws. 

Among other things, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to make and alter 
Bylaws and the further authority to exercise all such other powers and to do all such other lawfbl 
acts and things which this Association or its Members might do, unless prohibited from doing so 
by applicable laws, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws of this 
Association. 

ARTICLE IX 
OFFICERS 

The officers of the Association shall consist of a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. 
The officers of the Association shall be elected by the Board of Directors of the Association in 
accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws of the Association. Any two (2) or more offices may 
be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary. 

ARTICLE X 
INDEMNIFICATION 

Every Director and every officer of the Association shall be indemnified by the Association 
against all expenses and liabilities, including counsel fees reasonably incurred by or imposed upon 
him in connection with any proceeding to which he may be a party, or in which he may become 
involved, by reason of his being or having been a Director or officer of the Association, or any 
settlement thereof, whether or not he is a Director or officer is adjudged guilty of willful 
misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of his duties, provided that, in the event of a 
settlement, the indemnification herein shall apply only when the Board of Directors approves such 
settlement and reimbursement as being for the best interest of the Association. The foregoing right 
of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which such 
Director or officer may be entitled under Alabama law. 



ARTICLE XI 
DISPOSITION OF ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION 

No Member, Director, or officer of the Association or other private individual shall be 
entitled to share in the distribution of any of the Association assets upon dissolution of the 
Association. Unless agreed to the contrary by seventy-five percent (75%) of each and every class 
of membership, upon dissolution of the Association, the assets of the Association shall be granted, 
conveyed, and assigned to an appropriate public body, agency, or agencies, utility or utilities, or 
any one or more of them or to any one or more non-profit corporations, associations, trusts, or 
other organizations to be devoted to purposes as nearly as practicable the same as those to which 
they were required to be devoted by the Association. No disposition of the Association's assets 
shall be effective to divest or diminish any right or title of any Member vested in him under 
recorded covenants and restrictions applicable to such assets unless made in accordance with the 
provisions of such covenants and restrictions. 

ARTICLE XI1 
AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES 

These Articles may be amended by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (213) of the Members 
of the Association entitled to vote. 

ARTICLE XI11 
Bylaws 

The Association shall adopt Bylaws governing the conduct of the affairs of the Association. 
The Bylaws shall be altered, amended, or rescinded as provided in the Bylaws. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the subscribing incorporators have hereunto set their hands and 
seals and caused these Articles of Incorporation to be executed this day of 

,2013. 

Charles G. Kessler, Jr. 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said county in said state, hereby certify that 
Charles G. Kessler, Jr., whose name is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to 
me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, 
he executed the same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,200-. 

POTARLAL SEAL] 

Notary Public 

My commission expires 



STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said county in said state, hereby certify that 
Gary E. Smith, 11, whose name is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he 
executed the same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,200-. 

[NOTARIAL SEAL] 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

Notary Public 

My commission expires 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for said county in said state, hereby certify that 
Jane B. Richardson, whose name is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he 
executed the same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,200-. 

[r\TOTARIAL SEAL] 

.- .- 

Notary Public 

My commission expires 



BYLAWS 

CALTON H][L~ 

HOMEOWNERS' 
'r 

This instrument prepared by: 

David N. Averyt 
David N. Averyt, LLC 

2024 2"* Ave N, Ste 1002 
Birmingham, AL 35203 



BYLAWS 
OF 

CALTON HILL HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. 

A Corporation not for Profit 
under the Laws of the State of Alabama 

A These are the Bylaws of Calton Hill Homeownep? Association, Inc. (hereinafter for 
convenience called "Association" or "Corporationy'), s ation not for profit, incorporated 
under the laws of the State of Alabama. 

ASSOCIATION 
'h / *%., 

1.1 Office. The office of the Association sfiall be at , Or 
at such other place as shall be se lec t ,&b~~ majority of k g ~ o a r d .  

1.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal yearm ~ssociatio~shall  be the calendar year. 

% \  1.3 Seal. Thpwrppyate seal b f b e  Association, if d & e d  by the Association, shall 
consist of two concenWc oire~esbetween the k$ges@fwl~hsh,all be engraved the words: Calton 

< 
Hill Homeowners9 ksdciation, ldci, ~labirph$ot for Profit,hnd across the center thereof the 
words: Corporate Seal, all as shown by an imprint of such seal in the margin of these Bylaws. 
Said seal may be used by c&ing,it or~a$acsimi?$&ereof to be impressed, f i x e d ,  reproduced or 
,the,,- 7 

d 
A: ARTICLE 11 

' \ ~EFTMTIONS 

es. The Artic es of Incorporation of Calton Hill Homeowners' Association, 
Inc. as recorded ih th Office f the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, in Book 
LR 

\\ 2.2 Association.. ealton Hill Homeowners' Association, Inc., its successors and 
assigns. 

2.3 Association Land. Any real property which may at any time hereafter be owned 
by the Association for so long as the Association or successor thereof may be the owner thereof. 

2.4 Board. The Board of Directors of the Association. 

2.5 Bylaws. The duly enacted Bylaws of the Association. 



2.6 Common Areas. Those portions of the Property which are conveyed to the 
Association or otherwise defined or designated as Common Areas pursuant to the provisions of 
the Declaration or by notation on any record map or plat of the Property. 

2.7 Declaration, The Declaration of Protective Covenants of Calton Hill at Mountain 
Brook, recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, in Book 
LR Y Page , as the same may from time to time be 
supplemented or amended in the manner described herein. 

2.8 Deed. Any deed, court decree, or other instrument conveying fee title into any part 
of the property subjected to the Declaration. 

2.9 Declarant. NJK, LLC and any successor thereof and any purchaser fiom NJK, 
LLC of any portion of the Property to which NJK, LLC also conveys and assigns its rights 
hereunder as Declarant. 

2.10 Lot. Any unit, lot, part, or parcel of the Property designed for a residence and 
platted of record, regardless of whether a dwelling has or has not been constructed thereon. 

2.11 Lot Owner. The owner or owners of record title to any Lot. 

2.12 Member. A person or other entity who is a record owner of fee simple title to any 
portion of the Property. 

2.13 Property. The lands included within the survey of Calton Hill at Mountain Brook, 
as recorded in Map Book 225, page 56, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, and any other real property which may be subjected to this Declaration by separate 
instrument executed by Declarant. 

2.14 Resident. Any person or persons occupying a Lot. 

ARTICLE I11 
MEMBERSHIP 

3.1 Membership. The Members of the Association shall consist of all Lot Owners 
together with all those persons or other entities as set forth in ARTICLE V of the Articles. 

3.2 Classes of Membership. The Association shall have two classes of membership, 
Class A and Class By each such Class consisting of those members meeting the applicable 
qualifications for membership in each respective Class, as set forth in ARTICLE V of the Articles. 

3.3 Rights and Obligations of Membership. The Members shall have all the rights, 
privileges, duties, and obligations applicable to their respective Class of membership as set forth 
in the Declaration, the Articles, and elsewhere in these Bylaws. 

3.4 Assessments. The rights of membership are subject to the payment of such 
assessments, fees, and charges as might be imposed, levied, or set by the Association. The 



obligation for the payment of such assessments and charges is imposed against each Lot Owner, T- . 
and is a lien upon, the Lot against which such assessment or change is made, as provided by tho A . 

Declaration, which in substance provides as follows: 

A. Continuing Liens. All Lots shall be subject to a continuing lien for 
assessments levied by the Association in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration, the 
Articles, and these Bylaws. The assessments and charges together with interest thereon and the 
costs of collection thereof (including reasonable attorney's fees) as hereinafter provided, shall be 
a charge on, and shall be a continuing lien upon, the Lot against which each such assessment or 
charge is made. All Lots shall be held, transferred, sold, conveyed, used, leased, occupied, 
mortgaged, and otherwise encumbered subject to all the terms and provisions of the Declaration, 
the Articles, and these Bylaws, including, but not limited to, the continuing lien herein described. 

B. Personal Obligations of Members. Unless otherwise provided in a deed 
or other conveyance, each Member, by acceptance of a Deed or other conveyance to a Lot, whether 
or not it shall be so expressed in any such Deed or other conveyance, shall be deemed to covenant 
and agree to pay to the Association the assessments and charges, such assessments to be fixed, 
established, and collected fiom time to time as provided in the Declaration, the Articles, and these 
Bylaws. Each such assessment, together with interest and cost of collection, including reasonable 
attorney's fees, shall be the personal obligation of the person who is the owner of such Lot at the 
time when the assessment fell due. 

C. Purpose of Assessments. Except as otherwise provided for herein, the 
assessments levied by the Association shall be used exclusively for the purpose of (i) providing 
any and all of the services and activities as may be to the mutual benefit of the Members; 
(ii) maintaining, operating, and repairing of the Common Areas and other areas and structures 
beneficial or useful to the Property; (iii) the payment of utility bills, taxes, liability insurance, and 
insurance on all property of the Association, and the repair, replacement, and additions thereto, 
and for the cost of labor, insurance, equipment, materials, management, and supervision thereof; 
(iv) for other purposes beneficial to the Members as determined by the Association; and 
(v) carrying out the hct ions,  purposes, responsibilities, and duties of the Association as set forth 
in the Declaration, the Articles, and these Bylaws. The Association does not assure that such 
services will be provided and nothing herein shall be construed as an obligation to provide any 
such services, except to the extent required in the Declaration. 

D. Amounts of Assessments. The assessment applicable to Lots shall be set 
by the Board as set forth in the Declaration. 

E. Effect of Non-Payment of Assessments; Remedies of the Association. 
Any assessments not paid within thnty (30) days after the due date shall bear interest fiom the due 
date at such rate of interest as the Association might reasonably determine. The Association may 
bring an action at law against the Member personally obligated to pay the same, or foreclose the 
lien against the Lot owned by the Member. No Member may waive or otherwise escape liability 
for the assessments provided for in the Declaration or in these Bylaws by non-use of the Common 
Areas or other areas to which assessments are applied or abandonment of the Lot owned by such 
Member. 



P. Subordination of Lien to Mortgages. The lien of any assessment or charge 
authorized by the Declaration or this ARTICLE I11 of these Bylaws with respect to a Member's 
Lot is subordinate to the lien of any bonafide mortgage; provided that all assessments or charges 
falling due on or prior to the date such mortgage is recorded have been paid. The sale or transfer 
of any Member's Lot pursuant to a sale under power contained in a mortgage on such Lot or 
pursuant to a deed in lieu of foreclosure thereof or pursuant to a judicial foreclosure thereof shall 
extinguish the lien for assessments falling due prior to the date of such sale, transfer, or foreclosure, 
but the Association shall have a lien on the proceeds of such sale senior to the equity of redemption 
of the mortgagor. The foregoing subordination shall not relieve a Member whose Lot has been 
mortgaged of his personal obligation to pay all assessments and charges falling due during the time 
he is the owner of such Lot. The Board may at any time, either before or after the mortgaging of 
any Member's Lot, waive, relinquish, or quitclaim in whole or in part the right of the Association 
to assessments and other charges collectible by the Association with respect to such Lot coming 
due during the period while such Lot is or may be held by a mortgagee or mortgagees pursuant to 
such sale or transfer. 

3.5 Suspension of Membership Rights. The membership rights of any Member, 
including the right to vote, may be suspended by the Board (i) for any period during which any 
assessment or charge owed to the Association by such Member remains unpaid, and (ii) for a 
period not to exceed thirty (30) days for any infraction of the Association's published rules and 
regulations. Any such suspension shall not affect such Member's obligation to pay assessments 
coming due during the period of suspension and shall not affect the permanent charge and lien on 
the Member's Lot in favor of the Association. Any suspension of a Member's right to vote pursuant 
to this Section 3.5 shall result in that Member's vote being removed from the calculation of a 
quorum as described in these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE IV 
VOTING RIGHTS 

Each class of membership shall have those voting rights as set forth in ARTICLE V of the 
Articles. 

When entitled to vote, each Member shall have one (1) vote for each Lot owned by such 
Member. 

When more than one (1) person (or other such entity) holds an ownership interest or 
interests in any Lot, the vote for such Lot shall be exercised as they among themselves shall 
determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) person be entitled to cast the vote with respect 
to any Lot. In the event of disagreement among such persons (or other entities) and an attempt by 
more than one to cast the vote of such Lot, such persons (or other entities) shall not be recognized 
and the vote with respect to such Lot shall not be counted. 



ARTICLE V 
ASSOCIATION POWERS 

5.1 Additions to Common Areas. The Association shall accept the conveyance to  it 
of additional Common Areas by Declarant; provided that the property to be so conveyed meets all 
the requirements for becoming Common Areas set forth in the Declaration. No approval fiom any 
Member of the Association or anyone else is required for Declarant or its above described 
successors and assigns, to convey as additional Common Areas property otherwise meeting the 
requirements for becoming additional Common Areas. 

5.2 Other Property Owned by the Association. In addition to acquiring additional 
Common Areas in the manner described in Section 5.1 hereof, the Association may, in the 
discretion of the Board, accept the conveyance to it by Declarant of property which shall not be 
held by the Association as Common Areas under the terms and provisions of the Declaration, but, 
rather, which may be used or leased by the Association for any purpose which the Board shall 
choose. 

5.3 Mortgages. The Association shall have the power to mortgage or otherwise burden 
or encumber all or part of its properties, provided that any such mortgaging or encumbering shall 
be authorized by a fifty-five percent (55%) affirmative vote, on a class basis, of the Members 
entitled to vote. 

5.4 Dedication or Transfer of Properties. The Association shall have the power to 
transfer the ownership of all or part of its properties, by dedication to a public authority or 
otherwise, provided that any such transfer shall be authorized by fifty-five percent (55%) 
a f f i a t ive  vote, on a class basis, of the Members entitled to vote. 

ARTICLE M 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

6.1 Selection; Terms of Office. Until such time as Declarant no longer owns any 
interest in any portion of the Property or at such earlier time as determined by the Class B 
membership, the Board shall consist of three (3) Directors, who shall be elected at the times and 
in the manner set forth in Section 6.2 hereof. After such time the Board shall consist of three (3) 
Directors, who shall be elected at the time set forth in Section 6.3 and in the manner set forth in 
ARTICLE VII of these Bylaws. 

6.2 Election of Directors by the Class B Members. Until such time as Class A 
Members shall be entitled to full voting privileges, as provided in ARTICLE VIII of the Articles, 
the Board shall consist of three (3) Directors who shall be elected in the following manner: 

A. The initial Board set forth in ARTICLE VIII of the Articles shall hold oflice 
until such time as Class A Members shall be entitled to full voting privileges or until removed by 
and at the discretion of Declarant. In the event any named Director ceases to be a Director prior to 
the time specified above in this Section 6.2A, his replacement shall be by and at the discretion of 
Declarant. 



B. Any Director or Directors elected by the Class B Members may be removed 
and replaced at any time, with or without cause, by the Declarant. 

6.3 Election of Directors by the Class A Members, After such time as Class A 
Members shall be entitled to full voting privileges, the number of Directors shall be increased to 
three (3), and the Class A Members shall be entitled to elect all three (3) of the new members of 
the Board. Election of such Directors by the Class A Members shall be in the manner set forth in 
ARTICLE VII and Sections 6.3A and 6.3B of these Bylaws. The election of the Directors by the 
Class A Members shall occur as follows: 

A. The incumbent Board elected by the Class B Members shall hold ofice until 
the election of their successors by the Class A Members at the annual meeting of the Class A 
Members to be held for this purpose within sixty (60) days after the date upon which Class A 
Members shall be entitled to full voting privileges, or the termination of the Class B membership, 
whichever is sooner. 

B. At the first annual meeting of the Class A Members, there shall be elected 
in the manner set forth in ARTICLE VII of these Bylaws, three (3) Directors, such Directors being 
elected for a term of three (3) years. 

6.4 Vacancies. After the date upon which Class A Members shall be entitled to full 
voting privileges, vacancies in the Board shall be filled by the majority of the remaining Directors, 
any such appointed Director to hold office until his successor is elected by the Class A Members 
at the next annual meeting of the Members or at any special meeting duly called for that purpose. 
Prior to the date upon which Class A Members are entitled to full voting privileges, vacancies in 
the Board shall be filled by Declarant. 

ARTICLE VII 
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS BY CLASS A MEMBERSHIP 

7.1 Election of Directors. Elections to the Board by the Class A membership shall be 
by written ballot as hereinafter provided. At such elections, the Class A Members or their proxies 
may cast as many votes as there are vacancies to be filled on the Board for each Lot in which they 
hold any interest required for membership by ARTICLE V of the Articles, and such Member shall 
have the right to cumulate his vote and to give one candidate a number of votes equal to his vote 
multiplied by the number of Directors to be elected, or by distributing such votes on the same 
principle among any number of such candidates. The names receiving the largest number of votes 
shall be elected. 

7.2 Nominations Committee. Nominations for a full slate of Directors for election to 
the Board by the Class A Members shall be made by the Nominations Committee. The 
Nominations Committee shall consist of three (3) persons appointed each year by the Board, one 
(1) of whom shall be a Director and two (2) of whom shall be non-directors. Members of the 
Nominations Committee shall be appointed each year by the Board of Directors at least forty-five 
(45) days before the date on which the election for the members of the Board is to be held, and the 
slate of Directors to be nominated by the Nominations Committee shall be nominated at least thirty 



(30) days before the date of such election. No member of the Nominations Committee shall be 
eligible for nomination for the Board by such Committee. 

In addition, nominations for the Board may be made by petition signed by more than five 
(5) Members of the Association, provided that such petitions are filed with the Secretary of  the 
Association at least thirty (30) days before the date of the meeting at which the Directors are to  be 
elected. 

7.3 Ballots. All elections to the Board shall be made on a written ballot which shall: 
(a) describe the vacancies to be filled; (b) set forth the names of those nominated by the 
Nominations Committee for such vacancies and those nominated by petition timely filed with the 
Secretary of the Association; and (c) containing a space for a write-in vote by the Members for 
each vacancy. Such ballots shall be prepared and mailed by the Secretary of the Association to  the 
Members at least fourteen (14) days in advance of the date set forth therein for a return (which 
shall be a date not later than the date for the annual meeting or special meeting called for election). 

7.4 Voting Procedures. Each Class A Member shall receive one (1) vote for each Lot 
with respect to which he is the record owner (subject to the provisions of ARTICLE I11 and 
ARTICLE IV hereof). Each Member shall indicate next to the name of each nominee on the ballot 
the number of votes he casts for the election of such nominee to the Board or shall write in the 
name of a person not so nominated in the space on the ballot provided for this purpose, together 
with the number of votes he wishes to cast for said person. All ballots shall be signed by the 
Member casting it and returned to the Secretary of the Association, who, upon receipt of each 
ballot, shall immediately place it in a safe or other locked place until the day set forth for the annual 
or other special meeting at which the elections are to be held. On that date, the ballots shall be 
turned over to an Elections Committee which shall consist of three (3) Members appointed by the 
Board. The Elections Committee shall then adopt a procedure which shall: 

A. Establish that the number of ballots turned in by each Member corresponds 
with the number of Lots owned by such Member or his proxy identified on the ballot; and 

B. Establish that the signature of the Member or his proxy on the ballot is 
genuine; and 

C. If the vote is by proxy, establish that a proxy has been filed with the 
Secretary as provided in ARTICLE XI11 of these Bylaws and that such proxy is valid. 

Said procedure by the Elections Committee shall be taken in such a manner that the vote 
of any Member or his proxy shall not be disclosed to anyone, including the Elections Committee. 

If any ballot is found to contain more than the number of votes which the Member signing 
such ballot is entitled to cast, all votes on such ballot shall be disqualified and shall not be counted. 
After the announcement of the results by the Elections Committee, unless a review of the procedure 
is demanded by thirty-five percent (35%) of the Members casting ballots in the election within ten 
(1 0) days after the election, the ballots shall be destroyed. 



ARTICLE VIII 
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

8.1 Powers. The Board shall have the powers: 

A. To call special meetings of the Members whenever it deems necessary, and 
it shall call a meeting at any time upon written request of one-fourth (%) of the voting membership, 
as provided in Section 12.2. 

B. To appoint and remove at pleasure all officers, agents, and employees of the 
Association, prescribe their duties, fix their compensation, and require of them such security or 
fidelity bond as it may deem expedient. Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall be construed to 
prohibit the employment of any member, officer, or Director of the Association in any capacity 
whatsoever. 

C. To establish, levy, assess, and collect the assessments and charges set forth 
in ARTICLE 111. 

D. To adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the 
Common Areas and the facilities, and the personal conduct of the Members and their guests 
thereon. 

E. To exercise for the Association all powers, duties, and authorities vested in 
or delegated to the Association, except those reserved to Members in the Declaration, in the 
Articles, or elsewhere in these Bylaws. 

F. To appoint such committees, as it deems in the best interests of the 
Association to carry out the functions and duties of the Board. 

8.2 Director Absence. In the event that any member of the Board of the Association 
shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board, the Board may by action 
taken at the meeting during which said third absence occurs, declare the office of said absent 
Director to be vacant, and the provisions relating to the filling of a vacancy of the Board as set 
forth in Section 6.4 shall become operative. 

8.3 Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board: 

A. To cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs 
and to present the statement thereof to the voting Members at the annual meeting of the voting 
Members or at any special meeting when such is requested in writing by one-fourth (?4) of the total 
voting membership, as provided in Section 12.2. 

B. To supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association, and to 
insure that their duties are properly performed. 

C. As more fully provided in the Declaration and ARTICLE I11 of these 
Bylaws, to fix the amount of the assessment against each Lot owned by a Member at least thirty 
(30) days in advance of the date of any payment of such assessment is due. 



D. To prepare a roster of the Lots and assessments applicable thereto which 
shall be kept in the ofices of the Association and which shall be open to inspection by any Member 
thereof, and, to send written notice of each assessment to every Member subject thereto. 

E. To issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue upon demand by any 
person, a certificate setting forth whether any assessment has been paid. Such certificate shall be 
conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid. 

F. To obtain and maintain a liability insurance policy or policies for the 
protection of the Association covering the Common Areas and covering such risks and with such 
deductible amounts as the Board shall determine. 

ARTICLE IX 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

9.1 Time and Place. Meetings of the Board may be held at any place within or without 
the State of Alabama. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held immediately following the 
close of the annual meeting of the Members and at the place thereof, or the Board may hold such 
annual meeting at such place and time as shall be fixed by the consent in writing of a majority of 
the Directors. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place (within or without 
the State of Alabama) as shall fiom time to time be determined by the Board. 

9.2 Notice. Notice of regular meetings of the Board is hereby dispensed with. If the I 

day for a regular meeting shall fall upon a holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on 
the first day following which is not a holiday, and no notice thereof need be given. 

9.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board shall be held when called by any 
officer of the Association or by any two (2) Directors after not less than three (3) days' notice to 
each Director. 

9.4 Waivers, Consents and Approvals. The transaction of any business at any 
meeting of the Board, however called and noticed, or wherever held, shall be as valid as though 
made at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if a quorum is present and, if either before 
or after the meeting, each of the Directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent 
to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents 
or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records and shall be made a part of the minutes of 
the meeting. 

9.5 Quorum. The majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum thereof. 

9.6 Adjourned Meetings. If at any meeting of the Board there is less than a quorum 
present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting fiom time to time until a quorum 
is present. At any adjourned meeting any business that might have been transacted at the meeting 
as originally called, may be transacted without further notice. 



ARTICLE X 
OFFICERS 

10.1 Officers. The officers shall be a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The 
President shall be a member of the Board. 

10.2 Majority Vote. The officers shall be chosen by majority vote of the Directors. 

10.3 Term. All officers shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board. 

10.4 President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, and shall see 
that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out, and sign all notes, checks, leases, 
mortgages, deeds and all other written instruments as may be incidental to the orders and 
resolutions of the Board. 

10.5 Vice President. The Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President in 
his absence. 

10.6 Secretary. The Secretary shall be "ex-officio" the Secretary of the Board, and shall 
record the vote and keep the minutes of all proceedings in a book to be kept for such purpose. He 
shall keep the records of the Association. He shall record in a book kept for such purpose the names 
of all Members of the Association together with their addresses as registered by such Members. 
The Secretary shall give notice of meetings as required, and shall receive and file proxies of 
Members as provided in ARTICLE XI11 hereof. 

10.7 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts 
all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board; 
provided, however, that a resolution of the Board shall not be necessary for disbursements made 
in the ordinary course of business conducted within the limits of a budget adopted by the Board. 
The Treasurer shall sign all checks and notes of the Association, provided that such checks and 
notes shall also be signed by the President or the Vice President in his absence. 

10.8 Bookkeeping. The Treasurer shall keep proper books of account and cause an 
annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each 
fiscal year. The Treasurer shall prepare the annual budgets and an annual balance sheet statement 
and the budget and balance sheet statement shall be presented to the membership at its regular 
annual meeting. 

ARTICLE XI 
COMMITTEES 

11.1 Standing Committees. Until such time as Class A Members are entitled to full 
voting privileges, there shall be no requirement of.standing committees of the Association. From 
and after the first annual meeting of the Class A Members, the Board may delegate its duties to 
standing committees of the Association as described in this ARTICLE XI. 



Unless otherwise provided herein, each committee shall consist of a Chairman and two (2) 
or more members, one (1) of which three (3) total committee members shall be a member of the 
Board. The committees shall be appointed by the Board immediately afler each annual meeting to 
serve until the close of the next annual meeting. The Board may appoint such other committees as 
it is deemed desirable. 

11.2 Budget Committee. The Budget Committee shall advise the Board on all matters 
pertaining to the budget and operating expenses of the Association and shall perform such other 
functions as the Board, in its discretion, shall determine. 

11.3 Maintenance Committee. The Maintenance Committee shall advise the Board on 
all matters pertaining to the maintenance, repair, or improvement of the Common Areas and shall 
perform such other functions as the Board shall, in its discretion, determine. 

11.4 Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall supervise the annual audit of the 
Association books and approve the annual budget and balance sheet statement to be presented to 
the membership at its regular annual meeting as provided in Section 10.8 hereof. The Treasurer 
shall be an "ex-officio" member of this Committee. 

11.5 Subcommittees. Each Committee shall have the power to appoint a subcommittee 
fiom among its membership and may delegate to any such subcommittee any of its powers, duties 
and hc t ions  set forth in this ARTICLE XI, and as delegated by the Board. 

11.6 Review of Complaints. It shall be the duty of each committee to receive complaints 
fiom Members on any matter involving Association functions, duties and activities in its field of 
responsibility. It shall dispose of such complaints as it deems appropriate or refer them to such 
other committee, Director or officer of the Association as is further concerned with the matter 
presented. 

ARTICLE XI .  
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

12.1 Annual Meeting. Until the time at which the Class B membership terminates, as 
provided in ARTICLE V of the Articles, the regular annual meeting of the Class B Members shall 
be on the first Monday in February of each year, or within two (2) weeks thereafter, at a time and 
place to be agreed upon by the Class B members. 

Until the time at which the Class B membership terminates, there shall be no annual or 
regular meeting of the Class A membership. 

The first annual meeting of the Class A Members shall be held within sixty (60) days after 
the date upon which Class A Members shall be entitled to full voting privileges. Thereafter, the 
regular annual meeting of the members shall be held at 8:00 o'clock P.M. on the second Monday 
in February of each year (beginning the year in which said meeting date is more than twelve 
months following the initial meeting), provided, however, if that day is a legal holiday, the meeting 
shall be held at the same hour on the following Friday. The place of the annual meetings shall be 

/ 

determined by the Board. 



12.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of either class of membership for any purpose 
may be called at any time by the President, the Vice President, the Secretary or the Treasurer, or 
by any two (2) or more members of the Board. In addition, special meetings of the voting 
membership must be called upon the written request of the Members who have a right to vote one- 
fourth (%) of the total votes entitled to be cast under the provisions of ARTICLE Vof the Articles 
at the time such written request is made. 

12.3 Notice. Notice of any meetings of a class of membership shall be given to the 
Members of that class by the Secretary. Notice may be given to the Members either personally, or 
by sending a copy of the notice through the mail, postage thereon fully prepaid, to his address 
appearing on the books of the Association. Each Member shall register his address with the 
Secretary, and notices of meetings shall be mailed to him at such address. Notice of any regular or 
special meeting shall be mailed at least six (6) days in advance of the meeting, and shall set forth 
in general the nature of the business to be transacted; provided, however, that if the business of 
any meeting shall involve an election governed by ARTICLE VII, notice of such meeting shall be 
given or sent as therein provided. 

12.4 Quorum. The presence at the meetings of Members entitled to cast, or of proxies 
entitled to cast, one-third (113) of the vote of the class of membership so meeting shall constitute 
a quorum for any actions governed by these Bylaws unless it is provided otherwise in the 
Declaration, or the Articles, or elsewhere in these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE XI11 
PROXIES 

13.1 Form of Vote. At all meetings of Members, each Member entitled to vote may vote 
in person or by proxy. 

13.2 Proxies. All proxies shall be in writing filed with the Secretary of the Association. 
No proxy shall extend beyond a period of eleven (11) months, and every proxy shall be 
automatically cease upon the sale by the Member of his Lot or other interest in Member's Property. 

ARTICLE XIV 
INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND PAPERS 

The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable 
business hours, be subject to the inspection of any Member. 

ARTICLE XV 
PARLIAMENTARY RULE 

Robert's Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association 
proceedings when not in conflict with the Declaration or the Articles. 



ARTICLE XVI 
AMENDMENTS 

Until the time at which the Class B membership terminates, at which time the Class A 
membership is entitled to full voting privileges, as provided for in ARTICLE V of the Articles, 
these Bylaws may be amended upon a majority vote of the Board in any respect. After such time 
as the Class A members shall be entitled to full voting privileges, these Bylaws may be amended 
in any respect upon recommendation of the Board and subsequent approval at a regular or special 
meeting of the Members by a sixty percent (60%) vote of the total vote of all the then existing 
classes of membership, present in person or by proxy; provided, however, that those provisions of 
these Bylaws which are governed by the Articles may not be amended except as provided therein 
or except as provided by applicable law; and provided further, that any matter stated herein to be 
or which is in fact governed by the Declaration may not be amended except as provided in the 
Declaration. 

ARTICLE XVII 
CONFLICTS 

In the case of any conflict between the Articles and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; 
and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall 
control. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, being all of the directors of Calton Hill Homeowners' 
Association, Inc., have heretofore set our hands this day of ,2013. 

Charles G. Kessler, Jr. 





s .; 

5.' 0. - 
m- -- 
,%+ 

SHRUB PLANTING O€fiUI & 
PF- 





3' 00 X 3' T8ll 
Tenon 

fwua!a 
-Corrosion reelelant cest alumlnum base (A31 0 Alloy) 
-Deeply fluted & tapered oast alumlnum ehaR 
(A31 0 Alloy) 

-Strong yet llghtwelght for ease of lnstallatlon 
-Tarnper reelstant stalnlese eteel hardware 
-Hot dlpped Galvanized anchor bolt8 
Included 

1 %% finlshed with a superlor 
quallty acryllc enamel In a varlety 
of colors. 
ELK - Black 
VRD - Verde 
WHT - Whlte 
BRZ . Brushed Bronze 
QRN Dark Green 
ABR Architectural Bronze 
CC Custom Color 
-0ptlonal Polyester Powder Coal 

A c a e e s w  (Optional) 
BA - Banner Arms 
(Consult factory) 

SS - Street Signage 
(Consul1 faclory) 

Qrderina Procedure 
Post - Color - Accessories 
01012-20 -BLK - X X X  

I Anchor Details 

(4) 18'xIW . .  
Galvrnllad 1 ./- 14.5' 8011 Circle 

L.TYP@ Is a' D'''eea 
Anchor Bolls 

'\ ; /  
. . . . 

I 1 
CC-5 (800) 364-0098 DY NAM lC LIGHTING INC. 



I D323 1 (CA) ---- -.--- 1 - 
(Clear Acrylic ~enses 
Shown with oplional 
Internal Refractor) 

D323 Luminaire Recommended Maximum Wattage 

The 0323 Lumlnaire is a classically 
styled cast aluminum six sided cage 
that offers a choice of several 
different lenses. A Type Ill or 
Type V Borosilicate glass 
refractor may be used with 
Clear or Smoke tinted Acrylic 
lens panels. Clear prismatic 
lenses may be used for standard - ~ e n t  descriptions aro on Ihe m~owing page 
symmetrical distribution. 

Note: Acrylic lenses will have longer servke lile in areas where vandalism lo 
no1 a concern. Polycarbonate iensbr are more vandal resiran! bul are oubjecl 
lo yellowing wilh lime. 

r 
Lurnlnrlre I Lenr* High Pressure Metal tncandercen't 

Sodium Hall& 

D323 1 (PA) 250 250 200 - -- --. - - - . . - - - ,. - . . - . - -. . . - - . -. -- - - - 
D323 I (PP) 250 175 300 

-----. .----.- 
0323 / (CA or SA) 100 100 100 - .- -.-- . .-----.---.--- 
D323 1 (CA or SA) 250 250 300 
with Type Ill or V Refractor 

I 

LU-32 (800) 364-0098 DYNAMIC LIGHTING INC. 



Traffic Information 

Traffic generated from this site may be estimated using the Institute of Transportation 
Engineer's publication Trip Generation (9th ed.). The trip generation for this proposed 
development is as follows: 

During non-peak hours, traffic on Montclair Road is moderate and access to Montclair may be 
achieved with normal caution. During morning peak traffic hours, heavy use of Montclair Road 
is made. The primary direction of traffic flow is towards Birmingham to  the west. This reverses 
during the afternoon peak travel. 

Single Family Townhome Total 

Of traffic leaving the site during the AM peak, as much as 70% or - trips will be making a right 
hand turn on to Montclair Road. Adequate breaks in the traffic are created by the nearby traffic 
signal at Montclair and 3rd Street to accommodate the right hand turning motion. The left hand 

L. 
turning motion will require that driver's wait for an appropriate space to turn left. For PM peak, 
a protected center turn lane exists to allow for left hand turning motion to  enter the 
subdivision. 

Number of Units 
Daily Generated Trips 

AM Peak In 
AM Peak Out 

PM Peak In 
PM Peak Out 

Given the above and the small size of this development, Montclair Road shall continue to 
operate at its current level of service. 

4 16 20 
38 93 131 
1 1 2 
2 6 8 
3 6 9 
1 3 4 



ORDINANCE NO. 1546 

AN ORDlNANCE TO REZONE A PARCEL 
OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
FROM RESIDENCE D TO RESIDENTIAL INFILL DISTRICT 
AND APPROVE THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the following described real estate is presently zoned Residence D: 

Aparcel of land located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 114 of 
Section 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, more particularly 
described as follows: 

Begin at the Northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 
114 of Section 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, and run in a 
easterly direction along the northern boundary line of said quarter- 
quarter section for a distance of 5 16.43 feet to a point; thence turn a 
deflection angle to the right of 142 degrees 49 minutes 46 seconds 
and run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 63.3 1 feet to a 
point and also a point on a curve to the left, said curve having a radius 
of 3744.83 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 17 minutes 27 seconds, 
a chord distance of 149.72 feet and an interior chord angle from 
tangent of 181 degrees 08 minutes 43 seconds; thence run in a 
Southwesterly direction along the arc of said curve for a distance of 
149.73 feet; thence turn an interior angle fiom chord of 18 1 degrees 
08 minutes 44 seconds and run in a Southwesterly direction and 
parallel to the centerline of the old L&N Railroad (abandoned) for a 
distance of 436.01 feet; thence turn a deflection angle to the right of 
127 degrees 47 minutes 3 5 seconds and run in a Northerly direction 
along West boundary of said Section 33 for a distance of 408.36 feet 
and the point of beginning. Said parcel contains 103,561 square feet 
or 2.38 acres (more or less). 

WHEREAS, after due consideration, the City Council has determined that the zoning 
classification of the Real Estate should be Residential Infill District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook as follows: 

a Section 1. The zoning map of the City of Mountain Brook, as referred to in Section 
19-2-7 of the Mountain Brook City Code, as amended fiom time to time, is hereby fiuther 
amended by zoning the following described property Residential Infill District: 

A parcel of land located in the Southwest 114 of the Southwest 114 of 



Section 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, mom particularly 
described as follows: 

Begin at the Northwest comer of the Southwest 114 of the Southwest 
1 14 of Section 33, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, and m in a 
easterly direction along the northern boundary lint of said quarter- 
quarter section for a distance of 5 16.43 feet to a point; thence turn a 
deflection angle to the right of 142 degrees 49 minutes 46 seconds 
and run in a Southwesterly direction for a distance of 63.3 1 feet to a 
point and also apoint on a curve to the left, said cwvt having a radius 
of 3744.83 feet, a central angle of 02 degrees 17 minutes 27 seconds, 
a chord distance of 149.72 feet and an interior chord angle from 
tangent of 181 degrees 08 minutes 43 seconds; thence run in a 
Southwesterly direction along the arc of said curve for a distance of 
149.73 feet; thence turn an interior angle from chord of 18 1 degrees 
08 minutes 44 seconds and run in a Southwesterly direction and 
parallel to the centerline of the old L&N Railroad (abandoned) for a 
distance of 436.01 feet; thence turn a deflection angle to the right of 
127 degrees 47 minutes 35 seconds and run in a Northerly direction 
along West boundary of said Section 33 for a distance of 408.36 feet 
and the point of beginning. Said parcel contains 103,56 1 square feet 
or 2.3 8 acres (more or less). 

Section 2. The rezoning hereby approved shall be subject to and conditioned upon 
compliance with the master development plan submitted in conjunction with and as a part of the 
application for rezoning of the property described above, which master development plan shall 
remain on file at Mountain Brook City Hall, and which is incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3. The provisions of this ordinance are severable. If any provision of this ordinance 
is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such invalidity shall in no way affect the 
remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 4. This ordrnance shall become effective when published by posting the same as 
required by law. 

ADOPTED: This 26th day of August, 2002. n 



a+ 
APPROVED:  his @day of August, 2002. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, as its meeting held on August 26,2002, as same appears in the 649 
minutes of record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on ~ ~ ~ ~ 0 0 2 ,  
at the following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Joe Muggs Newsstand, 2037 Cahaba Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road CVS/Pharmacy, 49 Church Street 

kk 
Steven Boone, City Clerk 



$d'l@lN/TY MAP 
(NOT TO SCALE) 



GONZALEZ - STRENGTH & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
ENGINEERING LANDPLANNING SURVEYING 

August 26,2002 

Sam Gaston, City Manager 
City Of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 3 52 13 

Re: Rezoning RID Application 
Morningside Condominiums 
99BRN01 

Dear Sam: 

As apart of our request for rezohing from Residence D to Residential Infill 
District (RID), we are submitting in accordance with Ordinance # 1526 section 7 the 
following: 

A) Master Plan- The current master plan does not include any lands 
not now currently owned or under option by the Browns. The 
intent of the Browns is to modify the master plan to include 3 rd. 
Street if the ROW is vacated in the future 

i) Legal Description- Attached is the record map "Brown 
Development, LLC - Addition tcr Mountain Brook." 

ii) Owner Name and Address: See Attached letter by James N. 
Brown III 

iii) Project Objectives- See Attached letter by James N. Brown 111 
iv) Covenants, Wements, etc.- See Attached letter by James N. 

Brown LII 
v) PerpeFal Ownership &Maintenance- See Attached letter by 

James N. Brown III 
vi) BufSers, Lur&uaping etc. - Landscape plans are attached which 

depict landscaping at entrance, and in typical yard are attached. 
Buffers are shown on the Master Plan. 

vii) Contact with Neighbors- See Attached letter by James N. Brown 
rn 

viii) TraBc Information - See attached TraBGc report. 

Site Plan- The Master Plan attached also constitutes the site plan 
for the project. 

i) North Arraw, Scale: Shown on Site Plan 
ii) Access, Easements, etcb Access to all build'igs shall be by private 

gated drive. Easements will be granted for all utilities. 
iii) Area Uses- Area uses are shown on the. Site Plan. 

117 GEMINI CIRCLE - SUITE 407 - BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35209 
PHONE: (205)-942-2486 FAX: (205) 942-3033 

www.gonzalez-strength.com 



iv) 

vg 
vii) 

x ,  
xi) 

xiv) 

Loaction of Open Areas- The project is a condominium all area 
beyond the buildings shall be owned by the association. Open 
areas are shown on the Site Plan. 
Streets, drives, etc.- Streets, drives, sidewalks are shown on the 
Site Plan. 
Grading Plan- See attached Grading Plan. 
Lundrcape Plan- See attached Landscape Plan and attached letter 
by James N. Brown III 
Eielerior Lighting- Exterior shall be antique bronze finish with a 
total height 12.5'. See attached specification sheet. 
Preliminary Drainage plan- Drainage is s h o h  on the attached 
Grading Plan. Also, attached are drainage calculations in 
compliance with Ordinance 1496. 
Utilities, fire hydrants, etc. - See attached Utility plan. 
Structure Information- Maximum structure height is 37.5 or 2 '/z 
stores, minimum 1 st. floor sq fi - 2400 sq. R., niinimum total sq. 
ft. all floors 3200 sq.fi. See Master Plan f ~ r  location of buildings. 
Rendering- See attached rendering of proposed buildings 
Building Setbacks, etc. - Building setbacks meet or exceed the 
required 10' separation from adjacent residential property. All 
access is via a private drive. Refer to the Master Plan for additional 
information. 
Parking- All home in Mountian Brook are provided with a two car 
garage and space outside to accommodate 2 additional visitors 
cars. 
Paving materials- currently planed is an d asphalt access drive. 
Final design may include stained, stamped concrete nad or 
concrete pavers. 

If you have any questions, please call. 

4- Mark  go^^. 
President of Engineering 



James N, Brown I11 
323 1 Pine Iiidge Road 

7'el 205-87 1 - 1524 & Fax 

TO: City of Mountain Broolc 
Attn: Sam Gaston, City Xr. Zoning Manager 
& J31anning Comlnission Members 

Dear Sirs: 

As part of our applic.ation for Residential Infj11 Zoning, ll~cse comments 
address Paragraph 7 requirements of Lbsidential Illti l l  Districts. Comments 
are directcd to the application generally arid also to specific sections of 
Paragraph 7. 

1)  Pal-agr-nph 7A.i.i. The owner of the parcels i,nvolved is lames N. Brown, 
SSJ "Brown". Brown has one parcel under contract from the Mountain Brook 
Bible Chapel, which will close aftel- approval of the development plan. 
Brown Develop~nen~, LLC, owned by Jarnes N. BI-own, Ill will be the 
genera1 contractor. Will ia~n Robert Brown is president of Brown 
Development, LLC. James N. Brown. 111 is the sole director. 

2) 7A.iii. Momitpside Engiish Villas "MEV" is an upscale gated 
condorni ni urn community desi @led for mature couples who usually have no 
children at home and desire a modern home and a carefree lifestyle. The 
current plan to build single Family detached homes rather than duplex 
buildings reflects market preferences in this arca and adoption of the RID 
Ordinance. Proximity to Crestline Village and local clubs is a crucial factor 
in MEV. Drawings of typical proposed units, which will be very traditional 
in. architectiue., me i~~cluded in this application. Across M.011 tclair Road 
from MEV are duplex residential units, similar in approach. but smaller in 
size, less expensive and not detached. 

3) 7A.iv & v. MEV is  resirictcd to single family residential with common 
areas owned by a ~lonprofit charged with exterior mai.ntenance and owned 
and governed by the condo owlier-s. Cove~iants and easements are standard 

! in scope Lo all residential condo ownership developments, with the owners 
financially responsible to ea.cl~ other tlll-ougl~ annual assess~nents for all 



exterior upkeep and maintenance of, i ~ ~ t e r  alia, all items meiltioned in v. 
This i s  enforced by contract and runs with all ownel.ship, 

4) 7A.vii. A.11 contiguocls owners have been repea.tcdly talk.ed with over a 
period of 2+ years and tl~eir concerns have been incorporated into design of 
th is  development. These concerns were addressed with specif c wall designs 
and landscapil~g agree~nents. An owner North of the developrnc~lt in the 
City of Bil-~ningl~arn, the "Yeterson Trusl" has opposed all aspects of the 
development, and has et-roneously' claimed a 40-foot easement access to 3rd 
Street, which the Trust simply does not ha.ve. 



Traffic Informat ion 

Traffic generated from this site may be estimated using the Institute of Transportation 
Engineer's publication Trio Generatiola 6'' edition. The trip generation for this proposed 
condominium development is shown as follows: 

Land Use: residential condominium 

Number of Units: 10 

Weekday Ave. Vehicle Trip Ends: 92 

AM Peak In: 
Am Peak Out: 

PM Peak In: 
PM Peak Out: 

During non-peak hours, traffic on Montclair Road is moderate and access to Montclair 
may be achieved with normal caution. During morning peak trdc hours, heavy use of 
Montclair Road is made. The primary direction of traffic flow is towards Birmingham to 
the west. This reverses during the afternoon peak travel. 

For the AM peak, traffic leaving the site as much as 70% or 5 trips will be making a right 
hand turn on to Montclair Road. Adequate breaks in the traffic are created by the near by 
traffic signal at Montclair and Morningside Drive to accommodate the right hand turning 
motion. The left hand turning motion will require that driver's wait for an appropriate 
space to turn left. For PM peak, a protected center turn lane exists to allow for left hand 
turning motion to enter the subdivision. 

Given the above and the small size of this development, Montclair Road shall continue to 
operate at its current level of service. 



D1012-20 

Dercr ipt lon 

Fsaturee 
-Conoslon reslstant cast alumlnum base (~310 AJIOY) 
-Deeply fluted & tapered cast alumlnum sham 
(A31 0 Alloy) 

-Strong yet Ilghhvelght for ease of lnstallatlon 
-Tamper reslstant stainless steel hardware 
-Hot dlpped Galvanized anchor bolts 
Included 

F- 
Post Is finished with a superior 
quality acryllc enamel in a variety 
of colors. 
ELK - Black 
VRD - Verde 
WHT - Whlte 

I---- 20' ---A L 20. -.-I 

CC-5 

BRZ Brushed Bronze 
GRN - Dark Green 
ABR - Architectural Bronze 
CC - Custom Color 
-0ptlonal Polyester Powder Coat 

Accessorleg (Optional) 
BA - Banner Arms 
(Consult factory) 

SS - Street Signage 
(Consult faclory) 

Orderina Procedure 
Post - Color - Accessories 
D1012-20 -ELK - X X X  

Anchor Details 

2 
N + 
1- 

(4) 18' 1 I@' ...- 
, a m i z e a  i /- 14,s' 8011 Circle 

4 Bolls a1 DO Degrees 
Anchor L.Typ8 Bolls 0 

i 
.\ .; / 
.. . . . 

(800) 364-0098 DYNAMIC LIGHTING INC. 



D323 / (CA) - -. 
(Clear Acrvlic Lenses 

I Shown wiih optional 
Internal Retractor) 

D323 Lurninaire Recommended Maxlmurn Wattage 

The D323 Lumlnaire is a classically 
styled cast aluminum six sided cage 
that offers a choice of several 
different lenses. A Type Ill or 
Type V Borosilicate glass 
refractor may be used with 
Clear or Smoke tinted Acrylic 
lens panels. Clear prismatic 
lenses may be used for standard 
symmetrical distribution. 

r 
Lumlnalre I Lens* Hlgh Preasure Metal Incendsrcerit 

Sodium Halide 

0323 1 (PA) 250 250 200 
- - - -  - -...- ._-__ __ 

D323 I (PP) 250 175 - -- 300 ------.-- --.- 
0323 I (CA or SA) 100 100 100 -_.- -.-- .. .-- --___ 
0323 1 (CA or SA) 250 250 300 
with Typs Ill or V Rcfraclor 

'Lens descriplions aro on Ule lonowing papc 

Note: Acryllc lenses will have longer service lile In areas where vandalism Is 
no1 a concern. Polycsrbonale lenses are more vandal resistanl bul am subjrcl 
to yellowing wilh lime. 

Lu-32 (800) 364-0098 DYNAMIC LIGHTING INC. 













P a -  I. ----LCrr 

- N I U d b . . , . -  - 















1 1  OAK STREET 
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 352 13-42 18 

TELEPHONE (208) 87 1-21 83 

FACSIMILE (205) 87 1-2 184 

FRANK C. GALLOWAY Ill  
JOHN 0. SOMERVILLE 
STACY CRABS DEAS 

October 17,2002 

Via Hand Deliverv 
Carl E. Johnson, Jr., Esq. 
Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent 
191 0 First Avenue, North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

Re: James N. Brown III development on Montclair Road 

Dear Carl: 

Enclosed herein please find aproposed final version ofthe covenants for Jim Brown's 
development off of Montclair Road. I ask that you review the documents and call me so that we can 
discuss whether any additional changes need to be made thereto. 

Sincerely, 

Frank C. Galloway I11 0- 
FCGIIVjjg 
Enclosure 

c: Mr. Steve Boone /via HandDelivuy IV,UICIOSII~CT) 



STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

This instrument waa pmparad by: 
Frank C. Galloway III 
Oalloway & Somerville, LLC 
11 Oak Street 
Birmingham, Alabama 352 13 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO EXISTING COVENANTS 
AND DECLARATION OF COVENANTS 

COME? NOW the undersigned James N. Brown, 11 ("Brown"), a manied man1, and 

Mountain Brook Bible Church ("the Church") and, as owners of the real properties referred 

hereinafter (such properties are collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Property"), agree and 

declare as follows: 

1. Brown is the owner of the real property located in the City of Mountain 

Brook, Alabama, (the "City") which is more particularly described in the attached Exhibit "A" 

("Property #1"). Property #1 is presently subject to a set of restrictive covenants recorded in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama (the "Probate Office") in Volume 

200003 at Page 8686 (the "Initial Covenants"). 

2. Since executing the Initial Covenants, Brown has purchased a tract of land 

(more particularly described in the attached Exhibit "B" and referred to as "Property #2") that 

adjoins Property #l. Additionally, Brown has a contract to purchase a third tract of land that adjoins 

Property #2 (more particularly described in the attached Exhibit "C" and referred to as "Property 

#3") which is owned by the Church. Property #1, Property #2 and Property #3 are collectively 

referred to hereinafter as the 'Troperty". 

3. Brown and the Church seek (i) to have the Property collectively rezoned to 

the City's newly created "Residential Infill District" ("RID") zoning, and (ii) modify the Covenants 

1 The subject property owned by Brown is not the homestead of Brown nor his spouse. 



so as to adopt them as to all of the Property and make certain changes thereto so that the 

contemplated residential development on the Property will conform with the City's RID zoning. 

WHEREFORE, Brown, by his signature hereunder, agrees to modify the Initial 

Covenants in their entirety so as to (i) expand the lands burdened thereby, and (ii) change certain of 

the provisions therein, and the Church, as owner of Property #3, seeks to burden Property #3 with 

these covenants (the "Covenants") so as to allow Property #3 to be developed under a RID zoning 

in conjunction with the remaining portions of the Property; accordingly, Brown and the Church 

(collectively referred to hereinafter as "Declarants") do hereby burden all of the Property with the 

following restrictive  covenant^.^ 

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarants do hereby subject the Property to the following 

Covenants, which Covenants shall run with the land and shall be binding on the owners and their 

heirs, successors and assigns until October 1, 2022, at which time the Covenants shall be 

automatically renewed for successive periods of ten (1 0) years, unless the then owners of a majority 

of the lots or parcels into which the Property may have been subdivided agree to terminate or amend 

the Covenants, as evidenced by an instrument signed by such owners and recorded in the Probate 

Office. 

2 \ To the extent this document concerns Property #1, these Covenants are intended to replace in full the 
Initial Covenants. 



COVITNAN'I'S 

1. No more than fifteen (1 5) dwelling units (each such unit is hereinafter referred 

to as a "Dwelling Unityy), each being a detached structure, may be constructed on the Pr~perty .~ 

2. All Dwelling Units must be completely constructed, and certificates of 

occupancy issued therefor, by April 1,2005, except, for situations due to economic downturns and/or 

force majeure. 

The average sales price of the Dwelling Units shall be at least Four Hundred 

Ten Thousand and 00/100 Do1 >It is anticipated that fifteen (1 5) Dwelling Units L 
will be constructed, producing an aggregate sales price of the Dwelling Units (exclusive of any 

rebates or credits) of approximately Six Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand and 0011 00 Dollars 

The owners of the Property agree that consistent with the City's RID 

ordinance, prior to filing a final plat of the Property4, they shall create a homeowner's association 

for which every owner of a lot or unit in the Property must be a member and which association shall 

be solely responsible for the perpetual maintenance of private streets, driveways, parks, buffers, 

3 This restriction will not apply if additional adjoining property (such as all or part of Third Street if 
it is vacated) is later added to the Property. Provided, however, that the lifting of such a restriction shall in no way imply 
that the Property (and any acreage added thereto) is to be viewed by the City as a potential development site that merits 
a variance to allow for more density than whatever the applicable zoning would allow. 

Declarants acknowledge that section 6(E) of the Residential Infill District contemplates that: 

Prior to final plat approval of a subdivision for a Residential 
Infill Development, the developer shall submit to the City Clerk 
appropriate legal documents that provide for adequate 
maintenance ofprivate streets and driveways, parks, recreational 
facilities, planted or forested areas, and all other improved or 
unimproved real property and improvements located within the 
common areas. 

Declarants acknowledge that a plat of a subdivision must be presented for approval to the City Planning Commission, 
regardless of whether the Property is developed in the fiom of condominium ownership. 



recreational facilities, planted or forested areas, detention systems, and all other improved or 

unimproved portions of common area within the Property. Such association shall have the power 

to levy assessments against property owners, and file liens on such property(ies). The owners of the 

Property further agree that they shall submit to the City Clerk all such documentation regarding the 

creation and operation of a homeowner's association contemporaneous with their submissions to the 

City Clerk as contemplated by section 6(E) of the Residential Infill District Ordinance (#I  526). 

5.  Declarants covenant that the height of homes built on the Property under the 

City's RID zoning shall not exceed 37% feet in height (as currently measured by the City). The 

undersigned anticipate that the height of the majority, if not all, of the homes built on the Property 

under the City's RID zoning wil I t o ~ l a r e ~  5)  

6. Each of the Dwelling Units shall contain at 1 

and cooled living area. 

-- 

I ,A the Dwelling Units shall have an attached two-car garage. 

TheDeclarants agree that they shall follow and abide by the City's ordinances 

regarding storm water detention. If the City's ordinances ever become less stringent than those 

currently in place, the owners of the Property shall still be obligated to comply with the City's storm 

water detention ordinances now in place. 

These covenants shall run with the land and may be enforced by any one or 

more of the following: (a) the City, (b) the owner of any lot, parcel or other part of the Property, or 

any interest therein. Enforcement of these covenants shall be by proceedings at law or in equity 

against any person or party violating or attempting to violate any of the Covenants, either to restrain 

the violation of one or more of the Covenant. or to recover damages for the violation of one or more 

of the Covenants. 



10. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this document are 

severable and, if any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this document shall be 

declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the other section, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases ofthis document, since the same would have been executed 

by Owner without the incorporation in this document of any such unconstitutional or invalid section, 

paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned by have executed this instrument on the 

day of ,2002. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK BIBLE CHURCH 

By: 

Its: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 
that as of Mountain Brook Bible Church, 
whose name is signed to the foregoing conveyance, and who is known to me, acknowledged before 
me on this day, that being informed of the contents of the conveyance, and with full authority as such 
off~cer, he/she executed the same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2002. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 



James N. Brown, 11 
STATE OF ALABAh4A ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 
that James N. Brown, 11, whose name is signed to the foregoing conveyance, and who is known to 
me, acknowledged before me on this day, that being informed of the contents of the conveyance he 
executed the same voluntarily on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and oficial seal this day of ,2002. 

-- 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 


	2013-Oct-28 Formal Agenda
	1.  Minutes
	2.  Surplus property
	3.  Sain Associates Supplement No. 2
	4.  RDS audit agreement
	5.  Mercer Library study
	6.  Publication policy change
	7.  Calton Hill RID rezoning
	Calton Hill Rezoning Application.pdf
	Background and Summary Report
	Revised Master Development Plan
	Site Grading and Drainage Plan
	Calton Hill Rezoning Application
	Tab 1 Concept Study
	Tab 2 Title policy
	Tab 3 Covenants
	Tab 4 Articles of Incorporation
	Tab 5 Landscape Plan
	Tab 6 Traffic Information
	Tab 7 Ordinance No. 1546 dtd 8/26/2002




